
CHINO BASIN WATERMASTER 

NOTICE OF MEETING 

Thursday, October 18, 2018  

9:00 a.m. — Advisory Committee Meeting 

AT THE CHINO BASIN WATERMASTER OFFICES 

9641 San Bernardino Road 
Rancho Cucamonga, CA 91730 

(909) 484-3888 



CHINO BASIN WATERMASTER 

Thursday, October 18, 2018  

9:00 a.m. - Advisory Committee Meeting 

AGENDA 



CHINO BASIN WATERMASTER 
ADVISORY COMMITTEE MEETING 

9:00 a.m. — October 18, 2018 
WITH 

Mr. Jeff Pierson, Chair 
Mr. Todd Corbin, Vice-Chair 

At The Offices Of 
Chino Basin Watermaster 
9641 San Bernardino Road 

Rancho Cucamonga, CA 91730 

AGENDA 

CALL TO ORDER 

AGENDA — ADDITIONS/REORDER 

I. CONSENT CALENDAR 
Note: All matters listed under the Consent Calendar are considered to be routine and non-
controversial and will be acted upon by one motion in the form listed below. There will be no 
separate discussion on these items prior to voting unless any members, staff, or the public 
requests specific items be discussed and/or removed from the Consent Calendar for separate 
action. 

A. MINUTES 
Approve as presented: 
1. Minutes of the Advisory Committee Meeting held September 20, 2018 (Page 1) 

B. FINANCIAL REPORTS 
Receive and file as presented: 
1. Cash Disbursements for the month of August 2018 (Page 5) 
2. Watermaster VISA Check Detail for the month of August 2018 (Page 19) 
3. Combining Schedule for the Period July 1, 2018 through August 31, 2018 (Page 23) 
4. Treasurer's Report of Financial Affairs for the Period August 1, 2018 through 

August 31, 2018 (Page 27) 
5. Budget vs. Actual Report for the Period July 1, 2018 through August 31, 2018 (Page 31) 

II. BUSINESS ITEMS  
A. CHINO BASIN STORAGE FRAMEWORK (Page 49) 

Recommend to the Watermaster Board to receive and file the Final Storage Framework Investigation 
Report, and authorize the use of the tools and technical information developed by the investigation for 
storage planning and future evaluations. 

III. REPORTS/UPDATES  
A. LEGAL COUNSEL REPORT 

1. Appeal of April 28, 2017 Order 
2. December 28, 2018 Hearing 

B. ENGINEER REPORT 
1. Fiscal Year 2017/18 GLMC Annual Report 
2. Plumes Status Reports 
3. Safe Yield Recalculation 
4. Geoscience Data Request for Integrated Model 

C. CFO REPORT 
1. FY 2018/19 Assessment Package 



Agenda Advisory Committee Meeting October 18, 2018 

D. GM REPORT 
1. Introduction of New Employees 
2. FY 2018/19 Exhibit "G" Physical Solution Transfer Rate 
3. Habitat Conservation Plan 
4. Watermaster Reappointment 
5. Other 

E. INLAND EMPIRE UTILITIES AGENCY 
1. MWD Update (Written) (Page 53) 
2. State and Federal Legislative Reports (Written) (Page 57) 
3. Community Outreach/Public Relations Report (Written) (Page 85) 

F. OTHER METROPOLITAN MEMBER AGENCY REPORTS 

IV. INFORMATION  
1. Cash Disbursements for September 2018 (Page 89) 
2. Plumes Status Reports (Page 99) 

V. COMMITTEE MEMBER COMMENTS 

VI. OTHER BUSINESS  

VII. CONFIDENTIAL SESSION - POSSIBLE ACTION  
A Confidential Session may be held during the Advisory Committee meeting for the purpose of discussion 
and possible action. 

VIII. FUTURE MEETINGS AT WATERMASTER 
10/18/18 Thu 8:00 a.m. Appropriative Pool Strategic Planning (Confidential Session Only) 
10/18/18 Thu 9:00 a.m. Advisory Committee 
10/18/18 Thu 9:30 a.m. Recharge Investigations and Projects Committee 
10/23/18 Tue 1:00 p.m. Fiscal Year 2018/19 Assessment Package Workshop #1 
10/25/18 Thu 11:00 a.m. Watermaster Board 
10/30/18 Tue 1:00 p.m. Fiscal Year 2018/19 Assessment Package Workshop #2 (If Needed) 

ADJOURNMENT 



CHINO BASIN WATERMASTER 

CONSENT CALENDAR 
A. MINUTES 

1. Advisory Committee Meeting held on September 20, 2018 



DRAFT MINUTES 
CHINO BASIN WATERMASTER 

ADVISORY COMMITTEE MEETING 
September 20, 2018 

The Advisory Committee meeting was held at the offices of the Chino Basin Watermaster located at 9641 San 
Bernardino Road, Rancho Cucamonga, CA on September 20, 2018. 

ADVISORY COMMITTEE MEMBERS PRESENT 

AGRICULTURAL POOL 
Jeff Pierson, Chair 
Lawrence Dimock 
Bob Feenstra 

APPROPRIATIVE POOL 
Todd Corbin, Vice-Chair 
Cris Fealy 
Eric Tarango 
John Bosler for Marty Zvirbulis 
Darron Poulsen 
Van Jew 
Ben Lewis 
Dave Crosley 
Katie Gienger for Scott Burton 
Rosemary Hoerning 
Teri Layton 

NON-AGRICULTURAL POOL 
Brian Geye, 2nd Vice-Chair 

WATERMASTER BOARD MEMBERS PRESENT 
Bob Kuhn 
Eunice Ulloa 
Bob Bowcock 

WATERMASTER STAFF PRESENT 
Peter Kavounas 
Joseph Joswiak 
Edgar Tellez Foster 
Anna Nelson 
Justin Nakano 

WATERMASTER CONSULTANTS PRESENT 
Brad Herrema 
Andy Malone 
Carolina Sanchez 

OTHERS PRESENT 
Chris Berch 
Shaun Stone 
Raul Garibay 
Eric Grubb 
Courtney Jones 
Matt Litchfield 
David De Jesus  

Crops 
State of California — CIM 
Dairy 

Jurupa Community Services District 
Fontana Water Company 
Fontana Union Water Company 
Cucamonga Valley Water District 
City of Pomona 
Monte Vista Water District 
Golden State Water Company 
City of Chino 
City of Ontario 
City of Upland 
San Antonio Water Company 

California Speedway Corporation 

Three Valleys Municipal Water District 
City of Chino 
CalMat Co. 

General Manager 
Chief Financial Officer 
Senior Environmental Engineer 
Executive Services Director/Board Clerk 
Water Resources Senior Associate 

Brownstein Hyatt Farber Schreck, LLP 
Wildermuth Environmental, Inc. 
Wildermuth Environmental, Inc. 

Inland Empire Utilities Agency 
Inland Empire Utilities Agency 
City of Pomona 
Cucamonga Valley Water District 
City of Ontario 
Three Valleys Municipal Water District 
Three Valleys Municipal Water District 

P1 



Draft Minutes Advisory Committee Meeting September 20, 2018 

Amanda Coker 
Richard Rees 
Brian Lee 
Chris Diggs 
Kristen Weger 
Steve Sentes 
Manny Martinez 

City of Chino 
Wood plc 
San Antonio Water Company 
City of Pomona 
Chino Basin Water Conservation District 
Chino Basin Water Conservation District 
Monte Vista Water District 

CALL TO ORDER 
Chair Pierson called the Advisory Committee meeting to order at 9:00 a.m. 

AGENDA — ADDITIONS/REORDER 
None 

I. CONSENT CALENDAR 
A. MINUTES 

Approve as presented: 
1. Minutes of the Advisory Committee Meeting held August 16, 2018 

B. FINANCIAL REPORTS 
Receive and file as presented: 
1. Cash Disbursements for the month of July 2018 
2. Watermaster VISA Check Detail for the month of July 2018 
3. Combining Schedule for the Period July 1, 2018 through July 31, 2018 
4. Treasurer's Report of Financial Affairs for the Period July 1, 2018 through July 31, 2018 
5. Budget vs. Actual Report for the Period July 1, 2018 through July 31, 2018 

C. OBMP SEMI-ANNUAL STATUS REPORT 2018-1 
Recommend to the Watermaster Board to adopt the Semi-Annual OBMP Status Report 2018-1, along 
with filing a copy with the Court, subject to any necessary non-substantive changes. 

D. WATER TRANSACTIONS 
Provide advice and assistance to the Watermaster Board on the proposed transaction: 
The purchase of 500.000 acre-feet of water from West Valley Water District by Cucamonga Valley Water 
District. This purchase is made from West Valley Water District's Excess Carryover Account. Date of 
application: July 11, 2018. 

(0:01:00) 
Motion by Ms. Rosemary Hoeming, seconded by Ms. Teri Layton and by unanimous vote 

Moved to approve the Consent Calendar as presented. 

II. BUSINESS ITEMS  
A. FISCAL YEAR 2018/19 BUDGET TRANSFER (FORM 1-18-07-01) 

Approve Fiscal Year 2018/19 Budget Transfer (Form T-18-07-01) as presented. 

(0:01:26) Mr. Joswiak gave a report and offered the same presentation as was given at the Pool 
meetings last week. The Committee declined to have the presentation provided again. 

(0:02:18) 
Motion by Mr. Van Jew, seconded by Mr. Brian Geye and by unanimous vote 

Moved to approve Business Item II.A. as presented. 

P2 



Draft Minutes Advisory Committee Meeting September 20, 2018 

B. 2018 RECHARGE MASTER PLAN UPDATE AND RESOLUTION NO. 2018-04 
Recommend to the Watermaster Board to approve the 2018 RMPU as presented and adopt Resolution 
No. 2018-04. 
(0:02:43) Mr. Kavounas gave a report. A discussion ensued. 

(0:05:41) 
Motion by Ms. Rosemary Hoeming, seconded by Ms. Teri Layton and by unanimous vote 

Moved to approve Business Item ILB. as presented. 

C. TASK ORDER NO. 4 UNDER MASTER AGREEMENT FOR COLLABORATIVE PROJECTS: CHINO 
BASIN CONJUNCTIVE USE ENVIRONMENTAL WATER STORAGE/EXCHANGE PROGRAM 
EVALUATION AND CONCEPTUAL DESIGN SUPPORT 
Approve Task Order No. 4 Under Master Agreement for Collaborative Projects: Chino Basin Conjunctive 
Use Environmental Water Storage/Exchange Program Evaluation and Conceptual Design Support. 

(0:06:05) Mr. Kavounas gave a report. 

(0:06:32) 
Motion by Vice-Chair Todd Corbin, seconded by Mr. Cris Fealy and by unanimous vote 

Moved to approve Business Item ILC. as presented. 

D. SAFE YIELD RESET-RELATED AGREEMENT DISCUSSION 
Discussion. 

(0:06:50) Mr. Kavounas gave an introduction to Business Item II.D. A discussion ensued 

III. REPORTS/UPDATES  
A. LEGAL COUNSEL REPORT 

1. Appeal of April 28, 2017 Order 
2. August 24, 2018 Hearing 

(0:09:52) Mr. Herrema offered the same reports as was given at the Pool meetings last week. The 
Committee declined to have the reports provided again. 

B. ENGINEER REPORT 
1. Storage Framework 
2. Fiscal Year 2017/18 GLMC Annual Report 

(0:10:23) Mr. Malone gave a report. 

C. CFO REPORT 
None 

D. GM REPORT 
1. Proposed Changes to DYY Program Operation 
2. CDA Production 
3. Changes to the Overlying (Non-Agricultural) Pool Pooling Plan 
4. Other 

(0:11:24) Mr. Kavounas announced that the GM's Report is unchanged since the Pool meetings last 
week. He made an announcement for parties to "Save The Date" of Tuesday, December 4, 2018 for the 
40th Judgment Anniversary Commemoration event. 

(0:12:04) Mr. Tellez Foster announced that the Inland Empire Utilities Agency Board approved the 
RMPU 2018 update and awarded the contract for Pomona Extensometer. 

P3 



Draft Minutes Advisory Committee Meeting September 20, 2018 

(0:12:46) Mr. Geye made comments regarding Item III.D.3., Changes to the Overlying (Non-Agricultural) 
Pool Pooling Plan. 

E. INLAND EMPIRE UTILITIES AGENCY 
1. MWD Update (Written) 
2. State and Federal Legislative Reports (VVritten) 
3. Community Outreach/Public Relations Report (Written) 

(0:17:58) Mr. Berch gave a report on the Prop 1 status and a presentation on the Rialto Pipeline. A 
discussion ensued. 

F. OTHER METROPOLITAN MEMBER AGENCY REPORTS 
None 

IV. INFORMATION  
1. Cash Disbursements for August 2018 

V. COMMITTEE MEMBER COMMENTS  
(0:17:22) Ms. Layton introduced Mr. Brian Lee as San Antonio Water Company's new General Manager. 

(0:25:19) Mr. De Jesus announced that Mr. Rick Hansen, Three Valleys Municipal Water District's General 
Manager, will be retiring on December 28, 2018. 

VI. OTHER BUSINESS 
None 

VII. CONFIDENTIAL SESSION - POSSIBLE ACTION  
None 

ADJOURNMENT 
Chair Pierson adjourned the Advisory Committee meeting at 9:27 a.m. 

Secretary: 

Approved:  

P4 



CHINO BASIN WATERMASTER 

I. CONSENT CALENDAR  
B. FINANCIAL REPORTS 

1. Cash Disbursements for the month of August 2018 
2. Watermaster VISA Check Detail for the month of August 2018 
3. Combining Schedule for the Period July 1, 2018 through August 31, 2018 
4. Treasurer's Report of Financial Affairs for the Period August 1, 2018 through 

August 31, 2018 
5. Budget vs. Actual Report for the Period July 1, 2018 through August 31, 2018 



..c. 9 •"›, e,. .s. • ct,a " 
/17  8asin MO 

CHINO BASIN WATERMASTER 
9641 San Bernardino Road, Rancho Cucamonga, Ca 91730 

Tel: 909.484.3888 Fax: 909.484.3890 www.cbwm.org  

PETER KAVOUNAS, RE. 
General Manager 

STAFF REPORT 

DATE: October 18, 2018 

TO: Advisory Committee 

SUBJECT: Cash Disbursement Report - Financial Report B1 (August 31, 2018) 

SUMMARY 

Issue: Record of Cash Disbursements for the month of August 2018. 

Recommendation: Receive and file Cash Disbursements for August 2018 as presented. 

Financial Impact: Funds disbursed were included in the FY 2018/19 "Amended" Watermaster 
Budget. 

Future Consideration  
Advisory Committee — October 18, 2018: Receive and File 
Watermaster Board — October 25, 2018: Receive and File (Normal Course of Business) 

ACTIONS:  
Appropriative Pool — October 11, 2018: Received and filed 
Non-Agricultural Pool — October 11, 2018: Moved unanimously to receive and file, without approval 
Agricultural Pool — October 11, 2018: Received and filed 
Advisory Committee — October 18, 2018: 
Watermaster Board — October 25, 2018: 

P5 



Cash Disbursement Report - Financial Report B1 October 18, 2018 
Page 2 of 2 

BACKGROUND 

A monthly cash disbursement report is provided to keep all members apprised of Watermaster 
expenditures. 

DISCUSSION 

Total cash disbursements during the month of August 2018 were $2,196,411.78. 

The most significant expenditures during the month were to Inland Empire Utilities Agency in the amounts 
of $1,463,581.30 and $29,590.05 (check number 20982 dated August 29, 2018 and check number 20986 
dated August 29, 2018); Wildermuth Environmental, Inc. in the amounts of $146,362.64 and $198,093.65 
(check number 20936 dated August 2, 2018 and check number 20967 dated August 20, 2018); and 
Brownstein Hyatt Farber Schreck in the amount of $106,631.26 (check number 20968 dated August 20, 
2018). 

ATTACHMENTS 
1. Financial Report- B1 

P6 



CHINO BASIN WATERMASTER 
Cash Disbursements For The Month of 

August 2018 

Financial Report - B1 

Type Date Num Name Memo Account Paid Amount 

Bill Pmt -Check 08/01/2018 20924 ACCENT COMPUTER SOLUTIONS, INC. 122798 1012 • Bank of America Gen'l Ckg 

Bill 08/01/2018 122798 Monthly Service- August 2018 6052.4 • IT Managed Services 4,226.00 

Overwatch - August 2018 6052.5 • IT Data Backup/Storage 699.00 

OmniCloud- August 2018 6052.5 • IT Data Backup/Storage 96.00 

Office 365 subscriptions- August 2018 6054 • Computer Software 49.80 

TOTAL 5,070.80 

Bill Pmt -Check 08/01/2018 20925 CENTURYLINK 71851276 1012 • Bank of America Gen'l Ckg 

Bill 07/24/2018 71851278 7/17/18-8/16/18 6053 • Internet Expense 1,050.47 

TOTAL 1,050.47 

Bill Pmt -Check 08/01/2018 20926 COMPUTER NETWORK 103861 1012 • Bank of America Gen'l Ckg 

Bill 07/24/2018 103861 Hard drive repair for 2 laptops 6055 • Computer Hardware 528.00 

TOTAL 528.00 

Bill Pmt -Check 08/01/2018 20927 EUROFINS EATON ANALYTICAL L0401772 1012 • Bank of America Gen'l Ckg 
Bill 06/30/2018 L0401772 L0401772 7108.4 • Hydraulic Control-Lab Svcs 1,240.00 

TOTAL 1,240.00 

Bill Pmt -Check 08/01/2018 20928 LOEB & LOEB LLP 1778682 1012 • Bank of America Gen'l Ckg 
Bill 06/30/2018 1778682 Non-Ag Pool Legal Services - June 2018 8567 • Non-Ag Legal Service 8,413.20 

TOTAL 8,413.20 

Bill Pmt -Check 08/01/2018 20929 STANDARD INSURANCE CO. Policy # 00-649299-0009 1012 • Bank of America Gen'l Ckg 

Bill 07/24/2018 006492990009 Policy # 00-649299-0009 60191 • Life & Disab.Ins Benefits 776.96 

TOTAL 776.96 

Bill Pmt -Check 08/01/2018 20930 STATE COMPENSATION INSURANCE FUND 1970970-18 1012 • Bank of America Gen'l Ckg 

Bill 06/30/2018 1970970-17 Final premium statement for 2017 60183 - Worker's Comp Insurance 550.99 

TOTAL 550.99 

Bill Pmt -Check 08/01/2018 20931 THE HOWARD E. NYHART CONPANY, INC. 0141317 1012 • Bank of America Gen'l Ckg 

Bill 06/30/2018 0141317 FYE 6/30/2018 GASB 75 Report 6062.5 • Audit Support Services 4,250.00 

TOTAL 4,250.00 

Bill Pmt -Check 08/01/2018 20932 ULLOA, EUNICE Board Member Compensation 1012 • Bank of America Gen'l Ckg 

Bill 06/14/2018 6/14 Appro Pool Mtg 6/14/18 Appropriative Pool meeting 6311 • Board Member Compensation 125.00 

Bill 06/21/2018 6/21 Advisory Comm 6/21/18 Advisory Committee meeting 6311 • Board Member Compensation 125.00 

Bill 06/28/2018 6/28 Board Mtg 6/28/18 Board meeting 6311 • Board Member Compensation 125.00 

Page 1 of 12 



Type Date Num 
.....i........., 

CHINO BASIN WATERMASTER 
Cash Disbursements For The Month of 

August 2018 

Name Memo 

Financial Report - B1 

Account Paid Amount 

TOTAL 375.00 

Bill Pmt -Check 08/01/2018 20933 UNITED HEALTHCARE 052515168889 1012 • Bank of America Gen'l Ckg 

Bill 07/24/2018 052515168889 Dental Insurance Premium - August 2018 60182.2 • Dental & Vision Ins 688.74 

TOTAL 688.74 

Bill Pmt -Check 08/01/2018 20934 VER1ZON WIRELESS 9810841828 1012 • Bank of America Gen'l Ckg 

Bill 07/24/2018 9810841828 Acct #642073270-00001 7103.7 • Grdvvtr Qual-Computer Svc 100.04 

TOTAL 100.04 

Bill Pmt -Check 08/01/2018 20935 WESTERN MUNICIPAL WATER DISTRICT Board Member Compensation 1012 • Bank of America Gen'l Ckg 

Bill 06/28/2018 6/28 Board Mtg 6/28/18 Board Meeting - Galleano attendance 6311 • Board Member Compensation 125.00 

TOTAL 125.00 

Bill Pmt -Check 08/02/2018 20936 WILDERMUTH ENVIRONMENTAL INC 1012 • Bank of America Gen'l Ckg 

Bill 06/30/2018 2018177 2018177 6906.31 • OBMP-Pool, Adv. Board Mtgs 11,843.96 

Bill 06/30/2018 2018178 2018178 6906.32 • OBMP-Other General Meetings 2,247.65 

Bill 06/30/2018 2018179 2018179 6906.74 • OBMP-Mat'l Phy. Injury Requests 2,086.60 

Bill 06/30/2018 2018180 2018180 6906.71 • OBMP-Data Req.-CBWM Staff 2,949.60 
-13 
CO Bill 06/30/2018 2018181 2018181 6906 • OBMP Engineering Services 1,986.10 

Bill 06/30/2018 2018182 2018182 6906.81 • Prepare Annual Reports 120.50 

Bill 06/30/2018 2018183 2018183 7103.3 • Grdwtr Qual-Engineering 12,953.00 

Bill 06/30/2018 2018184 2018184 7104.3 • Grdwtr Level-Engineering 27,629.33 

Bill 06/30/2018 2018185 2018185 7107.2 • Grd Level-Engineering 12,427.50 

Bill 06/30/2018 2018186 2018186 7107.2 • Grd Level-Engineering 1,558.84 

Bill 06/30/2018 2018187 2018187 7108.31 • Hydraulic Control - PBHSP 984.80 

Bill 06/30/2018 2018188 2018188 7202.2 • Engineering Svc 587.06 

Bill 06/30/2018 2018189 2018189 7402 • PE4-Engineering 12,579.25 

Bill 06/30/2018 2018190 2018190 7402.10 • PE4 - Northwest MZ1 Area Proj. 4,839.65 

Bill 06/30/2018 2018191 2018191 7510 • PE6&7-IEUA Salinity Mgmt. Plan 26,240.90 

Bill 06/30/2018 2018192 2018192 7602 • PE8&9-Engineering 22,748.40 

Bill 06/30/2018 2018193 2018193 6906.27 • HCP Mtgs/Tech. Review-IEUA Cost 2,579.50 

TOTAL 146,362.64 

Bill Pmt -Check 08/03/2018 ACH 080318 PUBLIC EMPLOYEES RETIREMENT SYSTEM Payor #3493 1012 • Bank of America Gen'l Ckg 

General Journal 07/28/2018 07/28/2018 PUBLIC EMPLOYEES' RETIREMENT SYSTEM CalPERS Retirement for 07/15/18-07/28/18 2000 • Accounts Payable 6,886.20 

TOTAL 6,886.20 

Bill Pmt -Check 08/07/2018 ACH 080718 CALPERS 1394905143 1012 • Bank of America Gen'l Ckg 

Bill 07/16/2018 1394905143 1394905143 60182.1 • Medical Insurance 7,827.63 

Page 2 of 12 



Type Date Num 
11111111111111111MIIIIIIIIIMINIII 

CHINO BASIN WATERMASTER 
Cash Disbursements For The Month of 

August 2018 

Name Memo Account 

Financial Report - B1 

Paid Amount 

TOTAL 7,827.63 

Bill Pmt -Check 08/07/2018 20937 ACCENT COMPUTER SOLUTIONS, INC. 122920 1012 • Bank of America Gen'l Ckg 
Bill 07/31/2018 122920 Workstation-Gregory-Balance Due 6055 • Computer Hardware 899.20 

TOTAL 899.20 

Bill Pmt -Check 08/07/2018 20938 CHEF DAVE'S CAFE & CATERING 8361 1012 • Bank of America Gen'l Ckg 

Bill 07/26/2018 8361 Lunch for 7/26/18 Watermaster Board meeting 6312 • Meeting Expenses 681.50 

TOTAL 681.50 

Bill Pmt -Check 08/07/2018 20939 CHINO CHAMPION NEWSPAPER 8043 1012 • Bank of America Gen'l Ckg 
Bill 07/16/2018 8043 Subscription-Chino Champion newspaper-1 year 6112 • Subscriptions/Publications 35.00 

TOTAL 35.00 

Bill Pmt -Check 08/07/2018 20940 ELIE, STEVEN Board Member Compensation 1012 • Bank of America Gen'l Ckg 

Bill 07/23/2018 7/23 Special Board 7/23/18 Special Board Meeting 6311 • Board Member Compensation 125.00 

TOTAL 125.00 

Bill Pmt -Check 08/07/2018 20941 FILIPPI, GINO Board Member Compensation 1012 • Bank of America Gen'l Ckg 

Co Bill 07/23/2018 7/23 Special Board 7/23/18 Special Board Meeting 6311 • Board Member Compensation 125.00 

Bill 07/26/2018 7/26 Board Mtg 7/26/18 Board Meeting 6311 • Board Member Compensation 125.00 

TOTAL 250.00 

Bill Pmt -Check 08/07/2018 20942 KUHN, BOB Board Member Compensation 1012 • Bank of America Gen'l Ckg 

Bill 07/05/2018 7/05 Exec Committee 7/05/18 Pool Chair & Executive Committee Mtg. 6311 • Board Member Compensation 125.00 

Bill 07/12/2018 7/12 Admin Mtg 7/12/18 Administrative & Check Signing Meeting 6311 • Board Member Compensation 125.00 

Bill 07/19/2018 7/19 Executive Comm 7/19/18 Pool Chair & Executive Committee Mtg. 6311 • Board Member Compensation 125.00 . 
Bill 07/23/2018 7/23 Special Board 7/23/18 Special Board Meeting 6311 • Board Member Compensation 125.00 

Bill 07/24/2018 7/24 Admin Mtg 7/24/18 Administrative & GM Meeting 6311 • Board Member Compensation 125.00 

Bill 07/26/2018 7/26 Board Mtg 7/26/18 Board Meeting 6311 • Board Member Compensation 125.00 

TOTAL 750.00 

Bill Pmt -Check 08/07/2018 20943 PARKER, KATHERINE Board Member Compensation 1012 • Bank of America Gen.! Ckg 

Bill 07/26/2018 7/26 Board Mtg 7/26/18 Board Meeting 6311 • Board Member Compensation 125.00 

TOTAL 125.00 

Bill Pmt -Check 08/07/2018 20944 PAYCHEX 2018072600 1012 • Bank of America Gen'l Ckg 

Bill 07/31/2018 2018072600 July 2018 6012 • Payroll Services 440.47 

TOTAL 440.47 

Page 3 of 12 



Type Date Num 

CHINO BASIN WATERMASTER 
Cash Disbursements For The Month of 

August 2018 

Name Memo Account 

Financial Report - B1 

Paid Amount 

Bill Pmt -Check 08/07/2018 20945 PIETERSMA, RONALD Ag Pool Member Compensation 1012 • Bank of America Gen'l Ckg 

Bill 07/19/2018 7/19 Ag Pool Mtg 7/19/18 Ag Pool Meeting 8411 • Compensation 25.00 

7/19/18 Ag Pool Meeting 8470 • Ag Meeting Attend -Special 100.00 

TOTAL 125.00 

Bill Pmt -Check 08/07/2018 20946 READY REFRESH BY NESTLE 0023230253 1012 • Bank of America Gen'l Ckg 

Bill 07/31/2018 0023230253 Office Water Bottle - July 2018 6031.7 • Other Office Supplies 79.26 

TOTAL 79.26 

Bill Pmt -Check 08/07/2018 20947 RR FRANCHISING, INC. 59463 1012 • Bank of America Gen'l Ckg 
Bill 08/01/2018 59463 Janitorial Service - August 2018 6024 • Building Repair & Maintenance 740.00 

TOTAL 740.00 

Bill Pmt -Check 08/07/2018 20948 STATE COMPENSATION INSURANCE FUND 1970970-18 1012 • Bank of America Gen'l Ckg 

Bill 08/01/2018 1970970-18 Monthly premium 7/26/18-8/26/18 60183 • Worker's Comp insurance 552.42 

TOTAL 552.42 

Bill Pmt -Check 08/07/2018 20949 VISION SERVICE PLAN 00-101789-0001 1012 • Bank of America Gen'l Ckg 

Bill 07/31/2018 001017890001 Vision Insurance Premium - August 2018 60182.2 • Dental & Vision Ins 63.18 

Tt1TAL 63.18 

Bill Pmt -Check 08/07/2018 20950 WESTERN MUNICIPAL WATER DISTRICT Board Member Compensation 1012 • Bank of America Gen'l Ckg 

Bill 07/23/2018 7/23 Special Board 7/23/18 Special Board Mtg. - Galleano attendance 6311 • Board Member Compensation 125.00 

Bill 07/26/2018 7/26 Board Mtg 7/26/18 Board Meeting - Galleano attendance 6311 • Board Member Compensation 125.00 

TOTAL 250.00 

Bill Pmt -Check 08/07/2018 20951 YUKON DISPOSAL SERVICE 08-K2 213849 1012 • Bank of America Gen'l Ckg 

Bill 08/01/2018 08-k2 213849 Disposal Service - August 2018 6024 • Building Repair & Maintenance 117.14 

TOTAL 117.14 

General Journal 08/11/2018 08/11/2018 Payroll and Taxes for 07/29/18-08/11/18 Payroll and Taxes for 07/29/18-08/11/18 1012 • Bank of America Gen'l Ckg 

Direct Deposits for 07/29/18-08/11/18 1012 • Bank of America Gen'l Ckg 26,605.90 

Payroll Taxes for 07/29/18-08/11/18 1012 • Bank of America Gen'l Ckg 8,968.54 

ICMA-RC 457(b) Employee Deductions for 07/29/18-08/11/18 1012 • Bank of America Gen'l Ckg 4,541.43 

ICMA-RC 401(a) Employee Deductions for 07/29/18-08/11/18 1012 • Bank of America Gen'l Ckg 1,311.76 

TOTAL 41,427.63 

Bill Pmt -Check 08/14/2018 20952 ACCENT COMPUTER SOLUTIONS, INC. 1012 • Bank of America Gen'l Ckg 

Bill 07/31/2018 122947 RAM for AN desktop 6055 • Computer Hardware 204.77 

Bill 07/31/2018 123011 Progress invoice Cloud Storage-FTP Replacement 6052.6 • IT Services/Projects 1,200.00 

Page 4 of 12 



Type Date Num 

CHINO BASIN WATERMASTER 
Cash Disbursements For The Month of 

August 2018 

Name Memo Account 

Financial Report - B1 

Paid Amount 

TOTAL 1,404.77 

Bill Pmt -Check 08/14/2018 20953 ACWA JOINT POWERS INSURANCE AUTHORIP 0567715 1012 Bank of America Gen'l Ckg 

Bill 08/08/2018 0567715 Prepayment - September 2018 1409 • Prepaid Life, BAD&D & LTD 207.62 

August 2018 60191 • Life & Disabins Benefits 224.74 

TOTAL 432.36 

Bill Pmt -Check 08/14/2018 20954 APPLIED COMPUTER TECHNOLOGIES 2994 1012 • Bank of America Gen'l Ckg 

Bill 07/31/2018 2994 Database Consulting Services - July 2018 6052.2 • Applied Computer Technol 3,900.00 

TOTAL 3,900.00 

Bill Pmt -Check 08/14/2018 20955 BANK OF AMERICA )000(-XX)0(4000(-9341 1012 • Bank of America Gen'l Ckg 

Bill 07/31/2018 XXXX-XXXX-X)=-9341 Miscellanous office supplies 6031.7 • Other Office Supplies 298.43 

50% deposit-Gregory workstation 6055 • Computer Hardware 899.20 

Printer for front office 6055 • Computer Hardware 289.85 

Farewell lunch for R. Zapien 6141.3 • Admin Meetings 96.04 

Printer for Sr. Accountant office 6055 • Computer Hardware 462.25 

Employee recruitment CVI's 6016 • New Employee Search Costs 520.00 

Employee recruitment CVI's 6016 • New Employee Search Costs 200.00 
-L Printer for CFO office 6055 • Computer Hardware 317.85 

Miscellaneous office supplies 6031.7 • Other Office Supplies 252.62 

PK meeting w/T. Layton, V. Jew 8312 • Meeting Expenses 50.69 

Court prep hearing preparation mtg #1 6909.1 • OBMP Meetings 50.00 

Court prep hearing preparation mtg #1 6909.1 • OBMP Meetings 15.00 

Board officers mtg/Pool chair 6312 • Meeting Expenses 115.00 

Court prep hearing preparation mtg #2 6909.1 • OBMP Meetings 60.00 

Staff lunch pre RIPCom mtg at IEUA 6909.1 • OBMP Meetings 60.00 

Reg.-PK-attend 1st Annual W. Grdwtr Congress 6193.2 • Conference - Registration Fee 610.00 

Early bird checkin-PK flight-GRAC 6173 • Airfare/Mileage 15.00 

Early bird checkin-PK flight-GRAC 6173 • Airfare/Mileage 15.00 

Flight-PK-attend GRAC 1st Annual Grdwtr Congres: 6173 • Airfare/Mileage 99.89 

Lunch-CGC Meeting held at Watermaste 6141.3 • Admin Meetings 86.00 

Lunch-CGC Meeting held at Watermaster 6141.3 • Admin Meetings 26.40 

Miscellaneous office supplies 6031.7 • Other Office Supplies 14.20 

Reg.-PK-attend 2018 Fall Conf. and Workshop 6193.2 • Conference- Registration Fee 555.00 

Reg.-ETF-attend 2018 Fall Conf. and Workshop 6193.2 • Conference - Registration Fee 555.00 

PK mtg w/T. Layton, V. Jew 8312 • Meeting Expenses 49.88 

PK, JJ, AN meeting 6141.3 • Admin Meetings 58.40 

TOTAL 5,771.70 

Pages of 12 



Type Date Num 
.........=....... 

CHINO BASIN WATERMASTER 
Cash Disbursements For The Month of 

August 2018 

Name Memo Account 

Financial Report - B1 

Paid Amount 

Bill Pmt -Check 08/14/2018 20956 COMPUTER NETWORK 103900 1012 • Bank of America Gen'l Ckg 

Bill 08/08/2018 103900 Hard drive repair for laptop 6055 • Computer Hardware 367.44 

TOTAL 367.44 

Bill Pmt -Check 08/14/2018 20957 CORELOGIC INFORMATION SOLUTIONS 81909434 1012 • Bank of America Gen'l Ckg 

Bill 07/31/2018 81909434 81909434 7103.7 • Grdwtr Qual-Computer Svc 62.50 

81909434 7101.4 • Prod Monitor-Computer 62.50 

TOTAL 125.00 

Bill Pmt -Check 08/14/2018 20958 DE HAAN, HENRY Ag Pool Member Compensation 1012 • Bank of America Gen'l Ckg 

Bill 07/12/2018 7/12 Ag Pool Mtg 7/12/18 Ag Pool Meeting 8411 - Compensation 25.00 

7/12/18 Ag Pool Meeting 8470 • Ag Meeting Attend -Special 100.00 

TOTAL 125.00 

Bill Pmt -Check 08/14/2018 20959 DI PRIMIO, ROBERT Board Member Compensation 1012 • Bank of America Gen'l Ckg 

Bill 07/05/2018 7/05 Exec Committee 7/05/18 Executive Committee mtg w/Approp Pool 6311 • Board Member Compensation 125.00 

Bill 07/19/2018 7/19 Exec Committee 7/19/18 Executive Committee mtg w/Non-Ag Pool 6311 • Board Member Compensation 125.00 

Bill 07/23/2018 7/23 Special Board 7/23/18 Special Board Mtg 6311 • Board Member Compensation 125.00 

Bill 73 07/24/2018 7/24 Board Agenda 7/24/18 Board Agenda Preview 6311 • Board Member Compensation 125.00 
—i, Bill 07/26/2018 7/26 Board mtg 7/26/18 Board meeting 6311 • Board Member Compensation 125.00 
IV 

625.00 TOTAL 

Bill Pmt -Check 08/14/2018 20960 EGOSCUE LAW GROUP, INC. 12020 1012 • Bank of America Gen'l Ckg 

Bill 07/31/2018 12020 Ag Pool Legal Services - July 2018 8467 • Ag Legal & Technical Services 35,400.00 

TOTAL 35,400.00 

Bill Pmt -Check 08/14/2018 20961 FEDAK & BROWN LLP Progress Billing 1012 • Bank of America Gen'l Ckg 

Bill 07/31/2018 Progress Billing - July 2018 6062 • Audit Services 1,500.00 

TOTAL 1,500.00 

Bill Pmt -Check 08/14/2018 20962 FEENSTRA, BOB Ag Pool Member Compensation 1012 • Bank of America Gen'l Ckg 

Bill 07/12/2018 7/12 Ag Pool Mtg 7/12/18 Ag Pool mtg 8470 • Ag Meeting Attend -Special 125.00 

Bill 07/19/2018 7/19 Advisory Comm 7/19/18 Advisory Committee meeting 8470 • Ag Meeting Attend -Special 125.00 

Bill 07/23/2018 7/23 Special Board 7/23/18 Special Board meeting 8470 • Ag Meeting Attend -Special 125.00 

Bill 07/25/2018 7/25 RIPCom Mtg 7/25/18 RIPCom meeting 8470 • Ag Meeting Attend -Special 125.00 

Bill 07/26/2018 7/26 Board Mtg 7/26/18 Board meeting 8470 • Ag Meeting Attend -Special 125.00 

TOTAL 625.00 

Bill Pmt -Check 08/14/2018 20963 FIRST LEGAL NETWORK LLC 40019787 1012 • Bank of America Gen'l Ckg 

Bill 07/31/2018 40019787 Court filings 7/11, 7/13, 7/17, 7/23 and 7/26 6061.5 • Court Filing Services 479.30 

Page 6 of 12 



TOTAL 

TOTAL 

7:1 _.., 
f ei AL 

TOTAL 

TOTAL 

TOTAL 

CHINO BASIN WATERMASTER 
Cash Disbursements For The Month of 

August 2018 

Financial Report - B1 

Type Date 
................... 

Num Name Memo Account Paid Amount 

479.30 

Bill Pmt -Check 08/14/2018 20964 PREMIERE GLOBAL SERVICES 26223659 1012 • Bank of America Gen'l Ckg 
Bill 07/31/2018 26223659 Non-Ag Pool mtg call on 7/19/18 8512 • Meeting Expense 40.41 

Fee - General 6022 • Telephone 49.00 

Fee - Confidential 6022 • Telephone 49.00 

TM4 call on 6/27 6909.1 • OBMP Meetings 6.18 

Advisory Committee request for assistance 6212 • Meeting Expense 6.17 

Advisory Committee request for assistance 6212 • Meeting Expense 6.19 

WM coordination call on 7/17 6909.1 • OBMP Meetings 12.48 

Special Board meeting call on 7/23 6312 • Meeting Expenses 15.68 

Special Board meeting call on 7/23 6312 • Meeting Expenses 6.19 

Board meeting agenda preview call on 7/24 6312 • Meeting Expenses 14.47 

Team discussion call re WM topics on 7/24 6909.1 • OBMP Meetings 33.87 

GRA presentation review call on 7/25 6909.1 • OBMP Meetings 6.20 

Service fee 6022 • Telephone 9.35 

255.19 

Bill Pmt -Check 08/14/2018 20965 SPECIALIZED SERVICES OF SO CAL 2042 1012 • Bank of America Gen'l Ckg 
Bill 08/01/2018 2042 CPR, AED, and Basic First Aid Training for staff 6192 • Seminars - General 320.00 

320.00 

Bill Pmt -Check 08/14/2018 20966 UNION 76 7076-2245-3035-5049 1012 • Bank of America Gen'l Ckg 
Bill 07/31/2018 7076224530355049 Vehicle Fuel - July 2018 6175 • Vehicle Fuel 171.84 

171.84 

Check 08/15/2018 08/15/2018 Service Charge Service Charge 1012 • Bank of America Gen'l Ckg 

Service Charge 6039.1 • Banking Service Charges 629.26 

629.26 

Bill Pmt -Check 08/16/2018 ACH 081618 PUBLIC EMPLOYEES RETIREMENT SYSTEM Payor #3493 1012 • Bank of America Gen'l Ckg 

General Journal 08/11/2018 08/11/2018 PUBLIC EMPLOYEES' RETIREMENT SYSTEM CalPERS Retirement for 07/29/18-08/11/18 2000 • Accounts Payable 6,886.20 

6,886.20 

Bill Pmt -Check 08/20/2018 20967 WILDERMUTH ENVIRONMENTAL INC 1012 • Bank of America Gen'l Ckg 

Bill 07/31/2018 2018207 2018207 6906.31 • OBMP-Pool, Adv. Board Mtgs 6,853.55 

Bill 07/31/2018 2018208 2018208 6906.32 • OBMP-Other General Meetings 1,737.25 

Bill 07/31/2018 2018209 2018209 6906.74 • OBMP-Mat'l Phy. Injury Requests 513.30 

Bill 07/31/2018 2018210 2018210 6906.71 • OBMP-Data Req.-CBWM Staff 16,480.98 

Bill 07/31/2018 2018211 2018211 6906.72 • OBMP-Data Req.-Non CBWM Staff 1,381.70 

Page 7 of 12 



Type Date 
IIIIMIMONIMININIIIMMIIIIIIII 

CHINO BASIN WATERMASTER 
Cash Disbursements For The Month of 

August 2018 

Num Name Memo 

Financial Report - B1 

Account Paid Amount 

Bill 07/31/2018 2018212 2018212 6906.22 • Water Rights Compliance Rprting 7,572.65 
Bill 07/31/2018 2018213 2018213 6906 • OBMP Engineering Services 774.80 
Bill 07/31/2018 2018214 2018214 6906.9 - OBMP-2018 RMPU Master Update 26,983.90 
Bill 07/31/2018 2018215 2018215 6906.15 • Integrated Model Mtgs-IEUA Cost 2,360.00 
Bill 07/31/2018 2018216 2018216 6906.81 • Prepare Annual Reports 707.60 
Bill 07/31/2018 2018217 2018217 7103.3 • Grdwtr Qual-Engineering 19,276.72 
Bill 07/31/2018 2018218 2018218 7104.3 • Grdwtr Level-Engineering 8,398.87 
Bill 07/31/2018 2018219 2018219 7107.2 • Grd Level-Engineering 4,386.18 

WSP USA Inc. 7107.6 • Grd Level-Contract Svcs 9,370.71 
Bill 07/31/2018 2018220 2018220 7107.2 • Grd Level-Engineering 102.00 

Neva Ridge Technologies, Inc. 7107.3 - Grd Level-SAR Imagery 12,000.00 
Bill 07/31/2018 2018221 2018221 7402 • PE4-Engineering 24,826.40 
Bill 07/31/2018 2018222 2018222 7402.10 • PE4 - Northwest MZ1 Area Proj. 1,619.64 

Bill 07/31/2018 2018223 2018223 7202.2 • Engineering Svc 2,010.90 
Bill 07/31/2018 2018224 2018224 7502 • PE6&7-Engineering 856.00 
Bill 07/31/2018 2018225 2018225 7602 • PE8&9-Engineering 49,880.50 

TOTAL 198,093.65 

—CI 
Bill Pmt -Check 08/20/2018 20968 BROWNSTEIN HYATT FARBER SCHRECK 1012 - Bank of America Gen'l Ckg 

—L Bill 07/31/2018 730709 730709 6078 • BHFS Legal - Miscellaneous 20,422.80 
-P. 

Out of Office Copying/Printing 6078 • BHFS Legal - Miscellaneous 15.50 

Mileage/Parking Expense 6275 • BHFS Legal - Advisory Committee 36.67 

Mileage/Parking Expense 8375 • BHFS Legal - Appropriative Pool 12.26 

Mileage/Parking Expense 8475 • BHFS Legal - Agricultural Pool 12.26 

Mileage/Parking Expense 8575 • BHFS Legal - Non-Ag Pool 12.26 
Bill 07/31/2018 730710 Personnel Matters 6073 • BHFS Legal - Personnel Matters 445.50 

GM Contract Amendment 6073 • BHFS Legal - Personnel Matters 3,287.25 
Bill 07/31/2018 730711 730711 6907.34 • Santa Ana River Water Rights 278.10 
Bill 07/31/2018 730712 730712 6907.36 • Santa Ana River Habitat 141.75 

Bill 07/31/2018 730713 730713 6275 • BHFS Legal - Advisory Committee 2,397.93 

Bill 07/31/2018 730714 730714 6375 • BHFS Legal - Board Meeting 9,225.45 

Mileage/Parking Expense 6375 • BHFS Legal - Board Meeting 36.67 

Delivery/Ground Transportation 6375 • BHFS Legal - Board Meeting 250.00 

Bill 07/31/2018 730715 730715 8375 • BHFS Legal - Appropriative Pool 1,826.55 

Bill 07/31/2018 730717 730717 8475 • BHFS Legal - Agricultural Pool 1,826.55 

Bill 07/31/2018 730719 730719 8575 • BHFS Legal - Non-Ag Pool 1,826.55 

Bill 07/31/2018 730722 730722 6071 • BHFS Legal - Court Coordination 32,030.55 

Mileage/Parking Expense 6071 • BHFS Legal - Court Coordination 36.78 

Mileage/Parking Expense 6071 • BHFS Legal - Court Coordination 36.78 

Bill 07/31/2018 730723 730723 6077 • BHFS Legal - Party Status Maint 3,192.75 

Page 8 of 12 



Type Date Num 

CHINO BASIN 
Cash Disbursements 

August 

Name 

WATERMASTER 
For The Month of 

2018 

Memo Account 

Financial Report - B1 

Paid Amount 

Bill 07/31/2018 730724 730724 6907.39 • Recharge Master Plan 2,405.70 

Mileage/Parking Expense 6907.39 • Recharge Master Plan 36.58 

Bill 07/31/2018 730725 730725 6907.40 • Storage Agreements 603.45 

Bill 07/31/2018 730726 730726 6907.42 • Safe Yield Recalculation 19,820.70 

Delivery/Ground Transportation-2 trips 6907.42- Safe Yield Recalculation 300.00 

Lodging-5 nights 6907.42 • Safe Yield Recalculation 1,125.00 

Mileage/Parking Expense 6907.42 • Safe Yield Recalculation 36.79 

Bill 07/31/2018 730727 730727 6907.44 • SGMA Compliance 4,915.35 

Mileage/Parking Expense 6907.44 • SGMA Compliance 36.78 

TOTAL 106,631.26 

Bill Pmt -Check 08/20/2018 20969 CUCAMONGA VALLEY WATER DISTRICT 1012 • Bank of America Gen'l Ckg 

Bill 08/16/2018 Office lease due September 1, 2018 1422 • Prepaid Rent 6,608.80 

TOTAL 6,608.80 

Bill Pmt -Check 08/20/2018 20970 EUROFINS EATON ANALYTICAL 1012 • Bank of America Gen'l Ckg 

Bill 07/10/2018 L0404635 L0404635 7108.4 • Hydraulic Control-Lab Svcs 440.00 
Bill 07/12/2018 L0404636 L0404636 7108.4 • Hydraulic Control-Lab Svcs 1,194.00 

IiITAL 

cm 

1,634.00 

Bill Pmt -Check 08/20/2018 20971 GREAT AMERICA LEASING CORP. 23188608 1012 • Bank of America Gen'l Ckg 

Bill 08/17/2018 23188608 Invoice for August 2018 6043.1 • Ricoh Lease Fee 2,605.07 

2018 San Bernardino County Property Tax Fee 6043.3 • Ricoh Property Tax Fees 490.44 

TOTAL 3,095.51 

Bill Pmt -Check 08/20/2018 20972 JOHN J. SCHATZ Appropriative Pool Legal Services 1012 • Bank of America Gen'l Ckg 

Bill 07/31/2018 July 2018 8367 • Legal Service 7,844.00 

TOTAL 7,844.00 

Bill Pmt -Check 08/20/2018 20973 NELSON, ANNA Employee Reimbursement 1012 • Bank of America Gen'l Ckg 

Bill 08/15/2018 Reimburse for Notary Recertification 6192 • Seminars - General 209.06 

TOTAL 209.06 

Bill Pmt -Check 08/20/2018 20974 OFFICE & ERGONOMIC SOLUTIONS, INC. Office Furniture 1012 • Bank of America Gen'l Ckg 

Bill 08/14/2018 Final Payment-office furniture 1840 • Capital Assets 5,078.91 

TOTAL 5,078.91 

Bill Pmt -Check 08/20/2018 20975 PETTY CASH 2737-2750 1012 • Bank of America Gen'l Ckg 

Bill 07/31/2018 2737-2750 Lunch for 6/15/18 Ag Pool meeting 8412 • Meeting Expenses 43.62 

Supplies for washing field trucks 6151 • Small Tools & Equipment 20.75 

Page 9 of 12 



CHINO BASIN WATERMASTER 
Cash Disbursements For The Month of 

August 2018 

Financial Report - B1 

Type Date Num Name Memo Account Paid Amount 

Parking/mileage reimbursement-CalPers Seminar 6192 • Seminars - General 

Miscellaneous office supplies 6031.7 • Other Office Supplies 

Supplies-Board Exec Committee & Pool Chairs 6312 • Meeting Expenses 

Supplies for June and July staff meetings 6141.3 • Admin Meetings 

ETF mtg w/IEUA 8312 • Meeting Expenses 

50.43 

124.82 

18.44 

28.93 

35.58 

TOTAL 322.57 

Bill Pmt -Check 08/20/2018 20976 PIERSON, JEFFREY Board and Ag Pool Member Compensation 1012 • Bank of America Gen'l Ckg 

Bill 07/05/2018 7/05 Exec Comm Mtg 7/05/18 Exec. Comm.- Board & Appropriative Pool 6311 • Board Member Compensation 125.00 

Bill 07/10/2018 7/10 Admin Mtg 7/10/18 Admin. meeting w/GM-conference call 6311 • Board Member Compensation 125.00 

Bill 07/12/2018 7/12 Ag Pool Mtg 7/12/18 Ag Pool Meeting 8411 • Compensation 25.00 

7/12/18 Ag Pool Meeting 8470 • Ag Meeting Attend -Special 100.00 

Bill 07/19/2018 7/19 Special Ag Mtg 7/19/18 Special Ag Pool Executive Strategy mtg. 8411 • Compensation 25.00 

7/19/18 Special Ag Pool Executive Strategy mtg. 8470 • Ag Meeting Attend -Special 100.00 

Bill 07/19/2018 7/19 Exec Committee 7/19/19 Exec. Comm.-Board & Non-Ag Pool 6311 • Board Member Compensation 125.00 

Bill 07/23/2018 7/23 Admin Meeting 7/23/18 Admin. mtg.w/GM-Pool Chairs conf. call 6311 • Board Member Compensation 125.00 
Bill 07/24/2018 7/24 Admin Meeting 7/24/18 Admin. Mtg.w/GM-conference call 6311 • Board Member Compensation 125.00 

TOTAL 875.00 

--L Bill Pmt -Check 08/20/2018 20977 STAULA, MARY L Retiree Medical 1012 • Bank of America Gen'l Ckg 

Bill 08/31/2018 Retiree Medical 60182.4 • Retiree Medical 25.17 

TOTAL 25.17 

Bill Pmt -Check 08/20/2018 20978 UNITED HEALTHCARE 052502293904 1012 • Bank of America Gen'l Ckg 

Bill 08/15/2018 052502293904 Dental Insurance Premium - September 2018 60182.2 • Dental & Vision Ins 433.36 

TOTAL 433.36 

Bill Pmt -Check 08/20/2018 20979 VERIZON WIRELESS 9812160995 1012 • Bank of America Gen'l Ckg 

Bill 08/15/2018 9812160995 Acct #470810953-00001 6022 • Telephone 336.37 

TOTAL 336.37 

Bill Pmt -Check 08/23/2018 ACH 082318 PUBLIC EMPLOYEES' RETIREMENT SYSTEM Payor #3493 1012 Bank of America Gen'l Ckg 

Bill 08/01/2018 15345627 Annual Unfunded Accrued Liability for Plan 3299 60180 • Employers PERS Expense 5,456.55 

TOTAL 5,456.55 

General Journal 08/25/2018 08/25/2018 Payroll and Taxes for 08/12/18-08/25/18 Payroll and Taxes for 08/12/18-08/25/18 1012 • Bank of America Gen'l Ckg 

Direct Deposits for 08/12/18-08/25/18 1012 • Bank of America Gen'l Ckg 24,767.98 

Payroll Taxes for 08/12/18-08/25/18 1012 • Bank of America Gen'l Ckg 7,907.59 

ICMA-RC 457(b) Employee Deductions for 08/12/18-08/25/18 1012 • Bank of America Gen'l Ckg 4,189.76 

ICMA-RC 401(a) Employee Deductions for 08/12/18-08/25/18 1012 • Bank of America Gen'l Ckg 1,311.76 

Page 10 of 12 



CHINO BASIN WATERMASTER 
Cash Disbursements For The Month of 

August 2018 

Financial Report - B1 

Type Date Num Name Memo Account Paid Amount 

TOTAL 38,177.09 

Bill Pmt -Check 08/29/2018 20980 CENTURYLINK 72576659 1012 • Bank of America Gen'l Ckg 

Bill 08/23/2018 72576659 8/17/18-9/16/18 6053 • Internet Expense 1,050.46 

TOTAL 1,050.46 

Bill Pmt -Check 08/29/2018 20981 FRONTIER COMMUNICATIONS 909-484-3890-050914-5 1012 - Bank of America Gen'l Ckg 

Bill 08/23/2018 90948438900509145 Office fax 6022 • Telephone 143.76 

TOTAL 143.76 

Bill Pmt -Check 08/29/2018 20982 INLAND EMPIRE UTILITIES AGENCY 1800003901 1012 • Bank of America Gen'l Ckg 

Bill 08/23/2018 1800003901 TO #3 - Pomona Extensometer Contract Admin. 7402.10 • PE4 - Northwest MZ1 Area Proj. 1,463,581.30 

TOTAL 1,463,581.30 

Bill Pmt -Check 08/29/2018 20983 LEGAL SHIELD 0111802 1012 • Bank of America Gen'l Ckg 

Bill 08/23/2018 0111802 Employee Deductions - August 2018 60194 • Other Employee Insurance 79.70 

TOTAL 79.70 

-0 Bill Pmt -Check 08/29/2018 20984 STANDARD INSURANCE CO. Policy # 00-649299-0009 1012 • Bank of America Gen'l Ckg 

—I Bill 
....4 

08/23/2018 006492990009 Policy # 00-649299-0009 60191 • Life & Disab.Ins Benefits 775.35 

TOTAL 775.35 

Bill Pmt -Check 08/29/2018 20985 VERIZON WIRELESS 9812696708 1012 • Bank of America Gen'l Ckg 

Bill 08/23/2018 9812696708 Acct #642073270-00001 7103.7 • Grdwtr Qual-Computer Svc 100.04 

TOTAL 100.04 

Bill Pmt -Check 08/29/2018 20986 INLAND EMPIRE UTILITIES AGENCY 1800003899 1012 • Bank of America Gen'l Ckg 

Bill 08/22/2018 1800003899 SCADA System Upgrades Project-Invoice #10 7690.61 • GWR SCADA Upgrades (TO #4) 29,590.05 

TOTAL 29,590.05 

Bill Pmt -Check 08/29/2018 20987 KESSLER ALAIR INSURANCE SERVICES, INC. 1012 • Bank of America Gen'l Ckg 

Bill 08/29/2018 Environ. Pollution Liab. coverage-Right of Entrys 6085 • Business Insurance Package 9,544.19 

TOTAL 9,544.19 

Bill Pmt -Check 08/29/2018 20988 CUBICLE AND OFFICE, LLC. 1041 1012 • Bank of America Gen'l Ckg 

Bill 08/29/2018 1041 Panels and desks for field staff work area 1840 • Capital Assets 18,819.43 

TOTAL 18,819.43 

Bill Pmt -Check 08/30/2018 ACH 083018 PUBLIC EMPLOYEES' RETIREMENT SYSTEM Payor #3493 1012 • Bank of America Gen'l Ckg 

Page 11 of 12 



Type Date Num 

CHINO BASIN WATERMASTER 
Cash Disbursements 

August 

Name 

For The Month of 
2018 

Memo Account 

Financial Report - B1 

Paid Amount 

General Journal 
.1110111111 11111.11 

08/25/2018 18/08/09 PUBLIC EMPLOYEES RETIREMENT SYSTEM CalPERS Retirement for 08/12/18-08/25/18 2000 • Accounts Payable 6,886.20 

TOTAL 6,886.20 

General Journal 08/31/2018 08/31/2018 Wage Works FSA Direct Debits - August 2018 Wage Works FSA Direct Debits - August 2018 1012 • Bank of America Gen'l Ckg 

Wage Works FSA Direct Debits - August 2018 1012 • Bank of America Gen'l Ckg 724.98 

Wage Works FSA Direct Debits - August 2018 1012 • Bank of America Gen'l Ckg -215.36 

Wage Works FSA Direct Debits - August 2018 1012 • Bank of America Gen'l Ckg 509.60 

Wage Works FSA Direct Debits - August 2018 1012 • Bank of America Gen'l Ckg 76.25 

TOTAL 1,095.47 

Total Disbursements: 2,196,411.78 

Page 12 of 12 



CHINO BASIN WATERMASTER 
9641 San Bernardino Road, Rancho Cucamonga, Ca 91730 

Tel: 909.484.3888 Fax: 909.484.3890 www.cbwm.org  

,,ir , 1V1P 

'" Elasin NOG  

 

PETER KAVOUNAS, P.E. 
General Manager 

STAFF REPORT 

DATE: October 18, 2018 

TO: Advisory Committee 

SUBJECT: VISA Check Detail Report - Financial Report B2 (August 31, 2018) 

SUMMARY 

Issue: Record of VISA credit card payment disbursed for the month of August 2018. 

Recommendation: Receive and file VISA Check Detail Report for August 2018 as presented. 

Financial Impact: Funds disbursed were included in the FY 2018/19 "Amended" Watermaster 
Budget. 

Future Consideration  
Advisory Committee — October 18, 2018: Receive and File 
Watermaster Board — October 25, 2018: Receive and File (Normal Course of Business) 

ACTIONS:  
Appropriative Pool — October 11, 2018: Received and filed 
Non-Agricultural Pool — October 11, 2018: Moved unanimously to receive and file, without approval 
Agricultural Pool — October 11, 2018: Received and filed 
Advisory Committee — October 18, 2018: 
Watermaster Board — October 25, 2018: 

P1 9 



VISA Check Detail Report - Financial Report B2 October 18, 2018 
Page 2 of 2 

BACKGROUND 

A monthly VISA Check Detail report is provided to keep all members apprised of Watermaster 
expenditures charged against the General Manager and Chief Financial Officer's Bank of America VISA 
card. 

DISCUSSION 

The total cash disbursements during the month of August 2018 was $5,771.70. The payment was 
processed in the amount of $5,771.70 (by check number 20955 dated August 14, 2018). The monthly 
charges for August 2018 of $5,771.70 were for routine and customary expenditures and properly 
documented with receipts. 

ATTACHMENTS 
1. Financial Report - B2 

P20 



CHINO BASIN WATERMASTER 
VISA Check Detail Report 

August 2018 

Financial Report - B2 

Type Num Date Name Memo Account 
 IIIMMOINNIIIIIMMINIMill 

Paid Amount 

Bill Pmt -Check 08/14/2018 20955 BANK OF AMERICA )0(XX-XXXX-X.XXX-9341 1012 • Bank of America Gen'l Ckg 
Bill 07/31/2018 XXXX-)000(-XXXX-9341 Miscellanous office supplies 6031.7 • Other Office Supplies 298.43 

50% deposit-Gregory workstation 6055 • Computer Hardware 899.20 

Printer for front office 6055 - Computer Hardware 289.85 

Farewell lunch for R. Zapien 6141.3 • Admin Meetings 96.04 

Printer for Sr. Accountant office 6055 • Computer Hardware 462.25 

Employee recruitment CVI's 6016 • New Employee Search Costs 520.00 

Employee recruitment CVI's 6016 • New Employee Search Costs 200.00 

Printer for CFO office 6055 • Computer Hardware 317.85 

Miscellaneous office supplies 6031.7 • Other Office Supplies 252.62 

PK meeting w/T. Layton, V. Jew 8312 • Meeting Expenses 50.69 

Court prep hearing preparation mtg #1 6909.1 • OBMP Meetings 50.00 

Court prep hearing preparation mtg #1 6909.1 • OBMP Meetings 15.00 

Board officers mtg/Pool chair 6312 • Meeting Expenses 115.00 

Court prep hearing preparation mtg #2 6909.1 • OBMP Meetings 60.00 

Staff lunch pre RIPCom mtg at IEUA 6909.1 • OBMP Meetings 60.00 

Reg.-PK-attend 1st Annual W. Grdwtr Congress 6193.2 • Conference - Registration Fee 610.00 

-0 Early bird checkin-PK flight-GRAC 6173 • Airfare/Mileage 15.00 
N.) 
-L Early bird checkin-PK flight-GRAC 6173 • Airfare/Mileage 15.00 

Flight-PK-attend GRAC 1st Annual Grdwtr Congress 6173 • Airfare/Mileage 99.89 

Lunch-CGC Meeting held at Watermaste 6141.3 • Admin Meetings 86.00 

Lunch-CGC Meeting held at Watermaster 6141.3 • Admin Meetings 26.40 

Miscellaneous office supplies 6031.7 • Other Office Supplies 14.20 

Reg.-PK-attend 2018 Fall Conf. and Workshop 6193.2 • Conference - Registration Fee 555.00 

Reg.-ETF-attend 2018 Fall Conf. and Workshop 6193.2 • Conference - Registration Fee 555.00 

PK mtg w/T. Layton, V. Jew 8312 • Meeting Expenses 49.88 

PK, JJ, AN meeting 6141.3 • Admin Meetings 58.40 
TOTAL Total Disbursements: 5,771.70 

Page 1 of 1 



r11, 

rat 

t Ti 

P22 



CHINO BASIN WATERMASTER 
9641 San Bernardino Road, Rancho Cucamonga, Ca 91730 

Tel: 909.484.3888 Fax: 909.484.3890 www.cbwm.org  

PETER KAVOUNAS, P.E. 
General Manager 

STAFF REPORT 

DATE: October 18, 2018 

TO: Advisory Committee 

SUBJECT: Combining Schedule of Revenue, Expenses and Changes in Net Assets for the Period 
July 1, 2018 through August 31, 2018 - Financial Report B3 (August 31, 2018) 

SUMMARY 

Issue: Record of Revenue, Expenses and Changes in Net Assets for the Period July 1, 2018 
through August 31, 2018. 

Recommendation: Receive and file Combining Schedule of Revenue, Expenses and Changes in 
Net Assets for the Period July 1, 2018 through August 31, 2018 as presented. 

Financial Impact: Funds disbursed were included in the FY 2018/19 "Amended" Watermaster 
Budget. 

Future Consideration  
Advisory Committee — October 18, 2018: Receive and File 
Watermaster Board — October 25, 2018: Receive and File (Normal Course of Business) 

ACTIONS.  
Appropriative Pool — October 11, 2018: Received and filed 
Non-Agricultural Pool — October 11, 2018: Moved unanimously to receive and file, without approval 
Agricultural Pool —October 11,2018: Received and filed 
Advisory Committee — October 18, 2018: 
Watermaster Board — October 25, 2018: 

P23 



Combining Schedule of Revenue, Expenses and Changes in Net Assets October 18, 2018 
Page 2 of 2 

BACKGROUND 

A Combining Schedule of Revenue, Expenses and Changes in Net Assets for the period July 1, 2018 
through August 31, 2018 is provided to keep all members apprised of the FY 2018/19 cumulative 
Watermaster revenues, expenditures and changes in net assets for the period listed. 

DISCUSSION 

The Combining Schedule of Revenue, Expenses and Changes in Net Assets has been created from 
various financial reports and statements created from Intuit QuickBooks Enterprise Solutions 18.0, the 
Watermaster accounting system. The Combining Schedule provided balances to the supporting 
documentation in the Watermaster accounting system as presented. 

ATTACHMENTS: 
1. Financial Report - B3 

P24 



Administrative Revenues: 
Administrative Assessments 
Interest Revenue 
Mutual Agency Project Revenue 
Miscellaneous Income 

Total Revenues 

Administrative & Project Expenditures: 
Watermaster Administration 
Watermaster Board-Advisory Committee 
Ag Pool Misc. Expense - Ag Fund 
Pool Administration 
Optimum Basin Mgmt Administration 
OBMP Project Costs 
Debt Service 
Basin Recharge Improvements 

Total Administrative/OBMP Expenses 
Net Administrative/OBMP Expenses 

Allocate Net Admin Expenses To Pools 

Allocate Net OBMP Expenses To Pools 
Allocate Debt Service to App Pool 
Allocate Basin Recharge to App Pool 

Agricultural Expense Transfer* 
Total Expenses 

Net Administrative Income 

07  Other Income/(Expense) 
Replenishment Water Assessments 
Desalter Replenishment Obligation 
Non-Ag Stored Water Purchases 
Exhibit "G" Non-Ag Pool Water 
Interest Revenue 
MWD Water Purchases 

Non-Ag Stored Water Purchases 
Exhibit "G" Non-Ag Pool Water 
MWD Water Purchases 
Groundwater Replenishment 

LAIF - Fair Market Value Adjustment 
Gain on Sale of Assets 
Other Post-Employment Benefits (OPEB) 
Refund-Excess Reserves 
Refund-Recharge Debt 
Funding To/(From) Reserves 

Net Other Income/(Expense) 

Net Transfers To/(From) Reserves 

Net Assets, July 1, 2018 
Net Assets, End of Period 

16/17 Assessable Production 

-0 

CHINO BASIN WATERMASTER Financial Report - 83 
COMBINING SCHEDULE OF REVENUE, EXPENSES AND CHANGES IN NET ASSETS 

FOR THE PERIOD JULY 1, 2018 THROUGH AUGUST 31, 2018 

WATERMASTER 
ADMINISTRATION 

OPTIMUM 
BASIN 

MANAGEMENT 

POOL ADMINISTRATION & SPECIAL PROJECTS 
GROUNDWATER 
REPLENISHMENT 

LAIF 
VALUE ADJ. 

GASB 75 
BEG. NET  
POSITION 

GRAND 
TOTALS 

AMENDED 
BUDGET 

2018-2019 

APPROPRIATIVE 
POOL 

AG 
POOL 

NON-AG 
POOL 

167,712 
21 

167,712 
21 

8,655,545 
63,968 

167,712 
0 

167,733 167,733 8,887,225 

370,968 370,968 1,337,141 
37,262 37,262 226,519 

400 
25,599 90,962 26,510 143,071 624,643 

235,869 235,869 2,273,267 
3,187,445 3,187,445 5,503,869 

580,585 580,585 580,585 
3,068,941 

408,230 4,003,899 25,599 90,962 26,510 4,555,199 13,615,365 
(240,497) (4,003,899) 
240,497 174,593 57,008 8,895 

3,423,314 2,485,219 811,474 126,621 
580,585 580,585 

959,445 (959,445) 
4,225,440 162,026 4,555,199 13,615,365 

(4,225,440) (162,026) (4,387,466) (4,728,140) 

0 
0 
0 
0 
0 
0 
0 
0 
0 
0 
0 
0 
0 
0 
0 

(4,387,466) (4,225,440) (162,026) - - - (4,387,466) (4,728,140) 
0 

9,661,977 493,108 80,791 (4,534) (20,461) (443,445) 9,767,436 
5,436,536 493,108 (81,235) (4,534) (20,461) (443,445) 5,379,970 5,379,970 

82,269.159 26,862.554 4,191.579 113,323.292 
16/17 Production Percentages 72.597% 23.704% 3.699% 100.000% 

*Fund balance transfer as agreed to in the Peace Agreement. 
N: \Administrafion \ Meetings - Agendas & Minutes \ 2018 \Staff Reports\10 - October\ Advisory V0181018 -53 Combining Schedule_August 2018.xls]Ju12018-Aug2018 

Prepared by Joseph S. Joswiak, Chief Financial Officer Page 1 of 1 



THIS PAGE 

HAS 

INTENTIONALLY 

EEN LEFT 

BLANK 

FOR PAGINATION 



CHINO BASIN WATERMASTER 
9641 San Bernardino Road, Rancho Cucamonga, Ca 91730 

Tel: 909.484.3888 Fax: 909.484.3890 www.cbwm.org  

e,. .s.• • Ot 
117 Basin IVI a  

 

PETER KAVOUNAS, P.E. 
General Manager 

STAFF REPORT 

DATE: October 18, 2018 

TO: Advisory Committee 

SUBJECT: Treasurer's Report of Financial Affairs for the Period August 1, 2018 through August 31, 
2018 - Financial Report B4 (August 31, 2018) 

SUMMARY 

Issue: Record of increases or decreases in the cash position, assets and liabilities of Watermaster 
for the Period of August 1, 2018 through August 31, 2018. 

Recommendation: Receive and file Treasurer's Report of Financial Affairs for the Period August 1, 
2018 through August 31, 2018 as presented. 

Financial Impact: Funds disbursed were included in the FY 2018/19 "Amended" Watermaster 
Budget. 

Future Consideration  
Advisory Committee — October 18, 2018: Receive and File 
Watermaster Board — October 25, 2018: Receive and File (Normal Course of Business) 

ACTIONS:  
Appropriative Pool — October 11, 2018: Received and filed 
Non-Agricultural Pool — October 11, 2018: Moved unanimously to receive and file, without approval 
Agricultural Pool — October 11, 2018: Received and filed 
Advisory Committee — October 18, 2018: 
Watermaster Board — October 25, 2018: 

P27 



Treasurer's Report of Financial Affairs October 18, 2018 
Page 2 of 2 

BACKGROUND 

A Treasurer's Report of Financial Affairs for the Period August 1, 2018 through August 31, 2018 is 
provided to keep all members apprised of the total cash in banks (Bank of America, LAIF, and 
CalTRUST); cash on deposit in trust with the County of San Bernardino as a result of the Cooperation 
and Reimbursement Agreement between Chino Basin Watermaster and County of San Bernardino dated 
May 25, 2017; and cash on hand at the Watermaster office (petty cash) at the end of the period stated. 
The Treasurer's Report details the change (increase or decrease) in the overall cash position of 
Watermaster, as well as the changes (increase or decrease) to the assets and liabilities section of the 
balance sheet. The report also provides a detailed listing of all deposits and/or withdrawals in the 
California State Treasurer's Local Agency Investment Fund (LAIF) and/or CalTRUST, the most current 
effective yield as of the last quarter, and the ending balance in LAIF as of the reporting date. 

DISCUSSION 

The Treasurer's Report of Financial Affairs has been created from various financial reports and 
statements created from Intuit QuickBooks Enterprise Solutions 18.0, the Watermaster accounting 
system. The Treasurer's Report provided, balances to the supporting documentation in the Watermaster 
accounting system, as well as the supporting bank statements. 

ATTACHMENTS 
1. Financial Report - B4 

P28 



CHINO BASIN WATERMASTER 
TREASURER'S REPORT OF FINANCIAL AFFAIRS FOR THE PERIOD 

AUGUST 1, 2018 THROUGH AUGUST 31, 2018 

DEPOSITORIES: 

Financial Report - B4 

Cash on Hand - Petty Cash $ 500 
Bank of America 

Governmental Checking-Demand Deposits $ 462,632 
Zero Balance Account - Payroll 462,632 

Trust Account - County of San Bernardino 845 
Local Agency Investment Fund - Sacramento 7,700,442 

TOTAL CASH IN BANKS AND ON HAND 8/31/2018 $ 8,164,419 
TOTAL CASH IN BANKS AND ON HAND 7/31/2018 10,174,932 

PERIOD INCREASE (DECREASE) $ (2,010,513) 

CHANGE IN CASH POSITION DUE TO: 
Decrease/(Increase) in Assets: Accounts Receivable $ 180,131 

Assessments Receivable - 
Prepaid Expenses, Deposits & Other Current Assets (27,568) 

(Decrease)/Increase in Liabilities Accounts Payable 898,922 
Accrued Payroll, Payroll Taxes & Other Current Liabilities 14,085 
Long Term Liabilities 2,280 
Transfer to/(from) Reserves (3,078,363) 

PERIOD INCREASE (DECREASE) $ (2,010,513) 

SUMMARY OF FINANCIAL TRANSACTIONS: 

Petty 
Cash 

Govt'l Checking 
Demand 

Zero Balance 
Account 
Payroll 

Trust Account 
County of Local Agency 

San Bernardino Investment Funds Totals 

Balances as of 7/31/2018 $ 500 $ 448,145 $ - $ 845 $ 9,725,442 $ 10,174,932 
Deposits - 2,210,899 - - - 2,210,899 
Transfers - (167,070) (113,980) - (2,025,000) (2,306,050) 
Withdrawals/Checks - (2,029,341) 113,980 - - (1,915,362) 

Balances as of 8/31/2018 $ 500 $ 462,632 $ _ $ 845 $ 7,700,442 $ 8,164,419 

PERIOD INCREASE OR (DECREASE) $ - $ 14,487 $ $ - $ (2,025,000) $ (2,010,513) 

Page 1 of 2 



CHINO BASIN WATERMASTER Financial Report - B4 
TREASURER'S REPORT OF FINANCIAL AFFAIRS FOR THE PERIOD 

AUGUST 1, 2018 THROUGH AUGUST 31, 2018 

INVESTMENT TRANSACTIONS 

Effective Days to Interest Maturity 
Date Transaction Depository Activity Redeemed Maturity Rate(*) Yield  

8/22/2018 Withdrawal (525,000) 
8/24/2018 Withdrawal (1,500,000) 

TOTAL INVESTMENT TRANSACTIONS $ (2,025,000) $0 

* The earnings rate for L.A.I.F. is a daily variable rate; 1.90% was the effective yield rate at the Quarter ended June 30, 2018. 

INVESTMENT STATUS 
August 31, 2018 

Principal Number of Interest Maturity 
Amount Days Rate Date  

$ 7,700,442  

$ 7,700,442  

Financial Institution  
Local Agency Investment Fund 

TOTAL INVESTMENTS 
CO 

Funds on hand are sufficient to meet all foreseen and planned Administrative and project expenditures during the next six months. 

All investment transactions have been executed in accordance with the criteria stated in Chino Basin Watermaster's Investment 
Policy. 

Respectfully submitted, 

(161' 
Joseph S. Joswiak 
Chief Financial Officer 
Chino Basin Watermaster 

NAdministrationWeetings - Agendas & Minutes\2018\Staff Reports\10 - October\Advisory\[20181018 - B4 Treasurers Report_August 2018.xls]August 2018 

Page 2 of 2 



CHINO BASIN WATERMASTER 
9641 San Bernardino Road, Rancho Cucamonga, Ca 91730 

Tel: 909.484.3888 Fax: 909.484.3890 wwvv.cbwm.org  

PETER KAVOUNAS, P.E. 
General Manager 

STAFF REPORT 

DATE: October 18, 2018 

TO: Advisory Committee 

SUBJECT: Budget vs. Actual Report for the Period July 1, 2018 through August 31, 2018 - 
Financial Report B5 (August 31, 2018) 

SUMMARY 

Issue: Record of revenues and expenses of Watermaster for the Period of July 1, 2018 through 
August 31, 2018. 

Recommendation: Receive and file Budget vs. Actual Report for the Period July 1, 2018 through 
August 31, 2018 as presented. 

Financial Impact: Funds disbursed were included in the FY 2018/19 "Amended" Watermaster 
Budget. 

Future Consideration  
Advisory Committee — October 18, 2018: Receive and File 
Watermaster Board — October 25, 2018: Receive and File (Normal Course of Business) 

ACTIONS:  
Appropriative Pool — October 11, 2018: Received and filed 
Non-Agricultural Pool — October 11, 2018: Moved unanimously to receive and file, without approval 
Agricultural Pool - October 11, 2018: Received and filed 
Advisory Committee - October 18, 2018: 
Watermaster Board - October 25, 2018: 

P31 



Budget vs. Actual Report for the Period October 18, 2018 
Page 2 of 16 

BACKGROUND 

A Budget vs. Actual Report for the period July 1, 2018 through August 31, 2018 is provided to keep all 
members apprised of the total revenues and expenses for the current fiscal year. The expense section is 
categorized into four distinct sections. Those sections are: General and Administrative Expenses; 
Optimum Basin Management Program Expenses; Project Expenses; and Other Income/Expenses. The 
Budget vs. Actual report has been created from Intuit QuickBooks Enterprise Solutions 18.0, the 
Watermaster accounting system. The Budget vs. Actual report provided, balances to the supporting 
documentation in the Watermaster accounting system, as well as the supporting bank statements. 

DISCUSSION 

CURRENT MONTH — AUGUST 2018 

Year-To-Date (YTD) for the two months ending August 31, 2018, all but seven categories were at or 
below the projected budget. The categories over budget were: (1) the Administration Salary/Benefits 
expenses (6010's) which were over budget by $7,410 or 4.1% as a result of increased staff time and 
activities in the administrative functions. Please note that the overage is only in the administrative 
section, not with the entire consolidated staffing budget; (2) Watermaster Legal Services expenses 
(6070's) over budget by $67,375 or 259.1% as a result of miscellaneous legal matters as detailed in the 
BHFS section; (3) Business Insurance expenses (6080's) over budget by $6,846 or 23.8% as a result of 
the additional coverage for Environmental and Pollution Liability as recommended by our broker, for water 
sampling activities within the basin by the Watermaster staff, not budgeted for in the FY 2018/19 budget; 
(4) Watermaster Board expenses (6300's) over budget by $2,001 or 7.4% as a result of increased 
activities and Board meetings during the months of July 2018 through August 2018; (5) Appropriative 
Pool Administration expenses (8300's) over budget by $1,520 or 6.3% as a result of increased legal 
activities by the Appropriative Pool attorney for the months of July 2018 through August 2018; (6) 
Agricultural Pool Legal Services (8467's) over budget by $32,950 or 96.4% as a result of increased legal 
activities performed by the Agricultural Pool's attorney during the months of July 2018 through August 
2018; and (7) Non-Agricultural Pool Administration expenses (8500's) over budget by $7,653 or 40.6% as 
a result of increased legal activities performed by the Non-Agricultural Pool's attorney during the months 
of July 2018 through August 2018. For the majority of the expense categories within the Watermaster 
budget for FY 2018/19, the individual line-item budgets are divided into 12-monthly amounts and 
allocated accordingly. As the fiscal year progresses, these categories listed above could level out over 
time and be within the budget levels. 

Overall, the Watermaster (YTD) Actual Expenses were $2,341,399 or 34.0% below the (YTD) Budgeted 
Expenses of $6,896,598. 

PREVIOUSLY REPORTED ACTIONS (Descending Order) 

July 2018: 
During the month of July 2018, the "Carry Over" funding was calculated. The Total "Carry Over" funding 
amount of $4,728,140.07 has been posted to the general ledger accounts. The total amount of 
$4,728,140.07 consisted of $3,068,940.82 from Capital Improvement Projects, $1,594,653.00 from 
Engineering Services, and $64,546.25 from Administration Services. More detailed information is 
provided regarding this issue under the "Carry Over" Funding section. 

The Amended Budget for FY 2018/19 is $13,615,365.07 which includes $4,728,140.07 for the prior years 
"Carry Over funding. The Original Approved budget for FY 2018/19 of $8,887,225 was adopted by the 
Watermaster Board on May 24, 2018 ($8,887,225 + $4,728,140.07 = $13,615,365.07). 

SALARIES EXPENSE 

CURRENT MONTH — AUGUST 2018 

P32 



Budget vs. Actual Report for the Period October 18, 2018 
Page 3 of 16 

As of August 31, 2018, the total (YTD) Watermaster salary expenses were $13,607 or 4.3% below the 
(YTD) budgeted amount of $319,656. The overall staffing budget was developed with a staffing level of 
ten Full-Time Equivalents (FTE's), and staffing is currently at ten Full-Time Equivalents (FTE's) as of 
October 2, 2018. 

Two candidates for the Field Operations Specialist (position #9 and position #10) were presented with a 
conditional offer letter dated September 7, 2018. Both candidates successfully cleared a background 
investigation, drug screening, and pre-employment physical. The two new Watermaster employees 
started employment on Tuesday, October 2, 2018. Both employees will be introduced to the 
Watermaster parties at the Pools, Advisory, and Board meetings during the month of October 2018. 

Watermaster utilizes an in-house database time and attendance system to track and record staff's actual 
hours worked and records those hours to a specific project or activity. This time and attendance 
database of captured staff hours and activities is the basis for the bi-weekly payrolls which are processed 
using an external payroll processing service. Watermaster staff can record time to a large number of 
activities but the five most used categories are as follows (1) General Administrative activities; (2) Paid 
Leaves of vacation, sick or holiday; (3) Pools, Advisory or Board Meeting attendance; (4) OBMP activities; 
and (5) OBMP Implementation Program Elements 1 through 9 activities. 

When the FY 2018/19 budget was developed, basic assumptions were used in allocating how staff's time 
would be spent and on which of the projects or activities. The staffing dollars were then allocated into 
those specific areas and budgeted on a 1/12 monthly budget. When actual staffing activities vary from 
the budgeted assumptions, a positive or negative variance can be created. Currently, the allocations are 
tracking within budget. 

The table summarizes the Year-To-Date (YTD) Actual Watermaster salary costs compared to the Year-
To-Date (YTD) Budget as of August 31, 2018. Please be advised that the "$ Over Budget" and the "% of 
Budget" columns are a comparison of the (YTD) Actual to the (YTD) Budget, not the 12-month Annual 
Budget. The 12-month Annual Budget column is presented only to provide the data in a full and complete 
format. The following details are provided: 

P33 



Budget vs. Actual Report for the Period October 18, 2018 
Page 4 of 16 

VVM Salary Expense 

Jul '18 - Aug '18 
Actual 

Jul '18 - Aug '18 
Budget $ Over Budget % of Budget 

FY 2018/19 
Annual Budget 

6011 • 1/1/NI Staff Salaries 178,904.55 171,893.00 7,011.55 104.08% 993,161.00 
6011.1 • WM Staff Salaries - Overtime 1,703.55 0.00 1,703.55 100.0% 0.00 
6011.4 • 457(f) NQDC Plan 5,658.17 4,940.00 718.17 114.54% 37,034.00 
6017. Temporary Services 0.00 3,500.00 -3,500.00 0.0% 21,000.00 
6201 • Advisory Committee - VVM Staff Salaries 4,562.93 4,372.00 190.93 104.37% 25,259.00 
6301 • Watermaster Board - WM Staff Salaries 6,489.17 6,996.00 -506.83 92.76% 40,422.00 
8301 • Appropriative Pool -1N11/1 Staff Salaries 7,250.31 6,504.00 746.31 111.48% 37,577.00 
8401 • Agricultural Pool -NM Staff Salaries 3,735.66 5,509.00 -1,773.34 67.81% 31,829.00 
8501 • Non-Agricultural Pool - VVM Staff Salaries 3,053.13 3,757.00 -703.87 81.27% 21,712.00 
6901 • OBMP VVM Staff Salaries 11,474.16 24,391.00 -12,916.84 47.04% 140,931.00 
7101.1 • Production Monitor-VVM Staff Salaries 7,227.54 11,094.00 -3,866.46 65.15% 64,095.00 
7102.1 • In-line Meter - VVM Staff Salaries 0.00 3,230.00 -3,230.00 0.0% 18,657.00 
7103.1 • Grdwater Quality - VVM Staff Salaries 7,340.85 12,428.00 -5,087.15 59.07% 71,806.00 
7104.1 • Grdwater Level - 'AIM Staff Salaries 10,040.00 10,986.00 -946.00 91.39% 63,475.00 
7107.1 • GrdLevel Monitoring -'NM Staff Salaries 0.00 916.00 -916.00 0.0% 5,290.00 
7108.1 • Hydraulic Control -'AIM Staff Salaries 0.00 695.00 -695.00 0.0% 4,015.00 
7108.11 • Prado Basin -'NM Staff Salaries 0.00 947.00 -947.00 0.0% 5,466.00 
7201 • Comp Recharge - WM Staff Salaries 8,972.27 10,123.00 -1,150.73 88.63% 58,482.00 
7301 • PE3&5 - WM Staff Salaries 1,474.40 2,790.00 -1,315.60 52.85% 16,174.00 
7401 • PE4 - VVM Staff Salaries 3,179.17 1,717.00 1,462.17 185.16% 9,919.00 
7501 • PE6&7 - VVIVI Staff Salaries 0.00 968.00 -968,00 0.0% 5,588.00 
7501.1 • PE 6&7 -WM Staff Salaries (Plume) 0.00 852.00 -852.00 0.0% 4,925.00 
7601 • PE8&9 - VVM Staff Salaries 2,243.95 3,695.00 -1,451.05 60.73% 21,350.00 

Subtotal VVM Staff Costs 263,309.81 292,303.00 -28,993.19 90.08% 1,698,167.00 
60185 • Vacation 33,624.35 13,339.00 20,285.35 252.08% 77,067.00 
60186 • Sick Leave 4,617.00 9,459.00 -4,842.00 48.81% 54,656.00 
60187 • Holidays 4,497.64 4,555.00 -57.36 98.74% 68,319.00 

Subtotal WM Paid Leaves 42,738.99 27,353.00 15,385.99 156.25% 200,042.00 
Total WM Salary Costs 306,048.80 319,656.00 -13,607.20 95.74% 1,898,209.00 

PREVIOUSLY REPORTED ACTIONS (Descending Order) 

July 2018: 
The Sr. Field Operations Specialist submitted his written resignation on July 3, 2018 and left employment 
of Watermaster on July 17, 2018. Watermaster staff met with the Personnel Committee on August 23, 
2018 to discuss the plan to reclassify Position #10 from a Water Resources Associate to a Sr. Field 
Operations Specialist. The Personnel Committee unanimously approved and recommended moving 
forward with the new position reclassification and adjustment. 

The positions of Field Operations Specialist (Position #9) and Sr. Field Operations Specialist (Position 
#10) are currently under recruitment. The final selection of the two top candidates, along with issuance of 
a conditional offer of employment will take place before September 10, 2018 with the final screening 
process being successful completion of a background investigation, passing a drug test, and passing a 
pre-employment physical. The two positions are anticipated to be onboard with Watermaster as early as 
October 1, 2018. Both candidates will be introduced to the Watermaster parties at the Pools, Advisory, 
and Board meetings scheduled for October 2018. 

LEGAL SERVICES 
BROWNSTEIN HYATT FARBER SCHRECK EXPENSES 

CURRENT MONTH - AUGUST 2018 

The Watermaster Legal Services budget was developed jointly by the Watermaster staff and Brownstein 
Hyatt Farber Schreck staff with specific assumptions regarding the tasks and legal activities that would 
occur during FY 2018/19. The total legal services budget was developed by multiplying the number of 

P34 



Budget vs. Actual Report for the Period October 18, 2018 
Page 5 of 16 

hours that would be required to complete the specific tasks by the hourly rate. The "Approved" budget 
was adopted for the original amount of $963,028. 

As of August 31, 2018, the total (YTD) Watermaster Legal Services expenses (consolidating the three 
categories of Watermaster Administrative Legal Services, Pool/Advisory/Board Meeting legal expenses, 
and OBMP legal expenses) were $31,132 or 19.3% above the (YTD) budgeted amount of $161,233. 

WATERMASTER ADMINISTRATIVE LEGAL SERVICES:  
Overall, the Watermaster Administrative Legal Services expense (6070's) as of August 31, 2018, was 
$67,375 or 259.1% above the budgeted amount of $26,003. The specific items within the Administrative 
Legal Services expenses (6070's) which were over budget were Court Coordination (6071) over budget 
by $34,739 or 477.0; Personnel Matters (6073) which were over budget by $2,261 or 137.0%; Party 
Status Maintenance (6077) which were over budget by $1,100 or 36.4%; and the Miscellaneous Category 
(6078) which were over budget by $37,020 or 587.6%. Please see Note 1 on the following page for a 
more detailed explanation of the miscellaneous types of expenses (6078). 

The specific items within the Administrative Legal Services expenses (6070's) which were under budget 
were the expenses for Rules and Regulations (6072) under budget by $1,805 or 100.0%; and Interagency 
Issues (6074) under budget by $5,940 or 100.0%. 

WATERMASTER POOLS, ADVISORY AND BOARD LEGAL SERVICES:  
The Pools, Advisory Committee and the Board meeting legal expenses from BHFS are captured by 
month within the accounts (6275, 6375, 6375.1, 8375, 8475 and 8575). The legal service costs 
associated with the Board Workshop(s) are also included as part of this group. Overall, this category of 
legal expenses as of August 31, 2018 was $2,226 or 6.8% below the budgeted amount of $32,850. 
Normal Brownstein Hyatt Farber Schreck meeting attendance during any given month includes 
attendance at all three pool meetings, one Advisory Committee meeting and one Board meeting. The 
legal services budget was developed with the assumption of having eleven months of meetings, 
intentionally excluding the month of December 2018. With regards to the Board Meeting expenses 
(6375), an additional Special Board Meeting was held during the month of July 2018 which increased the 
legal services for this specific line item category. 

OBMP LEGAL SERVICES:  
The OBMP legal expenses (accounts 6907.31 through 6907.90) were below the budget for the month. 
As of August 31, 2018 the category of OBMP legal expenses were $34,017 or 33.2% below the budgeted 
amount of $102,380. The majority of expenses within this OBMP category were under budget (YTD), 
however, the Recharge Master Plan expenses (6907.39) were over budget by $6,232 or 78.9%; and Safe 
Yield Redetermination and Reset legal expenses (6907.42) were over budget by $21,220 or 111.7%. 

The table listed below summarizes the Brownstein Hyatt Farber Schreck (BHFS) expenses as of August 
31, 2018 compared to the Year-To-Date (YTD) budget. Please be advised that the "$ Over Budget" and 
the "% of Budget" columns are a comparison of the (YTD) Actual to the (YTD) Budget, not the 12-month 
Annual Budget. The 12-month Annual Budget column is presented only to provide the data in a full and 
complete format. The following details are provided: 

P35 



Budget vs. Actual Report for the Period October 18, 2018 
Page 6 of 16 

6070 • Watermaster Legal Services 

Jul '18 -Aug '18 
Actual 

Jul '18 -Aug '18 
Budget $ Over Budget % of Budget 

FY 2018/19 
Annual Budget 

6071 • BHFS Legal - Court Coordination 42,022.49 7,283.00 34,739.49 576.99% 43,700.00 
6072 • BHFS Legal - Rules & Regulations 0.00 1,805.00 -1,805.00 0.0% 10,825.00 
6073 • BHFS Legal - Personnel Matters 3,910.95 1,650.00 2,260.95 237.03% 9,900.00 
6074 • BHFS Legal - Interagency Issues 0.00 5,940.00 -5,940.00 0.0% 35,640.00 
6076 • BHFS Legal - Storage Issues 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0% 0.00 
6077 • BHFS Legal - Party Status Maintenance 4,124.70 3,025.00 1,099.70 136.35% 18,150.00 
6078 • BHFS Legal - Miscellaneous (Note 1) 43,319.55 6,300.00 37,019.55 687.61% 37,800.00 

Total 6070 • Watermaster Legal Services 93,377.69 26,003.00 67,374.69 359.1% 156,015.00 

6275 • BHFS Legal - Advisory Committee 3,674.23 3,960.00 -285.77 92.78% 21,780.00 
6375 • BHFS Legal - Board Meeting 16,815.66 14,040,00 2,775.66 119.77% 77,220.00 
6375.1 • BHFS Legal - Board Workshop(s) 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0% 12,038.00 
8375 • BHFS Legal - Appropriative Pool 3,365.77 4,950.00 -1,584.23 68.0% 27,225.00 
8475 • BHFS Legal - Agricultural Pool 3,402.55 4,950.00 -1,547.45 68.74% 27,225.00 
8575 • BHFS Legal - Non-Ag Pool 3,365.77 4,950.00 -1,584.23 68.0% 27,225.00 

Total BHFS Legal Services 30,623.98 32,850.00 -2,226.02 93.22% 192,713.00 

6907.3 - VVM Legal Counsel 
6907.31 • Archibald South Plume 0.00 2,185.00 -2,185.00 0.0% 13,125.00 
6907.32 • Chino Airport Plume 0.00 2,185.00 -2,185.00 0.0% 13,125.00 
6907.33 • Desalter/Hydraulic Control 0.00 3,935.00 -3,935.00 0.0% 23,625.00 
6907.34 • Santa Ana River Water Rights 278.10 2,715.00 -2,436.90 10.24% 16,275.00 
6907.36 • Santa Ma River Habitat 1,903.95 7,220.00 -5,316.05 26.37% 43,300.00 
6907.38 • Reg. Water Quality Cntrl Board 0.00 2,625.00 -2,625.00 0.0% 15,750.00 
6907.39 • Recharge Master Plan 14,131.77 7,900,00 6,231.77 178.88% 47,400.00 
6907.40 • Storage Agreements 4,386.15 15,400.00 -11,013.85 28.48% 92,400.00 
6907.41 • Prado Basin Habitat Sustainability 263.25 2,710.00 -2,446.75 9.71% 16,250.00 
6907.42 • Safe Yield Recalculation 40,220.44 19,000.00 21,220.44 211.69% 114,000.00 
6907.44 • SGMA Compliance 7,179.63 13,150.00 -5,970.37 54.6% 78,900.00 
6907.45 • OBMP Update 0.00 18,030.00 -18,030.00 0.0% 108,200.00 
6907.90 • 1NM Legal Counsel - Unanticipated 0.00 5,325.00 -5,325.00 0.0% 31,950.00 

Total 6907 • WM Legal Counsel 68,363.29 102,380.00 -34,016.71 66.77% 614,300.00 

Total Brownstein, Hyatt, Farber, Schreck Costs 192,364.96 161,233.00 31,131.96 119.31% 963,028.00 

Note 1: The types of legal activities that have been charged against the "Miscellaneous" legal category account 6078 are as follows: 
(1) Correspondence and discussions with Watermaster staff regarding current issues/topics; (2) Correspondence with Watermaster 
staff regarding special projects (assessment package, replenishment obligations, annual report, audit report, business plan, etc.); (3) 
Brownstein's status review of ongoing Watermaster projects and issues; (4) Brownstein's update of the outstanding issues list; (5) 
Coordination of ongoing Watermaster projects; (6) Review of draft documents and contracts; (7) Review transfer documents; (8) 
Ground-Level Monitoring Committee reports/meetings; (9) Review process and criteria for SGMA reporting; (10) WAND SCADA 
Agreement and installation; (11) Angelica Corporation Bankruptcy matter; (12) NRG/GENON Bankruptcy matter; (13) Pomona 
extensometer project, CEQA review and compliance; (14) Desalter Replenishment obligations, assessment methodologies, and 
ongoing issues; (15) Master Cost Sharing Agreement with IEUA; (16) Estimation and adoption of an evaporative loss policy for 
Recharge; (17) CalMat intervention; (18) Angelica's water rights transfer; (19) Exhibit "G" rate issues; (20) Blomquist outline review; 
(21) Right of Entry Agreements for various locations; and (22) Miscellaneous legal research on current and pending issues. 

PREVIOUSLY REPORTED ACTIONS (Descending Order) 
None 

OBMP ENGINEERING SERVICES AND LEGAL COSTS 

CURRENT MONTH - AUGUST 2018 

Reviewing in total the OBMP Engineering Services and Legal Costs (consolidating the four categories of 
OBMP Watermaster Staff and SAWPA, OBMP Engineering Services, OBMP Legal Costs, and OBMP 
Other Expenses) for the two months ending August 31, 2018, the actual expenses of $230,554 were 
below the budgeted amount of $365,302 by $134,748 or 36.9%. For a detailed discussion, the following 
is provided. 

P36 



Budget vs. Actual Report for the Period October 18, 2018 
Page 7 of 16 

For August 31, 2018, the accounts 6901-6903 (Optimum Basin Mgmt. Program) section was below the 
Year-To-Date (YTD) budget by $13,238 or 42.5%. Watermaster utilizes an in-house database time and 
attendance system to record and document staffs actual hours worked and also allocates those hours to 
a specific project or activity. Watermaster staff time could be charged to Administrative, OBMP, or 
Implementation Project categories. Recently, Watermaster staff spent less time on specific OBMP related 
areas as budgeted. As a result, Watermaster staff allocated less actual time to the OBMP project as 
budgeted, which resulted in an under budget variance of $12,917 or 53.0%. The remaining expense was 
the Santa Ana Watershed Project Authority (SAWPA) FY 2018/19 Basin Monitoring Program Task Force 
Contribution which was budgeted at $6,742 and actual expenses were $321 or 4.8% below budget as of 
August 31, 2018. 

For August 31, 2018)  the accounts 6906 (Optimum Basin Mgmt. Program Engineering Services) section 
was below the Year-To-Date (YTD) budget by $86,425 or 37.5%. The majority of expenses within this 
OBMP category were under budget (YTD), however, the accounts which were over budget were as 
follows: the Water Rights Compliance Reporting expenses (6906.22) which were over budget by $8,321 
or 194.7%; the OBMP-Data Requests-CBWM Staff Engineering Services expenses (6906.71) which were 
over budget by $6,055 or 36.3%; and the OBMP-2018 RMPU Master Update expenses (6906.90) which 
were over budget by $45,112 or 497.6%. 

Within the category 6907 (Optimum Basin Mgmt. Program Legal Fees) are the remaining Brownstein 
Hyatt Farber Schreck (BHFS) Watermaster's legal expenses. Within the legal expense category, some 
individual line item activities were above the budget by $27,452 while some other line item activities were 
below the budget by $61,469. Above the budget line item was the Recharge Master Plan expenses of 
$6,232; and the Safe Yield Redetermination and Reset expenses of $21,220. The individual legal 
projects/activities that were below budget for the Year-To-Date (YTD) period were the Archibald South 
Plume of $2,185; the Chino Airport Plume of $2,185; the Desalter/Hydraulic Control of $3,935; the Santa 
Ana River Water Rights of $2,437; the Santa Ana River Habitat of $5,316; the Regional Water Quality 
Control Board of $2,625; Storage Agreements of $11,014; the Prado Basin Habitat Sustainability of 
$2,447; SGMA Compliance of $5,970; OBMP Update of $18,030; and the WM Unanticipated legal 
expenses of $5,325. For the two months ended August 31, 2018, the overall cumulative (YTD) budget 
was $102,380 and the actual (BHFS) legal expenses totaled $68,363 which resulted in an under budget 
variance of $34,017 or 33.2%. 

The OBMP Other Expenses (6909's) were below the budget for the month. These expenses are typically 
conference calls, meeting expenses, supplies, annual inspection fees, and other miscellaneous type 
expenses. As of August 31, 2018 this category of expenses was $1,069 or 75.8% below the budgeted 
amount of $1,410. 

The WEI Support for IEUA expenses are categorized within the category (6910's). The individual general 
ledger accounts are as follows: IRP Groundwater Modeling-WEI expenses (6910.10); As Needed Support 
for Obtaining Grant Funding of RMPU Projects expenses (6910.11); Preparation of a Compliance 
Demonstration for Stormwater Recharge expenses (6910.12); Ground Water Velocity Field for the San 
Sevaine Improvement Project expenses (6910.13); Truing-Up the 2013 RMPU Estimates expenses 
(6910.14); WEI Support-HCP Modeling expenses (6910.15); and RMPU-MPI Analysis expenses 
(6910.20). These expenses are billed directly to IEUA on the following month once the payment has 
been issued to Wildermuth Environmental, Inc. per the agreement. As of August 31, 2018 this category 
of expenses was fully invoiced in the amount of $0 to IEUA. 

Overall, the Optimum Basin Management Program (OBMP) category was $230,554 compared to a (YTD) 
budget of $365,302 for an under budget of $134,748 or 36.9% as of August 31, 2018. 

The table listed below summarizes the Optimum Basin Management Program (OBMP) expenses as of 
August 31, 2018 compared to the Year-To-Date (YTD) budget. Please be advised that the "$ Over 
Budget" and the "% of Budget" columns are a comparison of the (YTD) Actual to the (YTD) Budget, not 
the 12-month Annual Budget. The 12-month Annual Budget column is presented only to provide the data 
in a full and complete format. The following details are provided: 

P37 



Budget vs. Actual Report for the Period October 18, 2018 
Page 8 of 16 

6900 • Optimum Basin Mgmt Plan 

Jul 18 - Aug '18 
Actual 

Jul '18 - Aug '18 
Budget $ Over Budget % of Budget 

FY 2018/19 
Annual Budget 

6901 • VVM Staff Salaries 11,474.16 24,391.00 -12,916.84 47.04% 140,931.00 
6903 • OBMP SAWPA Group 6,421.00 6,742.00 -321.00 95.24% 6,742.00 
Total 6901-6903 • OBMPINM Staff/SAVVPA 17,895.16 31,133.00 -13,237.84 57.48% 147,673.00 
6906 • OBMP Engineering Services 

6906.1 • OBMP - Watermaster Model Update 0.00 9,754.00 -9,754.00 0.0% 58,544.00 
6906.15 • Integrated Model Mtgs. - IEUACosts 2,503.50 3,330.00 -826.50 75.18% 19,960.00 
6906.21 • State of the Basin Report 0.00 26,402.00 -26,402.00 0.0% 158,422.00 
6906.22 • Water Rights Compliance Reporting 12,596.35 4,275.00 8,321.35 294.65% 25,650.00 
6906.23 • SGMA Reporting Requirements 0.00 2,250.00 -2,250.00 0.0% 13,500.00 
6906.24 • Compliance - 5E188 and SVVRCB 0.00 1,352.00 -1,352.00 0.0% 8,092.00 
6906.26 • 2019 OBMP Update 0.00 26,479.00 -26,479.00 0.0% 158,872.00 
6906.27 • HCP Meetings/Tech. Review-1EUA Cost 0.00 2,970.00 -2,970.00 0.0% 17,810.00 
6906.28 • Agriculture Prod. & Estimation 0.00 3,742.00 -3,742.00 0.0% 22,452.00 
6906.31 • OBMP - Pool, Advisory, Board Mtgs. 13,820.52 16,327.00 -2,506.48 84.65% 97,962.00 
6906.32 • OBMP - Other General Meetings 8,628.85 13,513.00 -4,884.15 63.86% 81,093.00 
6906.71 • OBMP - Data Requests - CBWM Staff 22,728.79 16,674.00 6,054.79 136.31% 100,044.00 
6906.72 • OBMP - Data Requests - Non CBVVM 1,686.90 5,388.00 -3,701.10 31.31% 32,348.00 
6906.73 • OBMP - Safe Yield Recalculation 21,661.20 67,814.00 -46,152.80 31.94% 406,884.00 
6906.74 • OBMP - Mat'l Phy. Injury Requests 513.30 11,997.00 -11,483.70 4.28% 71,967.00 
6906.81 • Prepare Annual Reports 2,169.60 3,248.00 -1,078.40 66.8% 19,498.00 
6906.9 • OBMP -2018 RMPU Master Update 54,178.20 9,066.00 45,112.20 597.6% 54,396.00 
6906 • OBMP Engineering Services - Other 3,467.20 5,798.00 -2,330.80 59.8% 34,768.00 

Total 6906 • OBMP Engineering Services 143,954.41 230,379.00 -86,424.59 62.49% 1,382,262.00 
6907 • OBMP Legal Fees 

6907.3 • VVM Legal Counsel 
6907.31 • Archibald South Plume 0.00 2,185.00 -2,185.00 0.0% 13,125.00 
6907.32 • Chino Airport Plume 0.00 2,185.00 -2,185.00 0.0% 13,125.00 
6907.33 • Desalter/Hydraulic Control 0.00 3,935.00 -3,935.00 0.0% 23,625.00 
6907.34 • Santa Ma River Water Rights 278.10 2,715.00 -2,436.90 10.24% 16,275.00 
6907.36 • Santa Ma River Habitat 1,903.95 7,220.00 -5,316.05 26.37% 43,300.00 
6907.38 • Reg. Water Quality Cntrl Board 0.00 2,625.00 -2,625.00 0.0% 15,750.00 
6907.39 • Recharge Master Plan 14,131.77 7,900.00 6,231.77 178.88% 47,400.00 
6907.40 • Storage Agreements 4,386.15 15,400.00 -11,013.85 28.48% 92,400.00 
6907.41 • Prado Basin Habitat Sustainability 263.25 2,710.00 -2,446.75 9.71% 16,250.00 
6907.42 • Safe Yield Recalculation 40,220.44 19,000.00 21,220.44 211.69% 114,000.00 
6907.44 • SGMA Compliance 7,179.63 13,150.00 -5,970.37 54.6% 78,900.00 
6907.45 • OBMP Update 0.00 18,030.00 -18,030.00 0.0% 108,200.00 
6907.90 • WM Legal Counsel - Unanticipated 0.00 5,325.00 -5,325.00 0.0% 31,950.00 

Total 6907 • 1NM Legal Counsel 68,363.29 102,380.00 -34,016.71 66.77% 614,300.00 
Total 6907 • OBMP Legal Fees 68,363.29 102,380.00 -34,016.71 66.77% 614,300.00 
6909 • OBMP Other Expenses 

6909.1 • OBMP Meetings 340.93 250.00 90.93 136.37% 1,500,00 
6909.3 • Other OBMP Expenses 0.00 330.00 -330.00 0.0% 2,000.00 
6909.6 • OBMP Expenses - Miscellaneous 0.00 830.00 -830.00 0.0% 5,000.00 

Total 6909 • OBMP Other Expenses 340.93 1,410.00 -1,069.07 24.18% 8,500.00 
6910 • WEI Support for 1EUA 

6910.50 • INEI Support for IEUA-Billings 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0% 0.00 
Total 6910 • VVEI Support for IEUA 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0% 0.00 

Total 6900 • Optimum Basin Mgmt Plan 230,553.79 365,302.00 -134,748.21 63.11% 2,152,735.00 

PREVIOUSLY REPORTED ACTIONS (Descending Order) 
None 

ENGINEERING SERVICES - OBMP IMPLEMENTATION PROJECTS COSTS 
WILDERMUTH ENVIRONMENTAL, INC. 

CURRENT MONTH - AUGUST 2018 

As of August 31, 2018, the total (YTD) Engineering Services expenses were $300,007 or 14.0% below 

P38 



Budget vs. Actual Report for the Period October 18, 2018 
Page 9 of 16 

the (YTD) budget amount of $2,137,985. The OBMP Implementation Projects (consolidated accounts 
7100's — 7700's) were all under budget as of August 31, 2018, with the exception of the Groundwater 
Quality-Engineering expenses (7103.3) which were over budget by $10,853 or 32.7%; PE4-Engineering 
expenses (7402) which were over budget by $29,542 or 169.0%; and PE8&9-Engineering expenses 
(7602) which were over budget by $1,249 or 1.9%. 

Wildermuth Environmental, Inc. provides Watermaster an Estimated Cost at Completion (ECAC) report 
each quarter. The purpose of this ECAC report is to update Watermaster on whether or not the 
Engineering Services budget will be above or below budget at the end of the fiscal year. If the 
Engineering Services budget is expected to be above budget at fiscal year-end, a Budget Amendment or 
Budget Transfer Form would need to be approved to ensure funding. The first quarter ECAC report (for 
the months July 2018— September 2018) is scheduled to be produced by Wildermuth Environmental, Inc. 
and distributed to Watermaster during the month of October 2018. 

The table listed below summarized the Year-To-Date (YTD) Actual Wildermuth Environmental, Inc., (WEI) 
and other Engineering costs compared to the Year-To-Date (YTD) Budget as of August 31, 2018. Please 
be advised that the "$ Over Budget" and the "% of Budget" columns are a comparison of the (YTD) Actual 
to the (YTD) Budget, not the 12-month Annual Budget. The 12-month Annual Budget column is 
presented only to provide the data in a full and complete format. The following details are provided: 

P39 



Budget vs. Actual Report for the Period 
Page 10 of 16 

October 18, 2018 

Jul '18 - Aug '18 
Actual 

Jul '18- Aug '18 
Budget $ Over Budget % of Budget 

FY 2018/19 
Annual Budget 

6906 • OBMP Engineering Services - Other 3,467.20 5,798.00 -2,330.80 59.8% 34,768.00 
6906.1 • OBMP - Watermaster Model Update 0.00 9,754.00 -9,754.00 0.0% 58,544.00 
6906.15 • Integrated Model Mtgs-IEUA Cost 2,503.50 3,330.00 -826.50 75.18% 19,960.00 
6906.21 • State of the Basin Report 0.00 26,402.00 -26,402.00 0.0% 158,422.00 
6906.22 . Water Rights Compliance Reporting 12,596.35 4,275.00 8,321.35 294.65% 25,650.00 
6906.23 • SGMA Reporting Requirements 0.00 2,250.00 -2,250.00 0.0% 13,500.00 
6906.24 • Compliance - SB88 and SWRCB 0.00 1,352.00 -1,352.00 0.0% 8,092.00 
6906.26 • 2019 obmp Update 0,00 26,479.00 -26,479.00 0.0% 158,872.00 
6906.27 • HCP Meetings/Technical Review-IEUA Cos' 0,00 2,970.00 -2,970.00 0.0% 17,810.00 
6906.28 - Agriculture Prod. & Estimation 0.00 3,742.00 -3,742.00 0.0% 22,452.00 
6906.31 • OBMP - Pool, Advisory, Board Mtgs. 13,820.52 16,327.00 -2,506,48 84.65% 97,962.00 
6906.32 • OBMP - Other General Meetings 8,628.85 13,513.00 -4,884.15 63.86% 81,093.00 
6906.71 • OBMP - Data Requests - CBIMVI Staff 22,728.79 16,674,00 6,054.79 136.31% 100,044.00 
6906.72 • OBMP - Data Requests - Non CBVVM 1,686.90 5,388.00 -3,701.10 31.31% 32,348.00 
6906.73 • OBMP - Safe Yield Recalculation 21,661.20 67,814.00 -46,152.80 31.94% 406,884.00 
6906.74 • OBMP - Mat'l Physical Injury Requests 513.30 11,997.00 -11,483.70 4.28% 71,967.00 
6906.81 • Prepare Annual Reports 2,169.60 3,248.00 -1,078.40 66.8% 19,498.00 
6906.90 • OBMP -2018 RMPU Master Update 54,178.20 9,066.00 45,112.20 597.6% 54,396.00 
7103.3 • Grdwtr Qual-Engineering 44,059.90 33,207.00 10,852.90 132.68% 199,243.00 
7103.5 • Grdwtr Qual-Lab Svcs 0.00 12,940.00 -12,940.00 0.0% 38,820.00 
7104.3 • Grdwtr Level-Engineering 20,863.33 40,054.00 -19,190.67 52.09% 240,328.00 
7104.8 • Grdwtr Level-Contracted Services 0.00 1,670.00 -1,670.00 0.0% 10,000.00 
7104.9 • Grdwtr Level-Capital Equipment 0.00 1,330.00 -1,330.00 0.0% 8,000.00 
7107.2 • Grd Level-Engineering 8,081.14 37,059.00 -28,977.86 21.81% 98,243.00 
7107.3 • Grd Level-SAR Imagery 12,000.00 15,000.00 -3,000.00 80.0% 85,000.00 
7107.6 • Grd Level-Contract Svcs 9,370.71 32,647.00 -23,276.29 28.7% 92,227.00 
7107.8 • Grd Level-Capital Equipment 0.00 2,112.00 -2,112.00 0.0% 12,692.00 
7108.31 • Hydraulic Control-PBHSP 4,558.05 12,859.00 -8,300.95 35.45% 77,159.00 
7108.4 • Hydraulic Control-Lab Svcs 1,634.00 2,260.00 -626.00 72.3% 9,038.00 
7108.41 • Hydraulic Control-PBHSP 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0% 15,026.00 
7108.6 • Hydraulic Control-Outside Professionals 0.00 1,670.00 -1,670.00 0.0% 10,000.00 
7109.3 • Recharge & Well - Engineering 1,448.40 4,208.00 -2,759.60 0.0% 25,248.00 
7202.2 • Comp Recharge-Engineering Services 4,070.97 15,270.00 -11,199.03 26.66% 91,640.00 
7303 • PE3&5-Engineering - Other 0.00 1,630.00 -1,630.00 0.0% 9,760.00 
7402 • PE4-Engineering 47,026.85 17,485.00 29,541.85 268.96% 104,910.00 
7402.10 • PE4-MZ1 Pomona Project 1,470,361.18 1,559,137.00 -88,775.82 94.31% 1,703,417.00 
7403 • PE4-Contract Svcs 0.00 1,670.00 -1,670.00 0.0% 10,000.00 
7502 • PE6&7-Engineering 2,272.30 14,652.00 -12,379.70 15.51% 87,912.00 
7510 • PE6&7-IEUASalinity Mgmt. Plan 0.00 33,718.00 -33,718.00 0.0% 108,178.00 
7602 • PE8&9-Engineering 68,276.80 67,028.00 1,248.80 101.86% 105,348.00 

Total Engineering Services Costs 1,837,978.04 2,137,985.00 -300,006.96 85.97% 4,524,451.00 * 

" VVildermuth and Subcontractor Engineering Budget of $2,929,798 plus Carryover Funds from FY 2017/18 of $1,594,653 
Carryover Funds from FY 2017/18 of $1,594,653 = $24,822 (7107.2); $20,727 (7107.6); $1,530,279 (7402.10); and $18,825 (7510) 

PREVIOUSLY REPORTED ACTIONS (Descending Order) 

July 2018: 
The breakdown of the total Task Order amount of $2,929,798 includes direct labor costs for Wildermuth 
Environmental, Inc. (87.2%) along with other direct charges such as equipment rental, laboratory fees, 
travel costs, reproduction costs, and outside professional services (12.8%). 

The approved "Original" Engineering Services budget of $2,929,798 was increased by "Carry Over" 
funding in the amount of $1,594,653 to the "Amended" amount of $4,524,451 for FY 2018/19 as provided 
in the Engineering Services Task Order. All of the "Carry Over" funding is for projects or activities that 
have bridged previous fiscal years and are expected to be completed in the FY 2018/19 timeframe or 
future years. The Carry-Over amount of $1,594,653 from FY 2017/18 to the FY 2018/19 budget are 
provided in detail as follows: 

P40 



Budget vs. Actual Report for the Period October 18, 2018 
Page 11 of 16 

1. 7107.2 Ground-Level - Engineering Services of $24,822. The Watermaster's Subsidence 
Management Plan includes a "long-term pumping test" in the Managed Area to test the Guidance 
Level that was budgeted for in FY 2017/18. The test was not performed in FY 2017/18. This 
carryover budget will support the monitoring of injection, production, groundwater levels, and ground 
motion associated with the test, if it is performed in FY 2018/19. 

2. 7107.6 Ground-Level - Contract Services of $20,727. The Watermaster's Subsidence Management 
Plan includes a "long-term pumping test" in the Managed Area to test the Guidance Level that was 
budgeted for in FY 2017/18. The test was not performed in FY 2017/18. This carryover budget will 
support the monitoring of injection, production, groundwater levels, and ground motion associated 
with the test, if it is performed in FY 2018/19. 

3. 7402.1 OBMP Engineering Services Northwest MZ-1 for $1,530,279. The installation of the Pomona 
Extensometer has been delayed until FY 2018/19 and the monitoring program in Northwest MZ-1 has 
not yet been fully implemented. The carryover request will support the efforts to drill, construct, 
equip, test, and document the installation of the Pomona Extensometer, and complete the installation 
of the monitoring network in Northwest MZ-1. 

4. 7510 IEUA - Update Recycled Water Permit-Salinity for $18,825. The Salinity Management effort is a 
2.5-year project and is being cost shared with IEUA. FY 2017/18 was the first year of 
implementation. The unspent budget in FY 2017/18 is necessary to complete the total project. 

PRADO BASIN HABITAT SUSTAINABILITY PROGRAM 

Ongoing Costs 
Program costs that are ongoing (Ongoing Costs) will be cost-shared between Watermaster and IEUA, 
split on a 50/50 basis, subject to the following limitation: in each fiscal year, neither Watermaster nor 
IEUA shall be obligated to reimburse the other for Ongoing Costs that exceed the amount that the 
reimbursing party has budgeted for Ongoing Costs in that fiscal year, except as agreed upon by both 
parties in writing or as amended during the fiscal year. The first year expenses (FY 2016/17) to be cost 
shared were approximately $300,000, with projected future years (FY 2017/18 and forward) estimated at 
approximately $150,000. For the purposes of the agreement, Ongoing Costs are defined as the costs 
associated with the following Program activities: 

1. A Riparian Habitat Monitoring Program, including, but not limited to, the following sub-tasks: 
a. Design and implement a site—specific vegetation monitoring program with the United States 

Bureau of Reclamation (USBR) and Orange County Water District, pursuant to which USBR 
will perform site-specific vegetation surveys. 

b. Manage and perform custom flight to collect a high resolution air photo of the Prado Basin 
Region. 

c. Collect, check, and upload historical air photos and vegetation survey data in the Prado Basin 
region. 

d. Collect, check, and upload historical Landsat data in the Prado Basin region. 

2. A Climate Monitoring Program, including, but not limited to, the following sub-task: 
a. Collect, check, and upload climatic data on an annual basis 

3. Preparation of the AMP Annual Report (Annual Report), including, but not limited to, the following 
sub-tasks: 

a. Water level monitoring, vegetation survey, photo monitoring, landsat data, climate data and 
analysis of the components. 

b. Analyze data and prepare an administrative draft of the Annual Report for Watermaster/IEUA. 
c. Incorporate the Watermaster and IEUA comments and prepare a draft Annual Report for 

review by the PBHSC. 
d. Meet with PBHSC to review draft Annual Report. 
e. Incorporate PBHSC comments and finalize the Annual Report. 

P41 



Budget vs. Actual Report for the Period October 18, 2018 
Page 12 of 16 

4. Annual license fees for monitoring wells. 

5. Project management and administration activities associated with the Program undertaken by a 
Party's consultant, including, but not limited to, the following sub-tasks: 

a. Ad-Hoc Meetings 
b. Preparation of scope and budget for the Program 
c. Project administration and financial reporting 

6. Other costs required to fulfill the requirements of Peace II Subsequent EIR mitigation measure 4.4-3. 

Watermaster shall be responsible for the costs associated with the Groundwater Level Monitoring 
Program, Groundwater Quality Monitoring Program, and Surface Water Monitoring Program. 

Watermaster and IEUA shall each have responsibility for its own administrative costs, excluding the tasks 
and expenses included under Set-Up Costs and Ongoing Costs. 

Watermaster and IEUA will meet to review the cost-sharing structure under this agreement and negotiate 
necessary adjustments in good faith on at least an annual basis. 

The Peace II SE1R does not explicitly state a duration for the monitoring and mitigation program. It is 
logical to assume that the program will last until the drawdown impacts, if any, on the riparian habitat from 
Peace II activities are fully manifested and not predicated to worsen, and that mitigation measures, if any 
are required, are fully implemented. This is not a perpetual agreement. Upon termination of the 
monitoring and any necessary mitigation obligations, the parties may elect to terminate the cost share 
agreement. 

Wildermuth 50% Billing 50% Billing 
Environmental, "TO" "FROM" 

Costs For 

Inc. IEUA IEUA 
Watermaster 

Jul. 2018 - Aug. 2018 $ 9,116.10 $ (4,558.05) $ $ 4,558.05  
Totals $ 9,116.10 $ (4,558.05) $ - $ 4,558.05  

7108.31 7108.31 7108.31 

Maximum Costs $ 174,318.00 $ 87,159.00 $ 87,159.00 $ 87,159.00 

PREVIOUSLY REPORTED ACTIONS (Descending Order) 
None: 

OTHER INCOME AND EXPENSE 

There were no other significant items to report within the category of Other Income and Expenses for the 
month ending August 31, 2018. 

PREVIOUSLY REPORTED ACTIONS (Descending Order) 

July 2018: 
Per section VI.D.3 of the Groundwater Storage Program Funding Agreement No. 49960 in the Chino 
Basin with The Metropolitan Water District of Southern California, the FY 2018/19 annual administrative 
fee invoice was issued on July 6, 2018 in the amount of $167,712.36 under invoice number 2018-DYY. 
Payment in the amount of $167,712.36 was received and deposited on August 7, 2018. 

"CARRY OVER" FUNDING 
BACKGROUND OF "CARRY OVER" FUNDING 

P42 



Budget vs. Actual Report for the Period October 18, 2018 
Page 13 of 16 

Once the FY 2017/18 period as of June 30, 2018 was closed, the amount of unfinished capital projects 
and related engineering costs was calculated and the "Carry Over funding amount was added to the 
current FY 2018/19 budget. The Total "Carry Over" funding amount of $4,728,140.07 was posted to the 
accounts as of July 1, 2018. The total amount of $4,728,140.07 consisted of $3,068,940.82 from Capital 
Improvement Projects, $1,594,653.00 from Engineering Services, and $64,546.25 from Administration 
Services ($3,068,940.82 + $1,594,653.00 + $64,546.25 = $4,728,140.07). 

CURRENT MONTH — AUGUST 2018 

As of August 31, 2018, the total (YTD) amount remaining of the "Carried Over" funding is $2,110,726.45 
($4,728,140.07 -$2,617,413.62 = $2,110,726.45). 

The following details are provided: 

"Carried 0\er" Expenses At June 30, 2018 

Blomquist Report - Update 7,500.00 

Grd Level - MVWD SCADA Reimbursement 57,046.25 

A 

B 

GL Account 

ADMI N 

ADMI N 

6061.6 

7107.63 

FY 2017/18 

FY 2017/18 

Ground Level - Engineering Services 24,822.00 C 7107,2 2 FY 2017/18 ENG 

Ground Level - Contract Services 20,727.00 D 7107.6 3 FY 2017/18 ENG 

PE4 - Northwest MZ-1 Area Project $ 1,530,279.00 E 7402.1 4 FY 2017/18 ENG 

PE6&7-IEUA Salinity Mgmt. Plan 18,825.00 7510" FY 2017/18 ENG 

Jurupa Pumping Station (TO #5) 37,981.33 G 7209.1 1  FY 2013/14 PROJ 

Wineville Basin Proof of Concept (TO #6) 35,397.53 H 7209.2 1  FY 2013/14 PROJ 

RMPU Amendment (TO #1) $ 589,923.18 I 7690.15 FY 2016/17 PROJ 

East Declez Basin (TO #1) 1,171.33 J 7690.16' FY 2016/17 PROJ 

Hickory Basin Recharge Impro\ennent Project 3,877.00 K 7690,3 1  FY 2013/14 PROJ 

San Sevaine Recharge Impro\ement Project (TO #8) $ 106,590.18 L 7690.4 FY 2014/15 PROJ 

San Sevaine Recharge Improvement Project (TO #8) $ 1,126,900.00 L 7690.4 FY 2015/16 PROJ 

San Sevaine Recharge Impro\ement Project (TO #8) $ 1,065,600.00 L 7690.4 FY 2016/17 PROJ 

CB20 Turnout Noise Abatement Project 859.80 M 7690.5 1  FY 2013/14 PROJ 

GWR SCADA Upgrades (TO #4) 36,615.05 N 7690.61 FY 2014/15 PROJ 

GWR SCADA Upgrades (TO #4) 38,675.00 N 7690.61 FY 2015/16 PROJ 

Upper Santa Ana Ri\er HCP (TO #7) 15,062.88 0 7690.7 FY 2014/15 PROJ 

Upper Santa Ana River HCP (TO #7) 5,000.00 0 7690.7 FY 2015/16 PROJ 

Lower Day Basin RMPU (TO #2) 5,287.54 P 7690.8 FY 2016/17 PROJ 

Total Balance, June 30, 2018 $ 4,728,140.07 

P43 



G 7209.1 1  

H 7209.2 1  

I 7690.15 

J 7690.16 1  

K 7690.3 1  

L 7690.4 

L 7690.4 

L 7690.4 

M 7690.5 1  

N 7690.61 

N 7690.61 

0 7690.7 

0 7690.7 

P 7690.8 

Q 7690.9 

FY 2013/14 PROJ 

FY 2013/14 PROJ 

FY 2016/17 PROJ 

FY 2016/17 PROJ 

FY 2013/14 PROJ 

FY 2014/15 PROJ 

FY 2015/16 PROJ 

FY 2016/17 PROJ 

FY 2013/14 PROJ 

FY 2014/15 PROJ 

FY 2015/16 PROJ 

FY 2014/15 PROJ 

FY 2015/16 PROJ 

FY 2016/17 PROJ 

Budget Transfer T-18-07-01 (IN) 

Budget vs. Actual Report for the Period 

Page 14 of 16 

"Carried Over" Balance, July 1, 2018 

Less: (Invoices Received To Date FY 2018/19) 

$ 4,728,140.07 

October 18, 2018 

Ground Lew! - Engineering Services $ (8,081.14) C 7107.2 2 

Ground Level - Contract Services $ (9,370.71) D 7107.6 5 

PE4 - Northwest MZ-1 Area Project $ (1,470,361.18) E 7402.1 4 

Jurupa Pumping Station (TO #5) $ (37,981.33) G 7209.1 1  Budget Transfer T-18-07-01 (OUT) 

Wineville Basin Proof of Concept (TO #6) $ (35,397.53) H 7209.2 1  Budget Transfer T-18-07-01 (OUT) 

RMPU Amendment (TO #1) $ 690,258.97 I 7690.15 Budget Transfer T-18-07-01 (IN) 

RMPU Amendment (TO #1) $ (980,182.15) I 7690.15 Invoice Paid 

Hickory Basin Recharge Improvement Project $ (3,877.00) K 7690.3 1  Budget Transfer T-18-07-01 (OUT) 

San Sevaine Recharge Improvement Project (TO #8) $ (106,590.18) L 7690.4 Budget Transfer T-18-07-01 (OUT) 

San Sevaine Recharge Improvement Project (TO #8) $ (1,126,900.00) L 7690.4 Budget Transfer T-18-07-01 (OUT) 

San Sevaine Recharge Improvement Project (TO #8) $ (1,065,600.00) L 7690.4 Budget Transfer T-18-07-01 (011T) 

CB20 Turnout Noise Abatement Project $ (859.80) M 7690.5 1  Budget Transfer T-18-07-01 (OUT) 

GWR SCADA Upgrades (TO #4) $ (29,590.05) N 7690.61 

Lower Day Basin RMPU (TO #2) $ 414,540.85 P 7690.8 Budget Transfer T-18-07-01 (IN) 

Lower Day Basin RMPU (TO #2) $ (119,828.39) P 7690.8 Invoice Paid 

Funds on Hold for Projects $ 1,272,406.02 Q 7690.9 Budget Transfer T-18-07-01 (IN) 

Updated Balance as of August 31, 2018 $ 2,110,726.45 

1  Project completed with funds available for (1) reallocation to another project, (2) paydown debt service, (3) maintain as extra funding, or 
(4) distribution to the Appropriative Pool as a credit through the Assessment invoicing. 

z Engineering work not completed in FY2017/18 to perform ground level surveys for the long-term pumping test. 
3 Outside professionals work not completed in FY2017/18 to perform ground level surveys for the long-term pumping test. 
4 Work not completed in FY2017/18 for installation of the Pomona extensometer and monitoring program for the Northwest MZ-1 area. 
5  Watermaster's portion of the unused FY2017/18 budget to finalize the 2.5 year project to Update Recycled Water Permit with IEUA 

Updated Balance as of August 31, 2018 

Blomquist Report - Update $ 7,500.00 A 6061.6 FY 2017/18 ADMIN 

Grd Level - MVWD SCADA Reimbursement $ 57,046.25 B 7107.63 FY2017/18 ADMIN 

Ground Level - Engineering Services $ 16,740.86 C 7107.2 2 FY 2017/18 ENG 

Ground Level - Contract Services $ 11,356.29 D 7107.6 5 FY 2017/18 ENG 

PE4 - Northwest MZ-1 Area Project $ 59,917.82 E 7402.1 4 FY 2017/18 ENG 

PE6&7-IEUA Salinity Mgmt. Plan $ 18,825.00 F 7510 5 FY 2017/18 ENG 

Jurupa Pumping Station (TO #5) 

Wineville Basin Proof of Concept (TO #6) 

RMPU Amendment (TO #1) 

East Declez Basin (TO #1) 

Hickory Basin Recharge Improvement Project 

San Sevaine Recharge Improvement Project (TO #8) 

San Sevaine Recharge Improvement Project (TO #8) 

San Sevaine Recharge Improvement Project (TO #8) 

CB20 Turnout Noise Abatement Project 

GWR SCADA Upgrades (TO #4) 

GWR SCADA Upgrades (TO #4) 

Upper Santa Ana River HCP (TO #7) 

Upper Santa Ana River HCP (TO #7) 

Lower Day Basin RMPU (TO #2) 

Funds on Hold for Projects 

Updated Balance as of August 31, 2018  

- 

- 

300,000.00 

1,171.33 

_ 

_ 

_ 

- 

7,025.00 

38,675.00 

15,062.88 

5,000.00 

300,000.00 

1,272,406.02 

2,110,726.45 

P44 



Budget vs. Actual Report for the Period October 18, 2018 
Page 15 of 16 

ADMINISTRATION SERVICES: 
Unspent funds related to ongoing projects and associated activities from the Administration Services 
budget from FY 2017/18 in several accounts totaling $64,546.25 were "Carried Over" into the current FY 
2018/19 budget. These funds were from the Blomquist Report-Update [A] in the amount of $7,500 in 
account (6061.6); and Ground Level — MVVVD SCADA Reimbursement [B] in the amount of $57,046.25 in 
account (7107.63). 

ENGINEERING SERVICES: 
Unspent funds related to ongoing projects and associated activities from the Engineering Services budget 
from FY 2017/18 in several accounts totaling $1,594,653 were "Carried Over" into the current FY 2018/19 
budget. These funds were from the Ground Level - Engineering Services [C] in the amount of $24,822 in 
account (7107.2); Ground Level - Contract Services [D] in the amount of $20,727 in account (7107.6); 
PE4 — Northwest MZ-1 Area Project [E] in the amount of $1,530,279 in account (7402.1); and PE6&7-
IEUA Salinity Management Plan [F] in the amount of $18,825 in account (7510). 

COMPLETED PROJECTS WITH FUNDING AVAILABLE: 
Several projects were completed during FY 2017/18 or in prior years and have remaining funds available 
to be either (1) reallocated to other project(s) that need additional funding, (2) keep amounts on reserve 
for future Capital Improvement Projects, (3) pay down the debt service; or (4) refunded back to the 
Appropriative Pool when the Assessment package is invoiced. The funding amounts available are as 
follows: Jurupa Pumping Station [G] in the amount of $37,981.33 (account 7209.1); Wineville Basin Proof 
of Concept [H] in the amount of $35,397.53 (account 7209.2); East Declez Basin [J] in the amount of 
$1,171.33 (account 7690.16); Hickory Basin Recharge Improvement Project [K] in the amount of 
$3,877.00 (account 7690.3); and CB20 Turnout Noise Abatement Project [M] in the amount of $859.80 
(account 7690.5). The total amount available is $79,286.99 ($37,981.33 + $35,397.53 + $1,171.33 + 
$3,877.00 + $859.80 = $79,286.99). 

ONGOING RECHARGE IMPROVEMENT PROJECTS: 
The RMPU Amendment-Task Order #1 [I] has a remaining budget from FY 2016/17 of $589,923.18 in 
account (7690.15); the San Sevaine Recharge Improvement Project-Task Order #8 [L] has a remaining 
funded budget balance of $2,299,090.18 in account (7690.4); the GWR SCADA Upgrades-Task Order #4 
[N] has a remaining funded budget balance of $75,290.05 in account (7690.61); the Upper Santa Ana 
River HCP-Task Order #7 [0] has a remaining funded balance of $20,062.88 in account (7690.7); and the 
Lower Day Basin RMPU-Task Order #2 [P] has a remaining funded budget balance of $5,287.54 in 
account (7690.8). The total funded budget for these combined projects is $2,989,653.83. 

As invoices are received from the vendors and booked against these items listed above, the "Carried 
Over" balance will be reduced throughout the current fiscal year. At August 31, 2019, any remaining 
balances of the FY 2018/19 and prior years funding (if any), along with any new FY 2018/19 expenses, 
will then be "Carried Over" into the FY 2019/20 budget. 

AUDIT FIELD WORK 

FY 2017/18: 
The auditors from the audit firm of Fedak & Brown LLP were onsite at the Watermaster offices on April 
17, 2018. This was the start of the interim field work for the period of July 1, 2017 through February 28, 
2018. The final field work for the period of March 1, 2018 through June 30, 2018 was completed during 
August 7, 2018 through August 8, 2018. The Annual Financial and Audit Reports are scheduled to be 
presented to the Watermaster Board by Fedak & Brown LLP at the October 25, 2018 Board meeting. 
The Annual Financial and Audit Reports for FY 2017/18 are anticipated to be posted to the Watermaster 
website no later than October 31, 2018. 

ASSESSMENT INVOICING 

CURRENT MONTH — AUGUST 2018 

P45 



Budget vs. Actual Report for the Period October 18, 2018 
Page 16 of 16 

The FY 2018/19 Assessment Package (Draft) is scheduled for presentation at Workshop #1 on Tuesday, 
October 23, 2018 at 1:00pm. If needed, the FY 2018/19 Assessment Package (Draft) is also scheduled 
for presentation at Workshop #2 on Tuesday, October 30, 2018 at 1:00pm. 

The FY 2018/19 Assessment Package is scheduled for presentation to the Pools on Thursday, November 
8,2018 and to the Advisory Committee and Board on Thursday, November 15, 2018. 

If the FY 2018/19 Assessment Package is approved by the Advisory Committee and adopted by the 
Board on Thursday, November 15, 2018, the Assessment invoices will be issued by Watermaster no later 
than Friday, November 16, 2018 with payment due 30-days after invoice date. Payments will be due to 
Watermaster on Monday, December 17, 2018. As past practice, payment can be made to Watermaster 
by either a wire transfer or check. Per the judgment, late fees could be assessed for any payment not 
received as of 5:00pm on Monday, December 17, 2018. 

To date, all assessment invoice payments have been received. No Assessment activity for the month to 
report. 

PREVIOUSLY REPORTED ACTIONS (Descending Order) 
None: 

ATTACHMENTS 
1. Financial Report - B5 

P46 



03:08 PM 
10/02/18 
Accrual Basis 

CHINO BASIN VVATERMASTER 
Budget vs. Actual 

Current Month, Year-To-Date and Fiscal Year-End 

Financial Report - 55 

Income 

1/12th (8.33%) of the Total Budget 2/12th (16.67%) of the Total Budget 100% of the Total Budget 

For The Month of August 2018 Year-To-Date as of August 31, 2018 Fiscal Year End as of June 30, 2019 

Actual Budget $ Over(Under) % of Budget Actual Budget $ Over(Under) % of Budget Projected Budget $ Over(Under) % of Budget 

4010 • Local Agency Subsidies 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0% 167,712.36 167,712.00 0.36 100.0% 167,712.00 167,712.00 0.00 100.0% 

4110 • Admin Asmnts-Approp Pool 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0% 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0% 8,301,750.00 8,301,750.00 0.00 100.0% 

4120 • Admin Asmnts-Non-Agri Pool 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0% 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0% 353,795.00 353,795.00 0.00 100.0% 

4700 • Non Operating Revenues 10.25 0.00 10.25 100.0% 20.67 0.00 20.67 100.0% 63,968.00 63,968.00 0.00 100.0% 

4900 • Miscellaneous Income 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0% 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0% 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0% 

Total Income 10.25 0.00 10.25 100.0% 167,733.03 167,712.00 21.03 100.01% 8,887,225.00 8,887,225.00 0.00 100.0% 

Gross Profit 

erpise 

10.25 

89,884.27 

0.00 

92,451.00 

10.25 

-2,566.73 

100.0% 

97.22% 

167,733.03 

188,992.91 

167,712.00 

181,583.00 

21.03 

7,409.91 

100.01% 

104.08% 

8,887,225.00 

1,062,695.00 

8,887,225.00 

1,062,695.00 

0.00 

0.00 

100.0% 

100.0% 6010 • Admin. Salary/Benefit Costs 

6020 Office Building Expense 9,455.37 10,034.00 -578.63 94.23% 17,808.05 18,818.00 -1,009.95 94.63% 112,399.00 112,399.00 0.00 100.0% 

6030 • Office Supplies & Equip. 3,519.06 3,325.00 194.06 105.84% 4,996.19 5,075.00 -78.81 98.45% 50,500.00 50,500.00 0.00 100.0% 

6040 • Postage & Printing Costs 3,595.51 3,402.00 193.51 105.69% 6,192.21 6,354.00 -161.79 97.45% 47,142.00 47,142.00 0.00 100.0% 

6050 • Information Services 14,074.24 15,208.00 -1,133.76 92.55% 29,967.78 31,136.00 -1,168.22 96.25% 151,656.00 151,656.00 0.00 100.0% 

6060 • Contract Services 3,915.91 5,000.00 -1,084.09 78.32% 5,895.21 16,100.00 -10,204.79 36.62% 45,125.00 45,125.00 0.00 100.0% 

6070 • 1Natermaster Legal Services 33,909,78 13,001.00 20,908.78 260.82% 93,377.69 26,003.00 67,374.69 359.1% 156,015.00 156,015.00 0.00 100.0% 

6080 • Insurance 9,544.19 0.00 9,544.19 100.0% 35,660.67 28,815.00 6,845.67 123.76% 30,315.00 30,315.00 0.00 100.0% 

6110 • Dues and Subscriptions 0.00 250.00 -250.00 0.0% 14,132.50 15,098.00 -965.50 93.61% 34,590.00 34,590.00 0.00 100.0% 

6140 • WM Admin Expenses 22.36 50.00 -27.64 44.72% 206.48 250.00 -43.52 82.59% 2,350.00 2,350.00 0.00 100.0% 

-4.6150 • Field Supplies 0.00 150.00 -150.00 0.0% 21.29 200.00 -178.71 10.65% 1,550.00 1,550.00 0.00 100.0% 

6170 • Travel & Transportation 963.71 2,355.00 -1,391.29 40.92% 2,805.44 4,230.00 -1,424.56 66.32% 24,170.00 24,170.00 0.00 100.0% 

6190 • Training, Conferences, Seminars 2,394.56 2,524.00 -129.44 94.87% 5,539.80 6,848.00 -1,308.20 80.9% 37,857.00 37,857.00 0.00 100.0% 

6200 • Advisory Comm - WM Board 3,583.64 4,257.00 -673.36 84.18% 8,249.52 8,416.00 -166.48 98.02% 47,539.00 47,539.00 0.00 100.0% 

6300 • Watermaster Board Expenses 12,416.15 13,596.00 -1,179.85 91.32% 29,012.39 27,011.00 2,001.39 107.41% 178,980.00 178,980.00 0.00 100.0% 

8300 • Appr PI-WM & Pool Admin 12,376.00 12,111.00 265.00 102.19% 25,599.09 24,079.00 1,520.09 106.31% 140,552.00 140,552.00 0.00 100.0% 

8400 • Agri Pool-WM & Pool Admin 3,733.98 5,541.00 -1,807.02 67.39% 7,552.41 10,959.00 -3,406.59 68.92% 62,054.00 62,054.00 0.00 100.0% 

8467 • Ag Legal & Technical Services 31,716.73 17,083.00 14,633.73 185.66% 67,116.73 34,167.00 32,949.73 196.44% 205,000.00 205,000.00 0.00 100.0% 

8470 • Ag Meeting Attend -Special 1,250.00 1,850.00 -600.00 67.57% 2,275.00 3,700.00 -1,425.00 61.49% 22,200.00 22,200.00 0.00 100.0% 

8471 • Ag Pool Expense 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0% 14,018.00 15,000.00 -982.00 93.45% 85,000.00 85,000.00 0.00 100.0% 

8485 • Ag Pool - Misc. Exp. - Ag Fund 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0% 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0% 400.00 400.00 0.00 100.0% 

8500 Non-Ag PI-WM & Pool Admin 11,181.72 9,470.00 1,711.72 118.08% 26,509.57 18,857.00 7,652.57 140.58% 109,837.00 109,837.00 0.00 100.0% 

9400 • Depreciation Expense 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0% 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0% 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0% 

9500 • Allocated G&A Expenditures -15,210.42 -34,935.00 19,724.58 43.54% -34,628.56 -69,871.00 35,242.44 49.56% -419,223.00 -419,223.00 0.00 100.0% 

6900 • Optimum Basin Mgmt Plan 123,101.29 179,559.00 -56,457.71 68.56% 230,553.79 365,302.00 -134,748.21 63.11% 2,152,735.00 2,152,735.00 0.00 100.0% 

9501 • G&A Expenses Allocated-OBMP 3,047.63 10,044.00 -6,996.37 30.34% 5,315.10 20,092.00 -14,776.90 26.45% 120,532.00 120,532.00 0.00 100.0% 

7101 • Production Monitoring 2,366.70 5,735.00 -3,368.30 41.27% 7,352.54 11,224.00 -3,871.46 65.51% 64,875.00 64,875.00 0.00 100.0% 

7102 • In-line Meter Installation 0.00 31,772.00 -31,772.00 0.0% 0.00 63,465.00 -63,465.00 0.0% 380,107.00 380,107.00 0.00 100.0% 

7103 • Grdwtr Quality Monitoring 27,902.49 30,630.00 -2,727.51 91.1% 51,725.83 60,985.00 -9,259.17 84.82% 324,329.00 324,329.00 0.00 100.0% 

7104 • Gdwtr Level Monitoring 16,279.17 28,121.00 -11,841.83 57.89% 30,903.73 55,998.00 -25,094.27 55.19% 333,553.00 333,553.00 0.00 100.0% 

7105 • Sur 1Ntr Qual Monitoring 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0% 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0% 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0% 

7106 • 1Ntr Level Sensors Installation 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0% 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0% 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0% 

7107 • Ground Level Monitoring 3,592.96 19,736.00 -16,143.04 18.21% 29,451.85 157,046.25 -127,594.40 18.75% 424,094.25 424,094.25 0.00 100.0% 

Page 1 of 2 



For The Month of August 2018 

Actual Budget $ Over(Under) % of Budget 

4,558.05 8,102.00 -3,543.95 56.26% 

1,448.40 2,104.00 -655.60 68.84% 

7,412.36 -59,733.86 67,146.22 -12.41% 

0.00 2,827.00 -2,827.00 0.0% 

1,492,941.64 25,089.00 1,467,852.64 5,950.58% 

1,416.30 15,702.00 -14,285.70 9.02% 

20,216.36 18,946.00 1,270.36 106.71% 

1,129,600.59 73,378.86 1,056,221.73 1,539.41% 

0.00 42.00 -42.00 0.0% 

12,162.79 24,891.00 -12,728.21 48.86% 

3,078,373.49 593,668.00 2,464,705.49 518.54% 

-3,078,363.24 -593,668.00 -2,484,695.24 518.53% 

0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0% 

0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0% 

0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0% 

0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0% 

0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0% 

0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0% 

0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0% 

0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0% 

0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0% 

0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0% 

0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0% 

0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0% 

0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0% 

0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0% 

0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0% 

0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0% 

0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0% 

-3,078,363.24 -593,668.00 -2,484,695.24 518.53% 

Year-To-Date as of August 31, 2018 

Actual Budget $ Over(Under) % of Budget 

6,192.05 18,431.00 -12,238.95 33.6% 

1,448.40 4,208.00 -2,759.60 34.42% 

306,621.97 320,631.00 -14,009.03 95.63% 

1,474.40 5,599.00 -4,124.60 26.33% 

1,520,567.20 1,580,425.00 -59,857.80 96.21% 

2,272.30 50,190.00 -47,917.70 4.53% 

70,520.75 70,783.00 -262.25 99.63% 

1,710,185.59 3,649,525.82 -1,939,340.23 46.86% 

0.00 84.00 -84.00 0.0% 

29,313.46 49,781.00 -20,467.54 58.89% 

4,555,199.33 6,896,598.07 -2,341,398.74 66.05% 

-4,387,466.30 -6,728,886.07 2,341,419.77 65.2% 

0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0% 

0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0% 

0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0% 

0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0% 

0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0% 

0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0% 

0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0% 

0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0% 

0.00 0.00' 0.00 0.0% 

0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0% 

0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0% 

0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0% 

0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0% 

0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0% 

0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0% 

0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0% 

0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0% 

-4,387,466.30 -6,728,886.07 2,341,419.77 65.2% 

Fiscal Year End as of June 30, 2019 

Projected Budget $ Over(Under) % of Budget 

120,704.00 120,704.00 0.00 100.0% 

25,248.00 25,248.00 0.00 100.0% 

1,334,437.00 1,334,437.00 0.00 100.0% 

32,934.00 32,934.00 0.00 100.0% 

1,830,746.00 1,830,746.00 0.00 100.0% 

206,603.00 206,603.00 0.00 100.0% 

127,048.00 127,048.00 0.00 100.0% 

3,649,525.82 3,649,525.82 0.00 100.0% 

500.00 500.00 0.00 100.0% 

298,691.00 298,691.00 0.00 100.0% 

13,615,365 07 13,615,365.07 0.00 100.0% 

-4,728,140.07 -4,728,140.07 0.00 100.0% 

0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0% 

0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0% 

0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0% 

0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0% 

0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0% 

0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0% 

0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0% 

0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0% 

0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0% 

0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0% 

0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0% 

0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0% 

0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0% 

0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0% 

0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0% 

0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0% 

0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0% 

-4,728,140.07 -4,728,140.07 0.00 100.0% 

03:08 PM CHINO BASIN WATERMASTER 
10/02/18 Budget vs. Actual 
Accrual Basis Current Month, Year-To-Date and Fiscal Year-End 

Financial Report- B5 

1/12th (8.33%) of the Total Budget 2/12th (16.67%) of the Total Budget 100% of the Total Budget 

7108 • Hydraulic Control Monitoring 

7109 • Recharge & Well Monitoring Prog 

7200 • PE2- Comp Recharge Pgm 

7300 • PE3&5-Water Supply/Desalte 

7400 • PE4- Mgmt Plan 

7500 • PE6&7-CoopEfforts/SaltMgmt 

7600 • PE8&9-StorageMgmt/Conj Use 

7690 • Recharge Improvement Debt Pymt 

7700 • Inactive Well Protection Prgm 

9502 • G&A Expenses Allocated-Projects 

Total Expense 

Net Ordinary Income 

Other Income  

4210 • Approp Pool-Replenishment 

4220 • Non-Ag Pool-Replenishment 

4225 • Interest Income 

4226 • LAIF Fair Market Value 

-04600 • Groundwater Sales 

-I=.4715 • Gain on Sale of Assets 
CO 
Total Other Income 

Other Expense  

5010 • Groundwater Replenishment 

5100 • Other Water Purchases 

9200 • Interest Expense 

9251 • Other Post Employment Benefits 

9996 • Refund-Excess Reserves-Approp. 

9997 • Refund-Excess Reserves-NonAg 

9998 • Refund-Recharge Debt-Approp. 

9999 • To/(From) Reserves 

Total Other Expense 

Net Other Income 

Net Income 

Note: Please see the staff report (Financial Report-B5) for additional detailed information on the account categories. 

Page 2 of 2 



CHINO BASIN WATERMASTER 

II. BUSINESS ITEMS  
A. CHINO BASIN STORAGE FRAMEWORK 



ti‘ efr  „r• • 
47 gasin Wdeill  

CHINO BASIN WATERMASTER 
9641 San Bernardino Road, Rancho Cucamonga, Ca 91730 

Tel: 909.484.3888 Fax: 909.484.3890 www.cbwm.org  

PETER KAVOUNAS, P.E. 
General Manager 

STAFF REPORT 

DATE: October 18, 2018 

TO: Advisory Committee 

SUBJECT: Chino Basin Storage Framework (Business Item IA.) 

SUMMARY 

Issue: The Chino Basin Storage Framework investigation has been completed and needs to be 
presented to the Watermaster Board, to be authorized for use in future evaluations of storage. 

Recommendation: Recommend to the Watermaster Board to receive and file the Final Storage 
Framework Investigation Report, and authorize the use of the tools and technical information 
developed by the investigation for storage planning and future evaluations. 

Financial Impact: There is no financial impact to Watermaster as a result of the recommendation, 

Future Consideration  
Advisory Committee - October 18, 2018: Advice and assistance 
Watermaster Board - October 25, 2018: Approval [Within WM Duties and Powers] 

ACTIONS:  
Appropriative Pool - October 11, 2018: Voted unanimously to Recommend that the Advisory Committee recommend to the 
Watermaster Board to receive and file the Final Storage Framework Investigation Report, and authorize the use of the tools and 
technical information developed by the investigation for storage planning and future evaluations. 
Non-Agricultural Pool - October 11, 2018: Voted unanimously to Recommend that their Advisory Committee and Board 
representatives receive and file the Final Storage Framework Investigation Report, and authorize the use of the tools and technical 
information developed by the investigation for storage planning and future evaluations, subject to any changes they deem appropriate. 
Agricultural Pool - October 11, 2018: Voted unanimously to Recommend that the Advisory Committee recommend to the 
Watermaster Board to receive and file the Final Storage Framework Investigation Report, and authorize the use of the tools and 
technical information developed by the investigation for storage planning and future evaluations. 
Advisory Committee - October 18, 2018: 
Watermaster Board - October 25, 2018: 

P49 



Chino Basin Storage Framework October 18, 2018 
Page 2 of 2 

BACKGROUND 

The 2000 Optimum Basin Management Program (OBMP) storage management plan consists of managing 
groundwater production, replenishment, recharge, and storage such that total storage within the basin 
ranges from a low of 5,300,000 ac-ft to a high of 5,800,000 ac-ft. 

The understanding of Chino Basin has improved considerably since 2000 when the OBMP was first created. 
Collection of data has allowed the refinement and calibration of the groundwater model, which is now used 
for many purposes. Since the year 2000 the volume held in storage by the parties has increased to over 
500,000 ac-ft, and is projected to increase further in the future. 

Considering the time that has passed since the environmental documentation was approved for the OBMP, 
and the enhanced understanding of the basin an update of the OBMP seems appropriate, including a 
revision of the storage management plan. A study of the basin response to various levels of storage is 
helpful as a foundation for updating the Chino Basin storage management plan. 

DISCUSSION 

The goals of the Storage Framework investigation are to describe how the Basin will respond to varying 
levels of use of storage space, and identify potential material physical injury and other management 
challenges. 

The investigation was carried out using VVatermaster's computer model to simulate groundwater pumping, 
recharge, storage and withdrawals from storage. Metrics for material physical injury and pumping 
sustainability were established to compare basin response; existing facilities' capacity was examined to 
determine whether additional facilities would be required for higher volumes of storage space use; and the 
effects on storage and net inflow to the basin were calculated. 

Various scenarios were evaluated, starting with the volume of storage that will be occupied by parties using 
their projected water management practices, and then incrementally adding up to 300,000 ac-ft of storage 
for Storage and Recovery programs. 

The Storage Framework investigation was reviewed regularly with stakeholders through workshops, and 
shared in draft form at various stages for parties' review and comments. The final report is attached 
(Attachment 1). 

The investigation will be used as a tool to inform the development of a storage management plan for Chino 
Basin, to guide and evaluate future storage and recovery applications, and other storage investigations in 
the future. 

ATTACHMENTS 
1. Link to Final Storage Framework Report (click on the link below to access): 

https://cbwm.syncedtool.com/shares/folder/9abbl  62877b999/?folder id=1429 

P50 

https://cbwm.syncedtool.com/shares/file/5b346561fd0b5c/


ATTACHMENT 1 

Final Storage Framework Report 

(click on link below to access): 

https://cbwm.syncedtool.com/shares/folder/9abb162877b999/?f  
older id=1429  

P51 

https://cbwm.syncedtool.com/shares/folder/9abb162877b999/?folder_id=1429


THIS PA E 

HAS 

INTENTI S NALLY 

BEEN L FT 

BLANK 

FOR PAGINA I 



CHINO BASIN WATERMASTER 

III. REPORTS/UPDATES  

E. INLAND EMPIRE UTILITIES AGENCY 
1. MWD Update (Written) 
2. State and Federal Legislative Reports (Written) 
3. Community Outreach/Public Relations Report (Written) 



(\   inland  Empire Utilities Agency 

A MUNICIPAL WATER DISTRICT 

CHINO BASIN WATERMASTER 

ADVISORY COMMITTEE 

October 18, 2018 

INLAND EMPIRE UTILITIES AGENCY REPORTS 

The following items are provided for receive and file. 

• Water Supply Conditions 

• State and Federal Legislative Reports 

• Community Outreach/Public Relations Report 

P53 



THIS PAGE 

HAS 

INTENTIONALLY 

BEEN LEFT 

BLANK 

FOR PAGINATION 



Water Supply Conditions • 
:JReport 

NM 

UT 0% 

, ..._ 

\ 26.1 MAP 

< 

MEAD 
9.96 MAF 
1079.32 FT 

As of: 10/08/2018 

'  -Upper 
lorado Ri 

Basin 
0% 

2018 Colorado River  

854,752 AF 

68% of full CRA 
Does nol include slorage 

wilhdrawals 

1.8" 

24.3 MAF 

POWELL 
10.98 MAF 

0% 

-\J 0.4 
0% . 

o% 

0% 

CO 

• 
0% 

Snow Water Equivalent 
(% of Normal) 

No Data 
• Less than 50 
0 50 - 80 
E81 -120 
El121 -  150 
0 C;reater than 150 

' Turn page for more CRA Data Flip Over for SWP Data> 

a 0 
i

t
o)  a 

oar 
 

Happy New Water Year! 

, 
a  ef,,:„ 

6 , ct.,,, 
Diamond Valley Lake Storage 14 TAF more in 
Capacity: 810 TAF storage than this 

Southern Sierra Snowpack /411,1 
.1 ao in  time last year 

W
a

te
r  C

o
n

te
n

t (
in

)  

r, 
N

 750 

650 - 
at 

g 

1 

, 

- 'T- - 
, 

, •  ;Record Low , 
250 

PC'•\'' Pcs.' O'''' )ev . \b ) '' 's' \-1 VP:\''' ), NoR;k°  

Or> NN.' 0e6 )6' 0°  51,6 1•0 ,,,0 Y'' '' 10'' SEA)  

- -2017-2018 -..-2018-2019 —Normal 

MWD Storage Reserve Levels 
A 

Lake Shasta Reservoir Storage 969 TAF less in 
Capacity: 4.55 MAF storage than this 

M
ill

io
n  

A
cr

e-
Fe

et
 

°Storage Balance 

M
ill

io
n  

A
cr

e-
F

ee
t 

D r, 
g  

time last year  

— 

°Emergency 

— 

1.1 

_ 

1.0 

Storage 

— 

— 
____ 

2.7 

1.2 0.9 
1.3 

_ 
- : - - 

1 

, 

1- ,  
, 

• i•- •, • - -, 
Record Low: 587 TAF08/01M77).  

0)1 0345 ,61:1 ,.,,NO 10.0 1.0, ,,,,,N3 ri.,,,, A 
1.
0 

1.
006 ,..0 0 

Calendar Year 

06, ,o, o°° ,o, , 60 ,,,,o, po,  0,1 ,,,, V\ ,....Y3 509 

—2017-2018 —2018-2019 

This te.por I is produced by the Water Resource Management Group and c.oniains information from various federal, stale. and local agencies. 
, The Metropolitan Water District of Southern California cannot guaran lee Ihe accuracy or completeness ol this information. 

Readers 5 hould refer to the relevant slate, federal, and local agencies lor additional or for the 'Trost up to dale water supply information. 
Reservoirs. lakes, aqueducts, maps, watersheds. and all other visual represet 'lotions on this report are not drown to scale. 

http://www.mwdh2o.com/WSCR  
This report is best printed double sided on legal size paper 10.5'>: I 4") and folded in quarters 

- • ' 

Water Supply Conditions 
:, Report- 

As of: 10/08/2018 

2018 SWP Allocation  

669,025 AF , 

35% of Table A Statewid 

3.5 MAF 0% 

> 

..._,... 

, 

377. 

9 

 ,

_ 

5 
GO 
45 3,:, 

I: 
__Jr_ 9 

' 
153% 

orther 
', Sierra 

OROVILLE  

, , 
, , 
, 

2.04 MAF  

577o 

.., 
, 
, 

\ ' 

Sierra 
30  I 1847 
15 • 07 

— 
STA: c 

TOT: 1.16 MAF 1„ 

SWP: 759 TAF  

325 TAF \ 

> 

LA: 

0% 
, ) 1  

0.0" 
i 

. 
810 TAP 

91% 

— 84% MN SD: 0.1" 
[.." 

CASTAIC 
274 TAF 

DVL 87% 
705 TAF 

KAvg 
% Normal 

I 
WY to Date 

Rainfall to Date (in) 

Eli—  

' 

Capacity 
< Average EOM 

— Current Storage 
1% Capacity) 

C Flip Over for CRA Data Turn page for more SWP Data % 



State Water Project Resources As of: 10/08/2018 

<15-S1- 3 Station index Precip Northern Sierra Snowpack 

r)  15 • - 

16 

1.0 in. 
Water Year 

to Date 

- 
_s 

2 - 

- -  

veG 00,  bgr ,01 51' 5h 

2017-2018 —..-2018-2019  —Normal 
pc> vec, yiDie10 ‘44,162P 1Is04  y),.̀  ),3\  109 se? 

Average Monthly Precip • Actual Precip to Date 

3.3 

2.8 

2.3 - 

Oroville Reservoir Storage 
Capacity: 3.5 MAI- 

3.8 , 
J. ..... 

, 

1.8 
, 

1.3  4. 
, 

0.8 
Record. Lowl 882 irAF12/7/197Z) 

r- ; 
oc1, 0e.0  lot" O od 1,çr N.101 yfs Ssi'‘ p.5O seR 

'2017-2018 —2018.2019 
--- Enhanced Flood Pool (TBD)   Original Flood Boundaries 

5 Station Index Precip 
16  

001  0\  FP 06 1,0 1.105,ys
569 

Average Monthly Precip • Actual Precip to Date 

Other SWP Contract Supplies for 2018 (AF) 

Transfer/Exchanges 15,000 
Article 14b 27,500 
Pool A/B (Purchased) 0 
Carryover Supplies 297,000 

WY 2018 
72% of normal 

0..11 Forecall) 

Sacramento River Runoff 

45  
40 - 
35. 
30-

1t 25 
20 - 

2. 15 

5 

Long Term Avera_c li 

I I I  
pu,ph 9 re 1," 

Water Year 

/ 0.8 In. 

12 - 

2 8 

4 - 
8: 

- - 
36% 
• ' 

Water Year 
- to Date 

20 TAF more in 
storage than this 

time last year 

' 
' 

0.0 in 

4 - 

34% 
:  

• 
i I I 

- -  -1--- 
I I r 

- - - - 

35  

30 

25 

20 

0  

Colorado River Resources 
As of: 10/08/2018 

Upper Color do Basin Precip 
1.8 in. 

Water Year 

Upper Colorado Basin Snowpack -111  
S--. 0.01n 

0 

, to Date 

, 
, , 

, , W
a

te
r  

C
o
n

te
n

t (
in

)  

3
 N

3
 A

 
0
,
  

0
3
 C I
 
r 7

.3 

i 

I- 

-- - - 
i 

, 

'-'f\--N.  

o,  00A 15 oa,  06- ,..,, cf.. Na, e.' 3 ,,,p, , ),,‘ 0 ,¢,9 

. . i 2017-2018 201.8-2019 —Normal  

0,,\ veG pt,  ,60 00 ,ict 001 ,0, v..,\ sog ,e9 

- IAverage Monthly Precip w Actual Precip to Date 

2018 Colorado River Ag Use Lake Powell Storage 3.68 MAF less in 
Capacity: 24.3 MAF storage than this 

20 time last year 

, 
/ 
/ 
/ 

500 

460 

§ 420 -  

PVID/Yuma 
, i 

- , 

(QSA Priority 1 & 2) 
i ,,, 

i, --,40 
, ,..,0  

' • 

3.15 

.;̀. 2.95 

.2 2.85 

+6'  

IID/CVWD (QSA Priority 3a1 

-1-4,  --;- • • , -, -- ,--!- 

li , I i - ; 
HI ! ! 1 

, 1 .1 

M
ill

io
n

  A
cr

e
-F

ee
t  

o
 

no
 

A
 

0.
• 

0
3

  , ,  
i 

_ _ _ _ 

it 
• ,_ -. _ 

i 

-.1 , 

.. , 

, .. 
, 

1 

FMAMJJASOND 

11--- 

Date of Forecast 

I 
, 

FMAMJ 1 ASOND 

Date of Forecast 

Lake Mead Shortage/Surplus Outlook 

569 o. 50o.,5 
10

,„:0 
10,,,b 10,1"b 0,...,1 0.,..0 1cr

.,9 
10

0,c) 
2019 2020 2021 2022 2023 

Shortage 0% 57% 68% 70% 65% IA 

Lake Mead Storage 255 TAF less in 
Capacity: 26.1 MAF storage than this 
. time last year , 

Surplus 0% 0% 3% 5% 7% 

Likelihood based on results rum the August 2018 0155 model run. 

M
ill

io
n
  A

cr
e
- F

e
et

 

I
 

, 
! 

— ,S4P4#, . 1  i , i 
i 

, 

, 

— -. — 
117303‘7Trigcrer— I— 

; 

i 

Powell Unregulated inflow 43% of 
WY 2018

normal 
inn.) 

M
O
l io

n
  A

cr
e

-F
e

et
 

o
 

co
  
c

o
  

E3
 F. 

E 

rfPb  41 , 

11,11,111,11 

, re rP<‘  
Water 

re' 
Year 

rP\'''  

I 

re 

I 

LAone
rage

g  
v 

re 

Term 

I 

,e 

 1 

I I 

rP<1 re 
° 

V 
1,,,

,A9- 0,,A5 
5,,,
,,," 

5
6,, A5 

scp.N6 
ley\c) O''''''' 



CALIFORNIA STRATEGIES, LLC 

Date: October 1, 2018 

To: Inland Empire Utilities Agency 

From: John Withers, Jim Brulte 

Re: September Activity Report 

1. Regional Contract 

- The team has conducted four sessions on negotiations. Discussion has focused 

primarily on recycled water. Goal is to speed up process and achieve an early 

success. Gathering lists of contract-reports. Preparing reports "score card" to 

determine value of each report. 

2. Proposition One Grant Application 

- Project received full funding of $206.90 million. 

- Developing work plan with Sylvie Lee as lead staff 

Team of GET (economics), WSC (communication) 

- Board workshops planned 10/3 and 11/7 

3. Chino Basin Water Bank 

- Kicked off Phase 2 (tech and econ evaluation). 

- Structure fonnat with Watennaster 

Storage framework by 10/01. 

- Optimum Basin Management Plan 

Storage Management Plan 

18800 VON KARMAN AVENUE, STE. 190 • IRVINE, CALIFORNIA 92612 
TELEPHONE (9949) 252-8990 • FACSIMILE (949) 252-8911 

WWw.CALSTRAT.COM  

P57 



TH'AGEIS  

HAS 

I NTENTIS NAL Y 

BEEN LEFT 

LANK 

R PA INAT1 N 



Innovative Federal Strategies  LLC 

Comprehensive Government Relations 

MEMORANDUM 

To: Halla Razak and Kathy Besser 

From: Letitia White, Jean Denton, Drew Tatum, Shavenor 
Winters 

Date: September 28, 2018 

Re: September Monthly Legislative Update 

Congress Passes Appropriations and Continuing Resolution 

The House and Senate made significant progress during the month on the fiscal year 2019 
appropriations process, sending a total of five of the twelve annual appropriations bills to 
President Donald Trump in two minibus appropriations packages. Additionally, the agencies not 
covered by a full year appropriations bill will be funded by a continuing resolution (CR) through 
December 7, 2018. 

On September 12, the Senate passed, by a vote of 92-5, the Conference Report for the first FY19 
minibus appropriations package that includes the following appropriations measures: Energy and 
Water Development; Legislative Branch; and Military Construction-Veterans Affairs (H.R. 
5895). The House followed suit on September 13, passing the legislation by a vote of 377-20. 
The President signed the legislation on Friday, September 21 at a Veterans event in Los Vegas, 
Nevada. The measure provides slightly more than one-tenth of federal discretionary spending for 
fiscal year 2019 and includes funding for the Army Corps of Engineers, Bureau of Reclamation, 
Department of Energy, Department of Veterans Affairs, and Legislative Branch operations. 

In addition, the third minibus (H.R. 6157) consisting of the Defense and Labor, Health and 
Human Services appropriations bills was passed by the House on Wednesday, September 26 by a 
vote of 361-61 after it passed the Senate on a vote of 93-7 on September 18. The legislation 
contains a continuing resolution (CR), which runs through December 7, 2018 for the remaining 
FY19 appropriations bills that have not been enacted, including: Agriculture; Commerce-Justice 
Science; Financial Services-General Government; Homeland Security; Interior-Environment; 
State-Foreign Operations; and Transportation-HUD. After the President signed the Defense-
Labor bill on September 28, more than 75% of the federal government will be funded by a full 
year appropriations bill. 

Included in the Defense conference report was language expressing concern regarding the 
Administration's proposed reorganization of the United States Army Corps of Engineers' 
(USACE) Civil Works Program. Like the Energy and Water Appropriations conference report, 
this legislation would prohibit the use of funds to implement a memorandum approved by the 

511 C Street, NE • Washington, DC 20002 • 202-347-5990 • Fax 202-347-5941 

P59 



Innovative Federal Strategies LLC 

Secretary of Defense identifying specific actions the Army will take in support of the 
Administration's proposed reorganization of the Civil Works program within the USACE. 
The reorganization would have included taking the Civil Works program out of the Army Corps 
of Engineers with navigation going to the Department of Transportation for infrastructure grants 
and the remaining accounts to the Department of the Interior. Defense appropriation conferees 
were concerned that the Secretary of the Army failed to provide any notification or engage in any 
discussion with Members of Congress. The House and Senate Appropriations Committee and the 
conferees are opposed to the reorganization as it could ultimately have detrimental readiness and 
operational impacts on Department of Defense functions and activities, to include USACE 
support to ongoing military operations, international partners, and support to United States 
military installations around the world. 

The package included $90.5 billion for the Health and Human Services (HHS) and most of the 
funding increase will go to the National Institutes of Health, which received a $2 billion bump in 
funding. The additional funding for the Nil-1 is the latest in a series of funding increases for the 
agency. The funding is aimed at accelerating treatments for cancer, Alzheimer's disease, and 
other ailments and at addressing the nation's opioid epidemic. The package also includes $6.7 
billion to combat the opioid crisis and to increase access to mental health services. More than $1 
billion in new federal grants will help states, community health centers and other organizations 
confront the nation's opioid crisis. Nearly $1 billion of the money is in the form of grants to the 
states. 

President Trump has expressed continued frustration that Congress has not provided funding for 
a proposed border wall, tweeting criticism of the appropriations process as recently as the week 
of September 17. "I want to know, where is the money for the Border Security and the WALL in 
this ridiculous Spending Bill, and where it will come from after the Midterms? Dems are 
obstructing Law Enforcement and Border Security," President Trump tweeted, adding 
"REPUBLICANS MUST FINALLY GET TOUGH!" Despite those tweets, the White House has 
not issued a veto threat for any specific appropriations bill and has agreed to sign Defense and 
Labor, Health and Human Services appropriations bills, carrying the CR, and avoid a 
government shutdown. 

While the House and Senate had hoped to pass the second minibus appropriations bill that 
includes the FY19 Interior-Environment; Financial Services-General Government; 
Transportation-HUD; and Agriculture Appropriations bills, progress on negotiations have 
stalled. 

On Thursday, September 27 Senate Appropriations Chairman Richard Shelby (R-AL) said that 
lawmakers had run out of time to finish the spending package this week that carries funds for 
IRS, EPA and infrastructure programs. Provided an agreement is not reached, those agencies, 
along with agencies covered by the Commerce-Justice-Science; Homeland Security; and State-
Foreign Operations spending bills, would be covered by the continuing resolution in the third 
minibus appropriations package. Under the pending Defense-Labor-HITS minibus each of those 
agencies would be funded through December 7 at the FY18 enacted funding level. 

The status of the twelve annual appropriations bills is included in the table below: 

Page 2 IFS Monthly Federal Report 

P60 



Innovative Federal Strategies LLC 

Bill Status 

First Minibus Appropriations Bill including: 

• Energy and Water 
• Legislative Branch 
• Military Construction and Veterans 

Affairs 

Conference Report passed by the House and 
Senate; signed by President Trump Friday, 
September 21. 

Second Minibus Appropriations bill including: 

• Interior-Environment 
• Financial Services / General Govt. 
• Transportation-HUD 
• Agriculture 

Conferees met on Thursday, September 13, 
but no agreement has been reached. If an 
agreement is not reached, these agencies 
would be covered by the continuing 
resolution in the third minibus that runs 
through December 7, 2018. 

Third Minibus Appropriations bill including: 

• Defense 
• Labor, Health and Human Services 
• Continuing Resolution through 

December 7 for all other federal 
agencies 

Conferees agreed to the Conference Report 
on Thursday, September 13. The Senate 
passed the agreement on Tuesday, September 
18 and the House followed suit, passing the 
measure on Wednesday, September 26. 

The bill was signed by the President on 
September 28. 

Homeland Security Appropriations bill The House and Senate Appropriations 
Committees have advanced the legislation 
out of Committee, but no floor action has 
been taken in either chamber. The agencies 
covered by these bills will likely be funded 
by a Continuing Resolution through 
December 7th. We are hearing that the House 
and Senate hope to package these spending 
measures together for a fourth minibus 
appropriations package after the November 
elections. 

Commerce-Justice-Science Appropriations bill 

State-Foreign Operations Appropriations bill 

Pete Aguilar Announces Bid for Democratic Caucus Vice Chair 

On Tuesday, September 25 Rep. Pete Aguilar (D-CA) announced he would challenge fellow 
member Rep. Katherine Clark (D-MA) for Democratic Caucus Vice Chair. That position is 
currently the fifth ranking position in the House Democratic leadership. 

Rep. Aguilar said he will focus on increasing cooperation within the caucus and providing 
excellent service to members. 

Page 1 3 IFS Monthly Federal Report 

P61 



Innovative Federal Strategies LLC 

The Democratic caucus will hold leadership elections for the next Congress sometime in 
December after the midterm elections. 

"With a firm belief that the strength of our Caucus lies in our diversity, I believe I can play a role 
to help the Caucus as we work to enact policies that work for the American people in the 116th 
Congress," he said. 

Water Resources Bill Sees Movement 

A sprawling water policy bill won resounding approval in the House in early September and now 
awaits final passage in the Senate. Ahead of the House vote, House and Senate Committee 
leaders had announced a compromise agreement that enjoys broad bipartisan and bicameral 
support. 

The legislation, S. 3021, passed the House on a voice vote on Thursday, September 13. This is 
the second time this year that the House overwhelmingly passed a water resources bill, with the 
chamber voting 408-2 earlier this year on a narrower version of this legislation. 

The new legislation was drafted in concert with the Senate, where legislation to reauthorize 
Army Corps activities has stalled. An earlier bill advanced by the Senate Environment and 
Public Works Committee ran into trouble when the Congressional Budget Office found that it 
would cause major deficit spending problems. 

This bill includes a two-year extension of a new Environmental Protection Agency water loan 
program, which was created through the Water Infrastructure Finance and Innovation Act, or 
WIFIA. It provides states and water utilities with highly subsidized financing to construct mega-
projects like water treatment plants or to replace lead pipe. 

An earlier effort by some senators to expand WIFIA by giving states the authority to set up their 
own financing programs was essentially gutted, with lawmakers giving this expansion authority 
to spend only $5 million throughout the country. 

The bill also would have the National Academies study whether the Army Corps of Engineers 
should continue to be a part of the Department of Defense. Top Republicans in the House, led by 
Representatives Bill Shuster (R-PA) and Garret Graves (R-LA), have long criticized the slow 
pace of the Corps and argued that its awkward placement in the Pentagon makes it less nimble. 
They initially pushed to include language in the bill to begin reorganizing the Corps 
immediately, but this legislation simply launches a study. 

Additionally, the bill reinstates a requirement that all federally funded water infrastructure 
projects use American-made iron and steel through at least 2023, a top priority for Sen. Tammy 
Baldwin (D-WI) that President Donald Trump himself endorsed. 

To address oxygen-killing algal blooms, a recent concern in Florida and other states, the bill 
authorizes a five-year, $3 million annual program for the Army Corps' Engineer Research and 
Development Center. The program will identify and develop technology for the large-scale 
filtration of water, including early detection, prevention, and management of algal blooms. 

The bill also includes several provisions aimed at beefing up coastal readiness and 
responsiveness to severe storms. They include an authorization of $75 million for a new beach 
nourishment and shoreline protection pilot program as well as authorizing a new $100 million 

Page I 4 IFS Monthly Federal Report 

P62 



Innovative Federal Strategies LLC 

program to fix storm-damaged drinking water systems and to protect those systems from future 
storms. 

Senator John Barrasso (R-WY), Chairman of the Senate Environment and Public Works 
Committee, said he has a commitment from the Majority Leader that the chamber will spend as 
much time as is necessary to break through any objections to the bill and hold a floor vote on the 
legislation. While there was talk that the Senate would take up the measure during the last week 
of September, it appears consideration will be pushed into October. The Senate is currently 
scheduled to be in session into the month of October, as Majority Leader Mitch McConnell (R-
KY) has indicated the chamber has work to complete ahead of the midterm elections. 

House and Senate Conference on Combating Opioid Relief 

House and Senate lawmakers are working to resolve differences between their versions of an 
authorization bill (H.R. 6) to combat the opioid epidemic. 

Some of the key outstanding issues include suspending the Medicaid institution for mental 
disease (IIVID) exclusion, modifying substance use record privacy rules, and addressing 
medication-assisted treatment patient limits. 

Both measures cover Medicare and Medicaid policies, Food and Drug Administration 
authorities, and a variety of grant programs to address treatment and prevention. They also 
include provisions designed to curb fentanyl shipments. 

The House passed H.R. 6 by a vote of 396-14 on June 22, incorporating several other stand-alone 
bills. The Senate amended and passed the bill by a vote of 99-1 on Monday, September 17. On 
Friday, September 28 the House passed an amended version of the legislation as a message to the 
Senate. The new legislation would expand Medicaid funding for treatment, spur the development 
of nonaddictive painkillers and empower inspectors to root out deadly fentanyl from overseas. If 
the Senate agrees to the House changes and acts during the month of October, the legislation 
could be sent to the White House for President Trump's signature. 

FAA Bill 

On Wednesday, September 26, the House passed the full reauthorization as well as a short-tefin 
extension of aviation programs which would extend through Sunday, October 7. The Senate is 
likely to pass the short-term extension by unanimous consent, as the remainder of time on the 
Senate calendar has been dedicated to Supreme Court Justice nominee Brett Kavanaugh. 

The bill (H.R. 302) also includes the Disaster Recovery Refonn Act, the National Transportation 
Safety Board Reauthorization Act and the Transportation Security Administration 
reauthorization, among other non-aviation provisions 

Page 5 IFS Monthly Federal Report 

P63 



Innovative Federal Strategies LLC 

House Holds Hearing on Wildfires 

The House Committee on Energy and Commerce Subcommittee on Environment held a hearing 
to examine air quality impacts of wildfires and mitigation and management strategies from 
stakeholders. The hearing also explored the available tools and best practices to reduce and 
manage the air quality impacts of wildfires. 

Wildfires are a significant source of emissions, especially particulate matter, and often cause the 
worst air quality days of the year in smoke impacted communities. Researchers have found that 
wildfires can cause air quality to be 5 to 15 times worse than the air quality on an average day. 
Moreover, severe wildfire seasons can result in communities experiencing continuous unhealthy 
air quality conditions for weeks at a time. 

Witnesses on the panel presenting before the Subcommittee included Mary Anderson, Mobile 
and Area Source Program Manager, Air Quality Division, Idaho Department of Environmental 
Quality; the Honorable Herman E. Baertschiger, Jr., Senator, Oregon State Senate; Tom Boggus, 
State Forester and Director, Texas A&M Forest Service, on behalf of National Association of 
State Foresters; Sonya Germann, State Forester, Montana Department of Natural Resources and 
Conservation, Forestry Division, on behalf of National Association of State Foresters; and Collin 
O'Mara, President and CEO, National Wildlife Federation (NWF). 

The panel provided suggestions to mitigate wildfires and therefore reduce risk of hazardous air 
quality emissions, including: 

• Proscribed burns/control buns mitigate intensity and impact; 
• Immediate suppression of wildfires would alleviate impact; 
• Smoke management plans, (some states have implemented these); 
• Innovative solutions could come from working with all stakeholders — having an open 

and honest dialogue based on fasts and science (such as environmental quality folks, 
regulators, lawmakers, and landowners). 

Collin O'Mara, NWF President, requested Congress examine the FY2018 Omnibus, in which a 
last-minute change was implemented delaying necessary wildfire mitigation and reconstruction 
funding from 2018 to 2020. Mr. O'Mara stressed the need for reconstruction from these wildfires 
sooner than 2020. Additionally, Mr. O'Mara highlighted the provisions in the 2018 Farm Bill, 
including the collaborative forest landscape program. 

Leader McConnell Plans to Keep Senate Working in October 

Senate Majority Leader Mitch McConnell told reporters that he plans to keep the Senate in 
session for a large part of October, if not four entire weeks. The move would mean that 
vulnerable Democratic Senators would not get as many traditional days off to campaign ahead of 
the fall midterm elections. 

On September 28 the House adjourned for the entire month of October through the November 
elections. 

Page 6 IFS Monthly Federal Report 

P64 



Innovative Federal Strategies LLC 

FCC Chairman Ajit Pai Challenges California 

The Federal Communications Commission (FCC) last year scrapped Obama-era net neutrality 
protections that were enacted in 2015. It asserted in its order that it has the authority to preempt 
states from adopting their own internet regulations. 

Lawmakers in California and 29 other states have introduced bills to adopt net neutrality 
principles. 

FCC Chairman Ajit Pai has blasted a California net neutrality bill as "illegal," signaling possible 
agency action if the state's governor signs the measure into law. 

"California is the most 'egregious example' of a state passing net neutrality rules that defy 
federal internet policies," Pai said. The bill would ban internet service providers from blocking 
or slowing legal traffic on their networks, as well as charging customers for faster internet lanes. 

The California measure would impose among the strictest regulations in the country. It would 
also ban "zero rating," which is the practice of ISPs allowing consumers to stream certain 
content, often their own, without it being counted toward monthly data caps. 

California State Sen. Scott Wiener (D), who authored the legislation, said the FCC exceeded its 
authority to regulate ISPs' conduct when it rolled back net neutrality rules. 

The California measure, if signed into law, would be the fourth new state net neutrality law since 
Pai's FCC eliminated its rules. California Gov. Jerry Brown has not said whether he will sign the 
bill. 

Tax Reform 2.0 Revisited 

This month has highlighted the ongoing uncertainty for Tax Reform 2.0 efforts, with one-week 
casting doubt, and the next with House Ways and Means Committee Chairman Kevin Brady (R-
TX) spotlighting the introduction of three bills that he says collectively build on the growing 
economic success of the Tax Cuts and Jobs Act passed by Congress in 2017. These bills make up 
the Republican Tax Rabin). 2.0 package that will lock in the individual and small business tax 
cuts made law in the Tax Cuts and Jobs Act, reform the way families and small business are able 
to save for retirement, and aim to boost innovative by growing startup businesses. 

On Thursday, September 27 and Friday, September 28, the House passed the three pieces of 
legislation. Since they would require a filibuster proof majority in the Senate, the prospect of any 
of the legislation advancing is unlikely. 

The three-bill package consists of the following measures: 

• H.R. 6760, the Protecting Family and Small Business Tax Cuts Act of 2018, sponsored 
by Rep. Rodney Davis (R-IL), and cosponsored by Rep. Mark Meadows (R-NC), Rep. 

Page 7 IFS Monthly Federal Report 

P65 



Innovative Federal Strategies LLC 

Mark Walker (R-NC), House Ways and Means Committee Chairman Kevin Brady (R-
TX), and all other Ways and Means Committee Republicans. 

• H.R. 6757, the Family Savings Act of 2018, sponsored by Rep. Mike Kelly (R-PA), and 
cosponsored by Rep. Paul Mitchell (R-MI), House Ways and Means Committee 
Chairman Kevin Brady (R-TX), and all other Ways and Means Committee Republicans. 

• H.R. 6756, the American Innovation Act of 2018, sponsored by Tax Policy 
Subcommittee Chairman Vern Buchanan (R-FL), and cosponsored by House Ways and 
Means Committee Chairman Kevin Brady (R-TX) and all other Ways and Means 
Committee Republicans. 

Trade Talks Stall 

The North America Free Trade Agreement (NAFTA) talks have missed the latest in a string of 
deadlines, leaving all eyes on the U.S. over what will happen next. 

U.S. Trade Representative Robert Lighthizer and Canadian Foreign Minister Chrystia 
Freeland met twice Wednesday, September 19 in two sessions totaling nearly four hours after 
staff had worked through the night. 

The talks Wednesday focused largely on tariffs and dispute panels, according to a major 
stakeholder, Canadian Labor Leader Jerry Dias. Those subjects are two of the biggest sticking 
points, but time is rapidly running out for a breakthrough. The path forward, for now, remains 
unclear. 

A deal needed to be reached within days to meet a deadline that would allow it to be signed by 
Mexico's outgoing president. The pressure to secure an agreement quickly is meant to allow time 
to publish the text of an agreement by Sunday, September 30. The sides were aiming to do that to 
meet U.S. trade law timelines and allow the deal to be signed before December, when Mexican 
President-elect Andres Manuel Lopez Obrador takes office. 

If the deadline is missed, President Donald Trump has threatened to proceed with Mexico only, 
potentially quitting the existing NAFTA pact. 

U.S. Trade Representative Robert Lighthizer, in a briefing to House Ways and Means Committee 
members on Thursday, September 27, said he sees March 2019 as the earliest that Congress 
could vote to approve the revamped North American Free Trade Agreement. 

President Trump continued to hit at China the week of September 17, days after announcing 
another round of tariffs, and consequently signaling the trade war will not end any time soon. His 
biggest strike yet in a growing trade fight between the world's biggest economies will see a 10 
percent duty applied to $200 billion of Chinese imports, which could rise to 25 percent next year. 
He's threatened duties on a further $267 billion of made-in-China goods, which would hit nearly 
all other consumer products including mobile phones, shoes and clothes. 

Page 1 8 IFS Monthly Federal Report 

P66 



Innovative Federal Strategies LLC 

The decision is likely to put additional pressure on American companies that say Trump's trade 
dispute with Beijing is increasing uncertainty and boosting costs. Industry groups including the 
National Retail Federation have been pushing the administration to spare firms and consumers 
from import tariffs. While the Administration argues that tariffs give the country leverage as it 
pushes China to reduce trade barriers and protect American firms from unfair practices, such as 
theft of intellectual property. 

Government Reorganization Bill Approved by Senate Committee 

Earlier this year, the Office of Management and Budget released a sweeping reorganization plan 
that included proposals to merge the Education and Labor departments, consolidate welfare 
programs and privatize the Postal Service and the Federal Aviation Administration. As you will 
recall, various appropriations bills included language to reject these proposals for departmental 
and agency reorganization without Congressional approval. 

However, Senate Homeland Security and Governmental Affairs Committee Ron Johnson (R-WI) 
introduced a bill that would give President Donald Trump the ability to consolidate government 
agencies under a fast-track congressional procedure. The bill was approved on Wednesday, 
September 26 by the Senate Homeland Security and Governmental Affairs Committee. 

The Reforming Government Act (S. 3137) was approved by voice vote after a compromise 
amendment drafted by Sen. Heidi Heitkamp (D-N.D.) was adopted. The sticking point for 
Democrats had been that the bill would guarantee a simple majority vote for passage of a 
reorganization plan, which they said could be abused by the party in power and produce partisan 
results. 

The amendment would provide a choice: either a reorganization bill would have to get 60 votes 
to overcome a traditional Senate filibuster, or the bill could have sponsorship by five majority 
and five minority-party senators and be subject to a simple, 51-vote threshold. 

Outlook for the Coming Month 

While the Senate is poised to work through some, if not the majority, of October the House is 
expected to recess by Friday, September 28 through Tuesday, November 13, which is after the 
midterm elections. 

The immediate focus of the Senate will continue to be the confirmation of Supreme Court 
nominee Brett Kavanaugh and other nominees as the Senate works through its tranche of 
remaining bills and nominees in October. The Senate will also likely vote on the 5-year FAA bill 
during the first week of the month, provided an agreement is not reached by the end of Friday, 
September 28 or over the weekend for expedited consideration. The Senate may also consider 
water resources legislation. 

Page 9 IFS Monthly Federal Report 

P67 



1: ;IS PAGE 

HAS  

IN 'ENTIINALLY 

BEEN LEFT  

LANK 

F• R PA I ATI 



West Coast Advisors 
Strategic Public Affairs 

September 28, 2018 

To: Inland Empire Utilities Agency 

From: Michael Boccadoro 
Beth Olhasso 

RE: September Report 

Overview: 

With the Legislature officially finished for the year, the Governor was in the spotlight for the 
month of September as he took action on over 1,200 bills sent to him by the Legislature in 2018. 
SB 998 (Dodd) concerning policies and procedures for discontinuing residential water service 
was signed by the Governor. Eastern Municipal Water District's AB 2050 (Caballero) relating to 
consolidation of failing water districts sailed through the floor process but was ultimately vetoed 
by Governor Brown. SB 100 (de Leon) to establish a 100 percent clean energy goal passed and 
has already been signed by the Governor, who also issued an Executive Order establishing a 
"carbon neutral" goal for the state by 2050. Additionally, the Governor signed SB 901 (Dodd, D-
Napa) relating to wildfire responsibility. 

The Department of Water Resources (DWR) has released a Benefit-Cost Analysis for California 
WaterFix by Dr. David Sunding, a professor of natural resource economics at UC Berkeley. The 
analysis finds WaterFix could bring billions of dollars in benefits to Californians who obtain 
their water from participating State Water Project (SWP) contractors. 

The process for a contract extension between the DWR and the State Water Contractors turned 
highly political at the end of the session, with the San Diego County Water Authority and anti-
WaterFix advocates falsely claiming the contract extension would authorize WaterFix. After 
several aborted hearings, the Joint Legislative Budget Committee conducted the hearing required 
by statute on September 11. DWR Director Karla Nemeth spent a significant amount of time 
trying to assure Delta Caucus members that there is a separate contract amendment process for 
WaterFix and that she is happy to make herself available for any legislative oversight hearings in 
the future. While in-Delta interests weren't ultimately satisfied, the hearing was the final step to 
getting the contract extended. With all the controversary drummed up over this matter, it is very 
likely there will be legislative attempts next year to change the contract process for WaterFix. 

P69 



THIS PAGE 

HAS 

INTENTIONALLY  

BEEN LEFT 

BLANK 

FOR PAGI ATI•N 



Inland Empire Utilities Agency 

Status Report - September 2018 
DWR Releases Cost-Benefit Analysis for WaterFix 
The Department of Water Resources (DWR) has released a Benefit-Cost Analysis for California 
WaterFix by Dr. David Sunding, a professor of natural resource economics at UC Berkeley. The 
analysis finds WaterFix could bring billions of dollars in benefits to Californians who obtain 
their water from participating State Water Project (SWP) contractors. These benefits include 
improved water quality, more reliable water supplies, enhanced disaster preparedness, and 
climate change resilience. 

The analysis concludes that the WaterFix benefits to SWP water agencies are substantial. SWP 
urban agencies could see about $3.1 billion in net benefits. SWP agricultural agencies could see 
about $400 million in net benefits. 

"Without WaterFix, State Water Project contractors will see the continued deterioration of their 
water supply reliability," Sunding said. "This analysis shows there is substantial benefit for both 
urban and agricultural water users throughout the state, and that the project will be more 
affordable for consumers than local alternatives such as desalination and recycling." 

The report compared the benefits and costs of WaterFix to what would likely occur if WaterFix 
were not built, including further restrictions on existing SWP and CVP operations designed to 
minimize harmful reverse flows and protect species. 

A notable feature of the report is that it monetizes the cost of climate change impacts and the 
benefits of offsetting those impacts. "WaterFix helps mitigate the impacts of climate change on 
the state's water supply system," Sunding said. "This feature of the WaterFix alone is worth 
several billion dollars and is an important rationale for implementing the project." 

SB 100 (deLeon): 100 Percent Clean Energy Standard and Governor's Executive Order on 
Carbon Neutrality 
As originally introduced, SB 100 sought to increase the Renewable Portfolio Standard (RPS) to 
100% renewable energy by 2045. As amended in the Assembly, the measure now requires all 
power generation to come solely from clean or "carbon-free" energy sources. In the interim, the 
bill expedites the state's RPS requirements which is currently set at 50% by 2030. Additionally, 
the bill creates a goal for the state to meet all its retail electric supply with a mix of RPS-eligible 
and zero carbon resources by 2045. 

New requirements under SB 100 include: 

2026: 50% RPS 

2030: 60% RPS 

2045: Planning goal of 100% mix of RPS-eligible and zero carbon resources 

P71 



Ahead of the Governor's summit on climate change in San Francisco, Governor Brown signed 
SB 100. Additionally, at the signing ceremony, he said, "California is committed to doing 
whatever is necessary to meet the existential threat of climate change." 

At the SB 100 signing ceremony, Brown also announced an executive order directing California 
to achieve carbon neutrality-meaning it would remove as much carbon dioxide from the 
atmosphere as it emits, also by 2045. The state has previously committed to reducing greenhouse 
gas emissions to 80 percent below 1990 levels by 2050. 

The order, which could be rescinded by a future governor after Brown terms out in 2019, 
instructs the California Air Resources Board to develop a framework for reaching carbon 
neutrality. Board officials said strategies could include capturing and sequestering carbon in 
agricultural production, such as in soil, building materials, thinning forests to reduce wildfire risk 
and restoring ecosystems, like wetlands and meadows that act as natural "sinks" for carbon 
dioxide. 

State Water Project Contracts 
What should have been a fairly easy process turned political for the State Water Contractors and 
the Department of Water Resources (DWR). DWR and the Contractors have been in discussions 
for years hashing out the details of extending the contract between the two parties beyond 2035. 
The extension is necessary so that bonds for normal operating expenses and projects can be 
issued beyond 2035, ensuring more favorable rates. 

As discussed in previous reports, the process for DWR and the Contractors became complicated 
after the San Diego County Water Authority and anti-WaterFix advocates successfully lobbied to 
have the final statutorily required hearing of the Joint Budget Committee, cancelled several 
times. The third attempt at a hearing set for September 11, went ahead as scheduled, but was not 
without significant questioning of DWR Director Karla Nemeth. 

The main controversary with the hearing and the extension has been the belief that the contract 
extension would somehow authorize WaterFix. Chair Mitchell started the hearing clearly stating 
that there is a separate process for WaterFix and this contract extension is about the every-day 
operation of the SWP. The Legislative Analyst's Office (LAO) gave an overview of the SWP 
and the contract extension process, and noted that the LAO has been suggesting for years that the 
Legislature should have more oversight and control over the SWP. 

Director Nemeth was extensively questioned by in-Delta interests about the contract and how it 
pertains to WaterFix. There was confusion because the contract extension covers all financing 
including WaterFix eventually, but as stated multiple times by Director Nemeth and Chari 
Mitchell, there is a separate process for the WaterFix contract amendment and authorization. 

A number of legislators expressed concern about the transparency of the contract amendment 
process, specifically for WaterFix, going forward and those members seemed very interested in 
increased legislative oversight over the SWP. Since the hearing, Chair Mitchell sent a letter to 
Director Nemeth asking for greater transparency in the WaterFix contract amendment process, 
and Director Nemeth responded with assurances DWR will work with the committee to ensure 
the members have all the information they need. Contract amendment negotiation meetings, 

P72 



including for the WaterFix, are public meetings. It is very likely that there will be attempts in the 
next legislative session for increased oversight over the SWP. 

Legislative Update 
As reported last month, the Legislature adjourned the 2017-2018 Legislative Session on August 
31. The Legislature did not take any action on the "Safe and Affordable Drinking Water Fund," 
but the Speaker announced a workgroup that would work to find a compromise on the issue. 
Additionally, efforts to create a Western regional power grid failed to move for the second year 
in a row. It is likely that both issues will return when the legislature returns in January. 

AB 2050 (Caballero) 
Eastern Municipal Water District and the California Municipal Utilities Association introduced 
AB 2050 (Caballero, D-Salinas) as a complementary way to begin addressing drinking water 
challenges in disadvantaged communities. Their bill looks at how to consolidate failing water 
agencies under a larger umbrella to provide cost effective technical, managerial and financial 
support. The bill is supported by Metropolitan Water District of Southern California, the 
Association of California Water Agencies, the Santa Ana Watershed Project Authority and many 
local water agencies. The measure made it all the way through the legislative process but was 
vetoed by the Governor. In his veto message he noted that the bill would create an expensive, 
bureaucratic process that won't address his priority of creating a stable funding source for 
ongoing operations and maintenance costs for drinking water systems with contaminated water. 

SB 998 (Dodd) 
A coalition of opponents to SB 998, Senator Dodd's (D-Napa) bill regarding water shutoffs, will 
turn their focus toward getting the measure vetoed by the Governor. The bill, passed by the 
Legislature, prohibits a water agency from shutting off water service to a residential customer, 
under certain conditions. Concerns among stakeholders remain on how the whole shutoff process 
would work including any Proposition 218 issues that would arise as other customers have to 
assume the cost of service to any residential property that does not pay their bill. The bill has 
made its way through three different policy committees with members wanting to support access 
to clean drinking water for all Californians, but also understanding the Proposition 218 issues 
water agencies face. Negotiations reached a stalemate with the author not willing to take 
amendments proposed by a coalition of water interests. ACWA, CMUA and others moved to a 
straight oppose position. The coalition is targeted the Governor for a veto, but he signed the bill. 

Utility Response to Catastrophic Wildfires 
One of the most complicated and delicate issues this legislative session has been in response to 
last year's catastrophic utility caused wildfires. With a tangled web of interests including fire 
victims, utilities, insurance companies, trial attorneys, labor unions, and ratepayers, the 
legislature struggled to come to an agreement on how policies related to these types of natural 
disaster should be handled moving forward. 

In the months since the fires, Cal Fire has released various investigative reports finding PG&E's 
transmission lines, other equipment, and less than satisfactory maintenance to be to blame for 
much of the damage. This prompted PG&E to announce that claims related to the fires will likely 
exceed $2.5 billion. Some have speculated that the property damage alone could be as high as 
$12 billion. PG&E's liability insurance would only cover up to $840 million in damage. Damage 
estimates have not yet been released for the fires in the Southern California Edison (SCE) 

P73 



territory, but the issue of who is responsible for those costs, shareholders or ratepayers, will be a 
significant discussion. 

The utilities expressed significant concern and urgency to the legislature, shareholders and others 
over declining credit ratings and raising the possibility of bankruptcy. 

Coming out of the legislative summer recess, a Conference Committee was formed to tackle the 
issue. They held several public meetings and released a bill just hours before the deadline for 
amendments. The bill focuses heavily on forest vegetation management. Additionally, the bill 
allows for the CPUC to shift most of the responsibility for covering cost of the wildfires to 
ratepayers even when the utility has been found negligent. The costs of the 2017 fires can be 
"securitized" allowing PG&E to shift most of the cost to their ratepayers, who will pay a 
surcharge for the next 20 years. Going forward, the measure also establishes new parameters the 
CPUC must consider, including weather and climate change when assigning "liability". This 
change will also result in more costs being shifted to ratepayers in the future. Ratepayers will 
continue to be on the hook for potentially billions of dollars in utility system improvements to 
"harden" infrastructure to prevent wildfires. 

The measure was passed with bi-partisan support despite strong opposition from ratepayer and 
business groups who labeled the plan a utility bailout. As Southern California Edison moves into 
the implementation stage, it will be crucial for water agencies to engage in the discussions over 
de-energization. There is significant concern that SCE could shut off power for prolonged 
periods of time during high wind events, which would have significant impacts on water and 
wastewater agency operations. The bill was signed by Governor Brown, whose office was 
involved in negotiating the bill. Now, SCE and the other IOUs will submit plans to the CPUC to 
"harden the system" and outline procedures for shutting off the power. Parties will have an 
opportunity to engage in the proceeding and offer comments before a decision is made. 

P74 



State Legislation 

Bill 
Number 

Sponsor Title and/or Summary Summary/Status IEUA Position 

AB 1668 Friedman An Act Relating to 
Water 

This bill would state the intent of the Legislature to enact 
legislation necessary to help make water conservation a 
California way of life. 

SUPPORT 

Signed by 
Governor 

AB 1654 Rubio An Act WATCH Relating to 
Water 

This-bill-vveuld-state-the-ifirent-a-the-Legislature4e-erfaet 
legislation necessary-te-he4p-makeater-eerrservatieri-a 

Senate Natural California Resources and way of life. 

Bill gutted and now has nothing to do with water. 
Water 

AB 1876 Frazier Sacramento-San Joaquin 
Delta: Delta 
Stewardship Council 

The Sacramento-San Joaquin Delta Reform Act of 2009 
establishes the Delta Stewardship Council, which consists 
of 7 members, and requires the council to develop, adopt, 
and commence implementation of a comprehensive 
management plan for the Delta, known as the Delta Plan. 
This bill would increase the membership of the council to 
13 members, including 11 voting members and 2 
nonvoting members, as specified. 

OPPOSE 

DEAD 

AB 869 Rubio Sustainable water use 
and demand reduction: 
recycled water 

Excludes, from the calculation of any water use or water 
efficiency target established after 2020, recycled water, as 
specified, delivered within the service area of an urban 
retail or wholesale water supplier 

WATCH 

DEAD 

AB 3037 Chiu Community 
Redevelopment Law of 
2018 

Would authorize a city or county to propose the fomiation 
of a redevelopment housing and infrastructure agency by 
adoption of a resolution of intention that meets specified 
requirements, and providing that resolution to each 
affected taxing entity. The bill would require the city or 
county that adopted that resolution to hold a public hearing 
on the proposal to consider all written and oral objections 
to the formation, as well as any recommendations of the 
affected taxing entities, and would authorize that city or 

WATCH, and 
work with CSDA  

Died on Suspense 



county to adopt a resolution of foimation at the conclusion 
of that hearing. 

SB 606 Skinner/Hertzberg An Act Relating to 
Water 

This bill would state the intent of the Legislature to enact 
legislation necessary to help make water conservation a 
California way of life. 

SUPPORT 

Signed by 
Governor 

SB 623 
SB 844 
SB 845 

Monning Water Quality: Safe and 
Affordable Drinking 
Water Fund 

Would establish the Safe and Affordable Drinking Water 
Fund in the State Treasury and would provide that moneys 
in the fund are continuously appropriated to the State 
Water Resources Control Board. The bill would require the 
board to administer the fund to secure access to safe 
drinking water for all Californians, while also ensuring the 
long-teim sustainability of drinking water service and 
infrastructure. The bill would authorize the state board to 
provide for the deposit into the fund of federal 
contributions, voluntary contributions, gifts, grants, 
bequests, and settlements from parties responsible for 
contamination of drinking water supplies. 

WATCH 

Assembly Rules 
Committee 

DEAD 

AB 2697 Gallagher Wildlife, bird, and 
waterfowl habitat: idled 
agricultural lands 

Would require the Wildlife Conservation Board to 
establish a program, which may include direct payments or 
other incentives, to encourage landowners to voluntarily 
cultivate or retain cover crops or other upland vegetation 
on idled lands to provide waterfowl, upland game bird, and 
other wildlife habitat cover for purposes, including, but not 
limited to, encouraging the use of idle agricultural lands 
for wildlife habitat. The bill would also authorize the 
department to provide incentives pursuant to the program 
for the creation or enhancement of waterfowl brood 
habitat, and to develop guidelines and criteria for the 
program as it deems appropriate. 

WATCH 

5/25 Amends 
remoye,4 
opposition. 

Signed by 
Governor 



AB 1778 Holden Transit-Oriented 
Redevelopment Law of 
2018 

Current law dissolved redevelopment agencies as of 
February 1, 2012, and designates successor agencies to act 
as successor entities to the dissolved redevelopment 
agencies. This bill, the Transit-Oriented Redevelopment 
Law of 2018, would authorize a city or county to propose 
the formation of a redevelopment agency by adopting a 
resolution of intention that meets specified requirements, 
and submitting that resolution to each affected taxing 
entity and to each owner of land within the district. 

WATCH 

Asm. Local Gov. 

Never heard in 
policy committee 

DEAD 

AB 327 Gibson South Coast Air Quality 
Management District: 
Fleets 

Would authorize the governing board of the south coast 
district to adopt rules and regulations that require specified 
operators of public and commercial fleet vehicles 
consisting of 15 or more vehicles to purchase the cleanest 
commercially available vehicles, as defined, that will meet 
the operator's operational needs; to require the replacement 
of no more than 15% of existing vehicles per calendar 
year, as specified; and to require those cleanest 
commercially available vehicles to be operated, to the 
maximum extent feasible, in the south coast district. 

WATCH 

Sen Trans. & 
Housing 

Failed.in 
committee 

SB 998 Dodd Discontinuation of 
residential water service: 
urban and community 
water systems 

Would require an urban and community water system, 
defined as a public water system that supplies water to 
more than 200 service connections, to have a written 
policy on discontinuation of water service to certain types 
of residences for nonpayment available in prescribed 
languages. The bill would require the policy to include 
certain components, be available on the system's Internet 
Web site, and be provided to customers in writing, upon 
request. 

OPPOSE 

Signed by 
Governor 

SB 120 Roth Water conveyance: use 
of facility with unused 
capacity 

This bill would, notwithstanding that provision, prohibit a 
transferor of water from using a water conveyance facility 
that has unused capacity to transfer water from a 
groundwater basin underlying desert lands, as defined, that 
is in the vicinity of specified federal lands or state lands to 
outside of the groundwater basin unless the State Lands 
Commission, in consultation with the Department of Fish 
and Wildlife, finds that the transfer of the water will not 
adversely affect the natural or cultural resources of those 
federal and state lands. 

OPPOSE 

DEAD 



Federal Legislation of Significance 

Bill Number Sponsor 
Title and/or 
Summary 

Summary/Status 

H.R. 8/ 
S.2800 
(subsequently 
replaced by 
S.3021) 

Rep. Bill 
Shuster(R-PA)/ 
Sen. John Barrasso 
(R-WY) 

Water Resources 
Development Act/ 
America's Water 
Infrastructure Act of 
2018 (America's 
Water Infrastructure 
Act of 2018) 

The bill authorizes proposed U.S. Army Corps of Engineers civil works activities 
and provides reforms to the Corps. WARDA authorizes locally driven, but 
nationally vital, investments in the Nation's water resources infrastructure. It 
strengthens economic growth and competitiveness, helps move goods throughout 
the country and abroad, and protects our communities. The legislation passed the 
House on June 6, 2018 by a vote of 408 to 2. It was received in the Senate and 
placed on the Senate Legislative Calendar under General Orders. 

The Senate version of the bill, America's Water Infrastructure Act of 2018 was 
introduced in May 8, 2018. The legislation was marked and reported favorably out 
of committee on Tuesday, May 22, 2018. Senator Barrasso filed a written report to 
accompany the bill on July 10, 2018. 

Since the Senate was unable to pass its own legislation, the House and Senate pre-
conferenced legislation in a bipartisan manner, which was passed the House as a 
substitute amendment to S. 3021. The Senate is expected to have the votes to pass 
the legislation, though the timeline for floor consideration is unclear. 

H.R.5895 Rep. Mike 
Simpson (R-ID) 

Fiscal 2019 Energy 
and Water 
Development, 
Legislative Branch, 
and MilCon-VA 
Appropriations 
"Minibus" 

Provides FY2019 appropriations for U.S. Army Corps of Engineers civil works 
projects, the Department of the Interior's Bureau of Reclamation, the Department of 
Energy (DOE), and independent agencies such as the Nuclear Regulatory 
Commission. The legislative branch section, would provide additional funds for the 
Office of Compliance for training and higher caseloads. The office handles 
workplace protection complaints for the legislative branch. It also would block the 
automatic cost-of-living increase for members of Congress. The legislation would 
also appropriate funding for military construction and the Department of Veteran's 
Affairs. 

The legislation was passed in both the House and the Senate and was conferenced 
to reconcile discrepancies. It became Public Law (PL-115-244) on September 21, 
2018. 

H.R. 6147 Rep. Ken Calvert 
(R-CA) 

Fiscal 2019 Interior- 
Environment, 
Financial Services 

The legislation includes funding for the Department of the Interior, the 
Environmental Protection Agency (EPA), the Forest Service, the Indian Health 
Service, and various independent and related agencies. These funds are targeted to 

11IFS Legislative Matrix 



Appropriations 
"Minibus" 

important investments in the nation's natural resources, including $3.4 billion for 
the Department of the Interior and U.S. Forest Service to prevent and combat 
devastating wildfires. 

The legislation also contains several policy provisions Republicans say will "rein in 
unnecessary regulations at the EPA and other agencies." The Financial Services bill 
would provide funding for the United States Department of the Treasury, as we all 
as the United States federal courts, the Executive Office of the President of the 
United States, 

The legislation was passed in both the House and Senate and both chambers are 
conferencing together in order to reconcile discrepancies between each chamber's 
version. Since the final conference report has not been finalized. The agencies 
funded by the legislation will be funded under a continuing resolution through 
December 7, 2018. 

H.R. 5609 Rep. Keith Ellison 
(D-MN) 

Water Affordability, 
Transparency, Equity, 
and Reliability Act of 

The legislation would establish a trust fund to provide for adequate funding for 
water and sewer infrastructure, and for other purposes. 

2018 The bill was referred to the Subcommittee on Commodity Exchanges, Energy, and 
Credit on Tuesday, May 22, 2018 and no further action has been taken. 

H.R. 5003 Rep. Randy To amend the Internal 
Hultgren Revenue Code of 1986 The legislation was referred to the House Committee on Ways and Means on 
(R-IL) to reinstate advance 

refunding bonds 
Tuesday, February 13, 2018 and no further action has been taken. 

H.R.4902/ S. Rep. John Katko Securing Required The legislation would amend the Water Infrastructure Finance and Innovation Act 
2364 (R-NY)/ Sen. John Funding for Water of 2014 to provide to State infrastructure financing authorities additional 

Boozman (R-WY) Infrastructure Now Act opportunities to receive loans under that Act to support drinking water and clean 
water State revolving funds to deliver water infrastructure to communities across 
the United States. 

The bill was referred to the Subcommittee on Water Resources and Environment on 
January 31, 2018, and the Subcommittee on Environment on February 2, 2018. No 
further action has been taken. 

The Senate version of the bill, which would amend WFIA in the same manner, was 
introduced on Tuesday, January 30, 2018 and was referred to the Committee on 
Environment and Public Works. 

21IFS Legislative Matrix 



S.2329 Sen. John Hoeven 
(R-ND) 

Water Infrastructure 
Finance and 
Innovation 
Reauthorization Act of 
2018 

This measure is designed to spur investments in water project development across 
the nation by supplementing federal funding of water infrastructure projects — 
including wastewater treatment, flood control and storm water management — with 
long-term, low-cost loans and loan guarantees, reauthorize and amend the Water 
Infrastructure Finance and Innovation Act of 2014, and double the Environmental 
Protection Agency's fiscal year 19 WIFIA authorization to $90 million and extend 
the program for five years, through 2024. 

The legislation was introduced Tuesday, January 23, 2018 was referred to the 
Committee on Environment and Public Works 

H.R.4492 Rep. Brian Mast 
(R-FL) 

Water Infrastructure 
Finance and 
Innovation 
Reauthorization Act of 
2017 

H.R. 4492 is a companion bill to S.2329 and would spur investments in water 
project development across the nation by supplementing federal funding of water 
infrastructure projects. 

This bill was introduced Thursday, November 30, 2017, and was referred to the 
Subcommittee on Water Resources and Environment, and the Subcommittee on the 
Environment. 

H.R. 5127 Rep. Grace 
Napolitano (D- 
CA) 

Water Recycling 
Investment and 
Improvement Act 

The legislation would assist water agencies with the expansion, planning, 
designing, and building of water recycling plants and modernizing water 
infrastructure by making changes to the WIIN Act Title XVI water recycling and 
reuse program by removing the requirement of funding projects that are in drought 
or disaster areas, increasing the authorization from $50 million to $500 million, 
making the program permanent rather than sun-setting in 2021, and taking away the 
requirement that the projects need to be designated in an appropriations legislation. 

The bill was introduced on Tuesday, February 27, 2018, and was referred to the 
Subcommittee on Water Resources and Environment, and the Subcommittee on 
Water, Power, and Oceans. 

H.R. 3711 Reps. Lamar 
Smith (R-TX)/Ken 
Calvert (R-CA) 
/Bob Goodlatte 
(R-VA) 

Legal Workforce Act A bill that would require all U.S. employers to use the E-Verify electronic 
employment verification system. The requirement would be phased over a two-year 
period, starting with the largest employers. The agriculture industry would have an 
additional six months (or 30 months total) to come into compliance. 

H.R. 3711 was referred to the Committee on the Judiciary, and in addition to the 
Committees on Ways and Means, and Education and the Workforce on Friday, 
September 8th. On Wednesday, September 27th, H.R.3711 was referred to Judiciary 
Subcommittee on Immigration and Border Security. Judiciary Committee 
Consideration and Mark-up Session was held on Wednesday, October 25th. H.R. 

31IFS Legislative Matrix 



3711 was ordered and reported (amended) by the yeas and nays: 20-10 on October 
25, 2017. 

H.R. 23 Rep. David Gaining Responsibility Among other things the legislation would require regulators to comply with the 
Valadao (R-CA) on Water Act of 2017 Bay-Delta Accord and make changes to the state's Central Valley and State Water 

projects and streamline permitting processes. The bill included provisions from 
multiple other bills previously passed by the House that sought to increase the flow 
of water to areas of California that have experienced drought over the past five 
years. The measure was referred to the House Committee on Natural Resources 
and the Committee on Agriculture. 

By a vote of 230-190, the House passed H.R. 23, as amended, on July 12, 2017. 
H.R. 23 was received in Senate, read twice and referred to the Committee on 
Energy and Natural Resources on July 18, 2017. 

H.R. 4/ Rep. Bill Shuster FAA Reauthorization Among other issues this legislation would reauthorizes the Federal Aviation 
S.1405 (R-PA)/ Sen. John Act of 2018/ Federal Administration for five years. Among other things the FAA reauthorization funds 
(replaced by Thune (R-SD) Aviation aviation programs, Airport Planning and Development and Noise Compatibility 
H.R.302) Administration 

Reauthorization Act of 
Planning and Programs and authorizes FAA's Airport Improvement Program (AIP) 
account at $3.350 billion annually for each of fiscal years 2018-2023. 

2017 By a vote of 393 — 13, the House passed H.R.4. The Senate has received the bill and 
placed it on the Senate Legislative Calendar under General Orders but will likely 
vote to maintain the legislation through a short-term extension through October 7. 

The Senate version of the bill was favorably reported out of the Committee on 
Commerce, Science, and Transportation on May 5, 2018 and was then placed on 
the Senate Legislative Calendar. 

Since the Senate was unable to pass its own legislation, the House and Senate pre-
conferenced legislation in a bipartisan manner, which was passed the House as a 
message / substitute amendment to H.R. 302. The Senate is expected to have the 
votes to pass the legislation, though the timeline for consideration is unclear. The 
Senate is likely to pass a short term reauthorization that was passed by the House to 
give themselves an additional week to pass the 5-year authorization. 

41IFS Legislative Matrix 



H.R. 1663 Rep. Grace 
Napolitano (D- 
CA) / Rep. Rob 
Wittman (R-VA) 

Water Resources 
Research Amendments 
Act 

This legislation would extend a Federal-State partnership aimed at addressing state 
and regional water problems, promoting distribution and application of research 
results, and providing training and practical experience for water-related scientists 
and engineers. H.R. 1663 would authorize $9,000,000 annually over five years for 
grants to water resources research institutes and require two-to-one matching with 
non-federal funds. It would also promote exploration of new ideas, expand research 
to reduce energy consumption, and bolster reporting and accountability 
requirements. 

The bill has been introduced in the House Committee on Natural Resources and 
referred to the Subcommittee on Water, Power and Oceans on March 27, 2017. 

H.R. 497/ Rep. Paul Cook Santa Ana River Wash This bill directs the Department of the Interior: (1) to quitclaim to the San 
S.357 (R-CA)/ Sen. Plan Land Exchange Bernardino Valley Water Conservation District in California approximately 327 

Dianne Feinstein 
(D-CA) 

Act acres of identified federal land administered by the Bureau of Land Management, 
and (2) in exchange for such land, to accept from the Conservation District a 
conveyance of approximately 310 acres of its land. 

On April 27th  H.R. 497 passed through the House Natural Resources Committee by 
unanimous consent and was scheduled for the House Floor Consideration on June 
2nd. 

 

This bill was passed by the House on June 27th  by a vote of 424-0. The bill was 
referred to the Senate Committee on Energy and Natural Resources on June 28th  
and no further action has been taken. 

The Senate Environment and Public Works Committee held a hearing on S. 357 on 
July 26, 2017. 

On May 15, 2018 the Senate Committee on Energy and Natural Resources ordered 
H.R. 497 to be reported without amendment favorably. 

On August 15, 2018 Senator Murkowski from the Senate Committee on Energy and 
Natural Resources filed a written report to accompany H.R. 497. 

S. 32 / H.R. Sen. Dianne California Desert This bill would designate important wilderness in the California desert and protect 
857 Feinstein (D-CA) / Protection and lands for recreation, wildlife and tourism. Aspects of the bill include: 

Rep. Paul Cook Recreation Act / • Mandate study and protection of Native American cultural trails along the 
(R-CA) California Off-Road Colorado River. 

5IIFS Legislative Matrix 



Recreation and 
Conservation Act 

• Designate 230,000 acres of additional wilderness area between the Avawatz 
Mountains near Death Valley to Imperial County's Milpitas Wash. 
• Add 43,000 acres to Death Valley and Joshua Tree national parks. 
• Create a 75,000-plus acre special management area at Imperial County's Vinagre 
Wash. 
'Designate Inyo County's Alabama Hills as a National Scenic Area. 
- Prohibit new mining claims on 10,000 acres in Imperial County considered sacred 
by the Quechan Tribe. 

Additionally, the bill protects 140,000 acres of existing off-road vehicle riding areas 
from mining, energy development, military base expansion or other decisions that 
would close them to vehicle use. 

The Senate Environment and Public Works Committee held a hearing on S.32 on 
July 26, 2017. 

H.R. 857, California Off-Road Recreation and Conservation Act, is a similar bill 
and largely aims to address similar issues. As the House has passed Congressman 
Cook's bill, staff from the House and Senate are attempting to work on a path 
forward. 

H.R. 2510 Rep. Peter 
DeFazio (D-OR) 

Water Quality 
Protection and Job 
Creation Act of 2017 

This bill would amend the Federal Water Pollution Control Act to authorize 
appropriations for State water pollution control revolving funds. 

This bill was introduced on May 19, 2017 and was referred to the Subcommittee on 
Water Resources and Environment. 

H.R. 1654 Rep. Tom 
McClintock (R- 
CA) 

Water Supply 
Pet witting 
Coordination Act 

This bill would allow water project sponsors the opportunity to use an expedited 
permitting process for new or expanded surface non-federal storage facilities 
through the Bureau of Reclamation, which would be the lead and central agency 
coordinating the review process. 

The House Natural Resources Committee approved the bill by a vote of 24-16 on 
April 27. The House Rules Committee on June 20th  dictated final amendments for 
passage on the House Floor; this bill passed the House on June 22 by a vote of 233-
180. H.R. 1654 was referred to the Senate Committee on Energy and Natural 
Resources on June 26 and no further action has been taken. 

H.R. 6084 Rep. Brian Babin 
(R-TX)/ Rep. Terri 
Sewell (D-AL) 

Onsite Wastewater 
Recycling Efficiency 
Act 

This bill would allow for the provision of information and resources to fully use 
decentralized wastewater systems in the United States to provide affordable 
wastewater recycling and treatment. 

61IFS Legislative Matrix 



This bill was introduced on September 13, 2018 and referred to the Subcommittee 
on Water Resources and Environment on September 14, 2018. 

7IIFS Legislative Matrix 



Inland Empire Utilities Agency 

A MUNICIPAL WATER DISTRICT 

Date: October 17, 2018 

To: The Honorable Board of Directors From: Halla Razak, General Manager 

Committee: Community & Legislative Affairs /0/10/18 

Executive Contact: Kathy Besser, Executive Manager of Ext. Aff. & Policy Dev./AGM 

Subject: Public Outreach and Communication 

Executive Summary: 

This is an informational item that provides highlights of the External Affairs team's monthly 
outreach, education and communication programs and updates. 

October 
• October, National Energy Awareness Month 
• October 6 — October 14, Water Professionals Appreciation Week 
• October 20, Landscape & Water Conservation Festival, Chino Basin Water Conservation 

District, 4594 San Bernardino Street, Montclair, 9:00 a.m. — 2:00 p.m. 
• October 30, Blood Drive, IEUA HQB Event Room, 8:00 a.m. — 1:00 p.m. 

November 
• November 3, Solar Cup Boat Building Workshop, Three Valleys MWD, 1021 E. Miramar 
Avenue, Claremont, Time TBD 

• November 7, Rotary Club of Upland Meeting (IEUA staff to present on Water Softener 
Removal Rebate Program), Landecena Community Center, 1325 E. San Bernardino Road, 
Upland, 12:00 p.m. 

Staffs Recommendation: 

This is an infoimational item for the Board of Directors to receive and file. 

Budget Impact: N Budgeted (Y/A),' N Amendment ow): N _Requested Amount: 

Account/Project Name: 

Fiscal Impact (explain if not budgeted): 

Full account coding (internal AP purposes only): Project No.: 

-P85- 



Page 2 of 2 

Prior Board Action: 

N/A 

Environmental Determination: 
Not Applicable 

Business Goal: 

IEUA is committed to providing a reliable and cost-effective water supply and promoting 
sustainable water use throughout the region. 

IEUA is committed to enhancing and promoting environmental sustainability and the 
preservation of the region's heritage. 

Attachments: 

Attachment 1 - Background 

Board-Rec No.: 18234 
P86 



46:*   Inland Empire Utilities  Agency 
A MUNICIPAL WATER DISTRICT Background 

Page 1 of 2 

Subject: Public Outreach and Communication 

October 
• October, National Energy Awareness Month 
• October 6 — October 14, Water Professionals Appreciation Week 
• October 20, Landscape & Water Conservation Festival, Chino Basin Water Conservation 

District, 4594 San Bernardino Street, Montclair, 9:00 a.m. — 2:00 p.m. 
• October 30, Blood Drive, IEUA HQB Event Room, 8:00 a.m. — 1:00 p.m. 

November 
• November 3, Solar Cup Boat Building Workshop, Three Valleys MWD, 1021 E. Miramar 

Avenue, Claremont, Time TBD 
• November 7, Rotary Club of Upland Meeting (IEUA staff to present on Water Softener 

Removal Rebate Program), Landecena Community Center, 1325 E. San Bernardino Road, 
Upland, 12:00 p.m. 

December 
• December 19, Employee Recognition Holiday Luncheon, Los Serranos Country Club, 

15656 Yorba Avenue, Chino Hills, 11:00 a.m. — 3:00 p.m. 

Media and Outreach  
• Staff ran an ad in the Chino Champion's Senior Living section on October 6. 
• External Affairs staff is working with Agency department leads to update the Agency's 

external website. 
• Staff is continuing to schedule service club presentations highlighting IEUA' s Water 

Softener Removal Rebate Program. 
• Agency staff is working on a video short featuring the Agency's renewable energy 

portfolio. 
• September: 11 posts were published to the IEUA Facebook page, eight posts were 

published to IEUA's Instagram and 10 tweets were sent on the @LEUAwater Twitter 
handle. 

o The top three Facebook posts, based on reach and engagement, in the month of 
September were: 

• 9/5: National Preparedness Month 
• 9/6: #ThursdayThoughts 
• 9/14: #FunFactFriday 

o The top three tweets, based on reach and engagement, in the month of September 
were: 

• 9/18: World Water Monitoring Day 
• 9/6: #ThursdayThoughts 
• 9/5: National Preparedness Month 

o The top three Instagram posts, based on reach and engagement, in the month of 
September were: 

• 9/12: National Preparedness Month 
• 9/6: #ThursdayThoughts 
• 9/14: #FunFactFriday 

P87 



Page 2 of 2 

• During the months of August and September, staff promoted a post about the Water 
Discovery Field Trip and Tours as a boosted/paid post. The post reached 3,788 people in 
IEUA's service area. 

• The City of Chino Hills will include Automatic Water Softener Removal Rebate inserts 
with the September/October billing to 22,000 residents. 

Education and Outreach Updates  
• Staff has begun program outreach for the new school year this month. Principal meetings 

will be scheduled in addition to digital and postal outreach methods. 
• Staff has begun scheduling Water Discovery Field Trips. To date, 33 schools have made 

reservations for the current school year. 
• Solar Cup teams are confirmed: Los Osos High School (Rancho Cucamonga), Chino Hills 

High School and Upland High School. 

P88 



CHINO BASIN WATERMASTER 

IV. INFORMATION  

1. Cash Disbursements for September 2018 



CHINO BASIN WATERMASTER 
Cash Disbursements For The Month of 

September 2018 

For Informational Purposes Only 

Type Date Num Name Memo Account Paid Amount 

Bill Pmt -Check 09/06/2018 ACH 090618 CALPERS 1394905143 1012 • Bank of America Gen'l Ckg 

Bill 08/14/2018 1394905143 Medical Insurance Premium 60182.1 • Medical Insurance 6,152.76 

TOTAL 6,152.76 

Bill Pmt -Check 09/06/2018 ACH 090618 PUBLIC EMPLOYEES' RETIREMENT SYSTEM Payor #3493 1012 • Bank of America Gen'l Ckg 

Bill 08/18/2018 100000015402710 Fees for GASB-68 Reports & Schedules 60180 - Employers PERS Expense 700.00 

TOTAL 700.00 

General Journal 09/08/2018 09/08/2018 Payroll and Taxes for 08/26/18-09/08/18 Payroll and Taxes for 08/26/18-09/08/18 1012 • Bank of America Gen'l Ckg 

Direct Deposits for 08/26/18-09/08/18 1012 • Bank of America Gen'l Ckg 25,972.40 

Payroll Taxes for 08/26/18-09/08/18 1012 • Bank of America Gen'l Ckg 8,783.23 

ICMA-RC 457(b) Employee Deductions for 08/26/18-09/08/111012 • Bank of America Gen'l Ckg 4,541.43 

ICMA-RC 401(a) Employee Deductions for 08/26/18-09/08/111012 • Bank of America Gen'l Ckg 1,311.76 

TOTAL 40,608.82 

Bill Pmt -Check 09/13/2018 ACH 091318 PUBLIC EMPLOYEES' RETIREMENT SYSTEM Payor #3493 1012 • Bank of America Gen'l Ckg 

General Journal 09/08/2018 09/08/2018 PUBLIC EMPLOYEES' RETIREMENT SYSTEM CalPERS Retirement for 08/26/18-09/08/18 2000 - Accounts Payable 6,886.20 

TIgAL 6,886.20 

OD 
Co 

Bill Pmt -Check 09/14/2018 20989 ACCENT COMPUTER SOLUTIONS, INC. 123295 1012 • Bank of America Gen'l Ckg 

Bill 09/01/2018 123295 Monthly service - Sept. 2018 6052.4 • IT Managed Services 4,226.00 

Overwatch - Sept 2018 6052.5 • IT Data Backup/Storage 699.00 

OmniCloud - Sept. 2018 6052.5 • IT Data Backup/Storage 108.00 

Office 365 subscriptions - Sept. 2018 6052.4 • IT Managed Services 58.10 

Image office storage 6052.5 • IT Data Backup/Storage 1,088.75 

TOTAL 6,179.85 

Bill Pmt -Check 09/14/2018 20990 ACWA JOINT POWERS INSURANCE AUTHORIl 0512818 1012 • Bank of America Gen'l Ckg 

Bill 09/10/2018 0512818 Prepayment - October 2018 1409 • Prepaid Life, BAD&D & LTD 219.87 

September 2018 60191 - Life & Disab.Ins Benefits 217.40 

TOTAL 437.27 

Bill Pmt -Check 09/14/2018 20991 APPLIED COMPUTER TECHNOLOGIES 2999 1012 • Bank of America Gen'l Ckg 

Bill 08/30/2018 2999 Database Consulting Services - August 2018 6052.2 • Applied Computer Technol 3,770.80 

TOTAL 3,770.80 

Bill Pmt -Check 09/14/2018 20992 ARION GLOBAL, INC. 1012 • Bank of America Gen'l Ckg 

Bill 08/24/2018 Cost of hauling away old office furniture 6027 • Other Building Expense 1,275.00 

TOTAL 1,275.00 

Page 1 of 10 



CHINO BASIN WATERMASTER 
Cash Disbursements For The Month of 

September 2018 

For Informational Purposes Only 

Type Date Num Name Memo Account Paid Amount 

Bill Pmt -Check 09/14/2018 20993 BANK OF AMERICA XXXX-XXXX-XXM-9341 1012 -• Bank of America Gen'l Ckg 

Bill 08/31/2018 XXXX-XXXX-XXXX-9341 50% deposit-AN desktop 6055 • Computer Hardware 895.23 

CVI's for new employee search 6016 • New Employee Search Costs 79.65 

50% deposit-new office furniture 1840 • Capital Assets 5,056.50 

Clear tabs for tabletop for office 6031.7 • Other Office Supplies 3.97 

Replacement Boardroom laptop battery 6055 • Computer Hardware 30.85 

Replacement case for CFO cell phone 6031.7 • Other Office Supplies 17.91 

Toner cartridges for office printers 6031.7 • Other Office Supplies 1,031.79 

File/storage boxes 6031.7 • Other Office Supplies 65.05 

Curtains 4 kitchen, tables/lamps 4 reception area 6031.7 • Other Office Supplies 382.46 

Replacement blender for office 6031.7 • Other Office Supplies 64.35 

Lunch for pre-Ag meeting 8412 • Meeting Expenses 62.42 

PK meeting w/Razak 8312 • Meeting Expenses 25.08 

Miscellaneous office supplies 6031.7 • Other Office Supplies 48.07 

Storage boxes 6031.7 • Other Office Supplies 270.40 

Laminating supplies 6031.7 • Other Office Supplies 8.71 

Replacement keyboard/mouse 6055 • Computer Hardware 20.76 

Registration fee for webinar for AN 6193.2 • Conference - Registration Fee 196.13 
7:11 
Co Lunch for 8/23 Board meeting 6312 • Meeting Expenses 108.76 

Lunch for 8/23 Board meeting 6312 • Meeting Expenses 107.04 

Data hubs for meeting room 6031.7 • Other Office Supplies 51.13 

Miscellaneous office supplies 6031.7 • Other Office Supplies 24.55 

Miscellaneous office supplies 6031.7 • Other Office Supplies 96.69 

Miscellaneous office supplies 6031.7 • Other Office Supplies 273.68 

Miscellaneous office supplies 6031.7 • Other Office Supplies 86.37 

Lunch for PK meeting w/Ag Pool 8412 • Meeting Expenses 74.67 

Miscellaneous office supplies 6031.7 • Other Office Supplies 407.00 

Registration fee-CG-attend Outlook seminar 6193.2 • Conference - Registration Fee 293.70 

TOTAL 9,782.92 

Bill Pmt -Check 09/14/2018 20994 BOWCOCK, ROBERT Board Member Compensation 1012 • Bank of America Gen'l Ckg 

Bill 08/16/2018 8/16 RIPCom Mtg 8/16/18 RIPCom Meeting 6311 • Board Member Compensation 125.00 

Bill 08/20/2018 8/20 Water Bank Mtg 8/20/18 Water Bank Stakeholder Meeting #4 6311 • Board Member Compensation 125.00 

Bill 08/23/2018 8/23 Board Mtg 8/23/18 Board Meeting 6311 • Board Member Compensation 125.00 

TOTAL 375.00 

Bill Pmt -Check 09/14/2018 20995 CORELOGIC INFORMATION SOLUTIONS 80914552 1012 • Bank of America Gen'l Ckg 

Bill 08/31/2018 81914552 80914552 7103.7 • Grdwtr Qual-Computer Svc 62.50 

80914552 7101.4 • Prod Monitor-Computer 62.50 

Page 2 of 10 



Type Date Num 

CHINO BASIN WATERMASTER 
Cash Disbursements For The Month of 

September 2018 

Name Memo 

For Informational Purposes Only 

Account Paid Amount 

TOTAL 125.00 

Bill Pmt -Check 09/14/2018 20996 CUBICLE AND OFFICE, LLC. 1044 1012 • Bank of America Gen'l Ckg 

Bill 09/12/2018 1044 File cabinet, bookcases for Ops staff 1840 • Capital Assets 930.75 

TOTAL 930.75 

Bill Pmt -Check 09/14/2018 20997 DE BOOM, NATHAN Ag Pool Member Compensation 1012 • Bank of America Gen'l Ckg 

Bill 08/09/2018 8/09 Ag Pool Mtg 8/09/18 Ag Pool Meeting 8411 • Compensation 25.00 

8/09/18 Ag Pool Meeting 8470 • Ag Meeting Attend -Special 100.00 

TOTAL 125.00 

Bill Pmt -Check 09/14/2018 20998 DI PRIMIO, ROBERT Board Member Compensation 1012 • Bank of America Gen'l Ckg 

Bill 08/21/2018 8/21 Board Agenda 8/21/18 Board agenda preview meeting 6311 • Board Member Compensation 125.00 

Bill 08/23/2018 8/23 Board Meeting 8/23/18 Board meeting 6311 • Board Member Compensation 125.00 

TOTAL 250.00 

Bill Pmt -Check 09/14/2018 20999 EGOSCUE LAW GROUP, INC. 12048 1012 • Bank of America Gen'l Ckg 

Bill 08/31/2018 12048 Ag Pool Legal Services - August 2018 8467 • Ag Legal & Technical Services 31,716.73 

T.CeTAL 31,716.73 

CD 
—A. 

Bill Pmt -Check 09/14/2018 21000 ELIE, STEVEN Board Member Compensation 1012 • Bank of America Gen'l Ckg 

Bill 08/23/2018 8/23 Board Mtg 8/23/18 Board Meeting 6311 • Board Member Compensation 125.00 

TOTAL 125.00 

Bill Pmt -Check 09/14/2018 21001 FEDAK & BROWN LLP Progress Billing - Audit Services 1012 • Bank of America Gen'l Ckg 

Bill 08/31/2018 August 2018 6062 • Audit Services 3,256.00 

TOTAL 3,256.00 

Bill Pmt -Check 09/14/2018 21002 FEENSTRA, BOB Ag Pool Member Compensation 1012 • Bank of America Gen'l Ckg 

Bill 08/09/2018 8/09 Ag Pool Mtg 8/09/18 Ag Pool meeting 8470 • Ag Meeting Attend -Special 125.00 

Bill 08/16/2018 8/16 Advisory Comm 8/16/18 Advisory Committee meeting 8470 • Ag Meeting Attend -Special 125.00 

Bill 08/16/2018 8/16 RIPCom Mtg 8/16/18 RIPCom meeting 8470 • Ag Meeting Attend -Special 125.00 

Bill 08/23/2018 8/23 Personnel Comm 8/23/18 Personnel Committee meeting 8470 • Ag Meeting Attend -Special 125.00 

Bill 08/23/2018 8/23 Board Mfg 8/23/18 Board meeting 8470 • Ag Meeting Attend -Special 125.00 

Bill 08/30/2018 8/30 Special Ag Mtg 8/30/18 Special Ag Pool meeting 8470 • Ag Meeting Attend -Special 125.00 

TOTAL 750.00 

Bill Pmt -Check 09/14/2018 21003 FILIPPI, GINO Board Member Compensation 1012 • Bank of America Gen'l Ckg 

Bill 08/23/2018 8/23 Board Meeting 8/23/18 Board Meeting 6311 • Board Member Compensation 125.00 

TOTAL 125.00 

Page 3 of 10 



CHINO BASIN WATERMASTER 
Cash Disbursements For The Month of 

September 2018 

For Informational Purposes Only 

Type Date Num Name Memo Account Paid Amount 

Bill Pmt -Check 09/14/2018 21004 HUITSING, JOHN Ag Pool Member Compensation 1012 - Bank of America Gen'l Ckg 

Bill 08/09/2018 8/09 Ag Pool Mtg 8/09/18 Ag Pool Meeting 8411 • Compensation 25.00 

8/09/18 Ag Pool Meeting 8470 • Ag Meeting Attend -Special 100.00 

Bill 08/31/2018 7/12 Ag Pool Mtg 7/12/18 Ag Pool Meeting 8411 • Compensation 25.00 

7/12/18 Ag Pool Meeting 8470 • Ag Meeting Attend -Special 100.00 

TOTAL 250.00 

Bill Pmt -Check 09/14/2018 21005 JOHN J. SCHATZ Appropriative Pool Legal Services 1012 • Bank of America Gen.! Ckg 

Bill 08/31/2018 Appropriative Pool Legal Services - August 2018 8367 • Legal Service 6,970.00 

TOTAL 6,970.00 

Bill Pmt -Check 09/14/2018 21006 KUHN, BOB Board Member Compensation 1012 • Bank of America Gen'l Ckg 

Bill 08/09/2018 8/09 Appro Pool Mtg 8/09/18 Appropriative Pool Meeting 6311 • Board Member Compensation 125.00 

Bill 08/16/2018 8/16 Advisory Comm 8/16/18 Advisory Committee Meeting 6311 • Board Member Compensation 125.00 

Bill 08/21/2018 8/21 Conference Call 8/21/18 Board Agenda Preview conference call 6311 • Board Member Compensation 125.00 

Bill 08/23/2018 8/23 Board Mtg 8/23/18 Board meeting 6311 • Board Member Compensation 125.00 

Bill 08/30/2018 8/30 Admin Mfg 8/30/18 Administrative meeting 6311 • Board Member Compensation 125.00 

TAL 625.00 

CO 
NI 

Bill Pmt -Check 09/14/2018 21007 LOEB & LOEB LLP 1785289 1012 • Bank of America Gen'l Ckg 

Bill 07/31/2018 1785289 Non-Ag Pool Legal Services - July 2018 8567 • Non-Ag Legal Service 11,950.30 

TOTAL 11,950.30 

Bill Pmt -Check 09/14/2018 21008 NELSON, ANNA Employee Reimbursement 1012 • Bank of America Gen'l Ckg 

Bill 08/28/2018 Reimburse for power cords for office 6031.7 • Other Office Supplies 41.57 

Reimburse for admin lunch mtg 6141.3 • Admin Meetings 22.36 

TOTAL 63.93 

Bill Pmt -Check 09/14/2018 21009 PAYCHEX 2018083000 1012 • Bank of America Gen'l Ckg 

Bill 08/31/2018 2018083000 August 2018 6012 • Payroll Services 468.21 

TOTAL 468.21 

Bill Pmt -Check 09/14/2018 21010 PIETERSMA, RONALD Ag Pool Member Compensation 1012 • Bank of America Gen'l Ckg 

Bill 08/09/2018 8/09 Ag Pool Mtg 8/09/18 Ag Pool Meeting 8411 • Compensation 25.00 

8/09/18 Ag Pool Meeting 8470 • Ag Meeting Attend -Special 100.00 

TOTAL 125.00 

Bill Pmt -Check 09/14/2018 21011 PREMIERE GLOBAL SERVICES 26377150 1012 • Bank of America Gen'l Ckg 

Bill 08/30/2018 26377150 Non-Ag Pool meeting call on 8/09 8512 • Meeting Expense 22.01 

Page 4 of 10 



Type Date Num 

CHINO BASIN WATERMASTER 
Cash Disbursements For The Month of 

September 2018 

Name Memo 

For Informational Purposes Only 

Account Paid Amount 

Service Fee - General 6022 • Telephone 49.00 

Service Fee - Confidential 6022 • Telephone 49.00 

Pomona Extensometer call on 7/30 6909.1 • OBMP Meetings 11.73 

Pools agenda prep call on 7/31 8312 • Meeting Expenses 2.06 

Pools agenda prep call on 7/31 8412 • Meeting Expenses 2.06 

Pools agenda prep call on 7/31 8512 • Meeting Expense 2.06 

HCP call w/IEUA 6909.1 • OBMP Meetings 6.19 

Annual Report kick-off call on 8/03 6909.1 • OBMP Meetings 14.97 

WM coordination call on 8/06 6909.1 • OBMP Meetings 6.55 

HCP call w/IEUA 6909.1 • OBMP Meetings 7.77 

SY Reset update call on 8/06 6909.1 • OBMP Meetings 12.58 

Pool mtgs check call on 8/08 8312 • Meeting Expenses 4.69 

Pool mtgs check call on 8/08 8412 • Meeting Expenses 4.69 

Pool mtgs check call on 8/08 8512 • Meeting Expense 4.69 

Pomona Extensometer call on 8/13 6909.1 • OBMP Meetings 17.90 

WM coordination call on 8/20 6909.1 • OBMP Meetings 19.51 

Board agenda preview call on 8/21 6312 • Meeting Expenses 14.05 

Service Fee 6022 • Telephone 9.55 

TWAL 261.06 

Bill Pmt -Check 09/14/2018 21012 PURCHASE POWER 8000-9090-0016-8851 1012 • Bank of America Gen'l Ckg 

Bill 08/30/2018 8000909000168851 Postage refill 6042 • Postage- General 500.00 

TOTAL 500.00 

Bill Pmt -Check 09/14/2018 21013 R&D PEST SERVICES 0233545 1012 • Bank of America Gen'l Ckg 

Bill 09/06/2018 0233545 Pest control 6024 • Building Repair & Maintenance 100.00 

TOTAL 100.00 

Bill Pmt -Check 09/14/2018 21014 READY REFRESH BY NESTLE 0023230253 1012 • Bank of America Gen'l Ckg 

Bill 08/30/2018 0023230253 Office Water Bottle - August 2018 6031.7 • Other Office Supplies 46.91 

TOTAL 46.91 

Bill Pmt -Check 09/14/2018 21015 RR FRANCHISING, INC. 60835 1012 • Bank of America Gen'l Ckg 

Bill 09/01/2018 60835 Monthly janitorial service - September 2018 6024 • Building Repair & Maintenance 740.00 

TOTAL 740.00 

Bill Pmt -Check 09/14/2018 21016 SOCIETY FOR HUMAN RESOURCE MGMT. 9007649844 1012 - Bank of America Gen'l Ckg 

Bill 09/13/2018 9007649844 Membership-Joswiak 12/01/18-11/30/19 6111 • Membership Dues 189.00 

TOTAL 189.00 

Page 5 of 10 



Type Date Num 

CHINO BASIN WATERMASTER 
Cash Disbursements For The Month of 

September 2018 

Name Memo 

For Informational Purposes Only 

Account Paid Amount 

Bill Pmt -Check 09/14/2018 21017 STATE COMPENSATION INSURANCE FUND 1970970-18 1012 • Bank of America Gen'l Ckg 

Bill 09/01/2018 1970970-18 Monthly premium 8/26/18-9/26/18 60183 • Worker's Comp Insurance 552.42 

TOTAL 552.42 

Bill Pmt -Check 09/14/2018 21018 TELLEZ-FOSTER, EDGAR Employee Reimbursement 1012 • Bank of America Gen'l Ckg 

Bill 09/07/2018 Meetings with candidates for field staff position 6016 • New Employee Search Costs 255.99 

TOTAL 255.99 

Bill Pmt -Check 09/14/2018 21019 ULLOA, EUNICE Board Member Compensation 1012 • Bank of America Gen'l Ckg 

Bill 08/09/2018 8/09 Appro Pool Mfg 8/09/18 Appropriative Pool meeting 6311 • Board Member Compensation 125.00 

Bill 08/28/2018 8/28 GRCC Mfg 8/28/18 GRCC meeting 6311 • Board Member Compensation 125.00 

TOTAL 250.00 

Bill Pmt -Check 09/14/2018 21020 UNION 76 7076-2245-3035-5049 1012 • Bank of America Gen'l Ckg 

Bill 08/31/2018 7076224530355049 Fuel - August 2018 6175 • Vehicle Fuel 53.71 

TOTAL 53.71 

Bill Pmt -Check 09/14/2018 21021 USA-FACT INC Background Checks 1012 • Bank of America Gen'l Ckg 

-1:1 Bill 08/25/2018 8083027 Background check - field staff positions 6016 • New Employee Search Costs 142.37 

CO Bill 08/31/2018 8090727 Background check - field staff positions 6016 • New Employee Search Costs 35.95 
-IN 

178.32 TOTAL 

Bill Pmt -Check 09/14/2018 21022 VISION SERVICE PLAN 00-101789-0001 1012 • Bank of America Gen'l Ckg 

Bill 08/30/2018 001017890001 Vision Insurance Premium - September 2018 60182.2 • Dental & Vision Ins 63.18 

TOTAL 63.18 

Bill Pmt -Check 09/14/2018 21023 VISTAGE WORLDWIDE, INC. 50PINV00000733083 1012 • Bank of America Gen'l Ckg 

Bill 09/01/2018 S0PINV00000733083 Kavounas Membership-Oct. 2018 to Sept. 2019 1433- Prepaid Membership Dues 17,053.00 

TOTAL 17,053.00 

Bill Pmt -Check 09/14/2018 21024 WESTERN MUNICIPAL WATER DISTRICT Board Member Compensation 1012 • Bank of America Gen'l Ckg 

Bill 08/23/2018 8/23 Board Mtg 8/23/18 Board Meeting - Galleano attendance 6311 • Board Member Compensation 125.00 

TOTAL 125.00 

Bill Pmt -Check 09/14/2018 21025 YUKON DISPOSAL SERVICE 08-K2 213849 1012 • Bank of America Gen'l Ckg 

Bill 09/01/2018 08-k2 213849 Disposal Service - September 2018 6024 • Building Repair & Maintenance 117.14 

TOTAL 117.14 

Bill Pmt -Check 09/14/2018 21026 ACCENT COMPUTER SOLUTIONS, INC. IT Managed Services 1012 • Bank of America Gen'l Ckg 

Bill 08/30/2018 123389 Overvvatch (Firewall and 4TB) 6052.5 • IT Data Backup/Storage 1,750.00 

Page 6 of 10 



Type Date Num 

CHINO BASIN WATERMASTER 
Cash Disbursements For The Month of 

September 2018 

Name Memo 

For Informational Purposes Only 

Account Paid Amount 

Bill 

Bill 

Bill 

Bill 

08/31/2018 123418 

08/31/2018 123425 

08/31/2018 123562 

08/31/2018 123440 

480GB SSD upgrade for auxilliary room laptop 

RAM upgrade for boardroom laptop 

Windows 10 upgrades for various laptops 

Cloud storage, FTP replacement 

6055 • Computer Hardware 

6055 • Computer Hardware 

6054 • Computer Software 

6052.5 • IT Data Backup/Storage 

191.80 

99.90 

597.00 

225.00 

TOTAL 2,863.70 

Bill Pmt -Check 09/25/2018 ACH 092518 PUBLIC EMPLOYEES' RETIREMENT SYSTEM Payor #3493 1012 • Bank of America Gen'l Ckg 

Bill 09/01/2018 15415406 Annual Unfunded Accrued Liability Plan 3299 60180 • Employers PERS Expense 5,456.55 

TOTAL 5,456.55 

Bill Pmt -Check 09/25/2018 21027 INLAND EMPIRE UTILITIES AGENCY 1012 • Bank of America Gen'l Ckg 

Bill 08/01/2018 1800003831 Lower Day Improvement Projects Inv #6 7690.8 • Lower Day Basin RMPU (TO #2) 119,828.39 

Bill 08/09/2018 1800003878 RMPU Yield Enhancements Projects Invoice #8 7690.15 • RMPU Amend. Yield (TO #1) 980,182.15 

TOTAL 1,100,010.54 

Bill Pmt -Check 09/25/2018 21028 MICHAEL'S #3844 Board Room 1012 • Bank of America Gen'l Ckg 

Bill 09/25/2018 Custom matting/framing Annual Report covers 1840 • Capital Assets 2,930.69 

Ti:TAL 2,930.69 

CD 
01 

Bill Pmt -Check 09/25/2018 21029 SEVEN STAR PAINTING CO. Office Painting 1012 • Bank of America Gen'l Ckg 

Bill 09/25/2018 Deposit for office painting 1840 • Capital Assets 950.00 

TOTAL 950.00 

Bill Pmt -Check 09/27/2018 21030 ACCENT COMPUTER SOLUTIONS, INC. 123802 1012 • Bank of America Gen'l Ckg 

Bill 10/01/2018 123802 Monthly service - Oct. 2018 6052.4 • IT Managed Services 4,226.00 

Overwatch - Oct. 2018 6052.5 • IT Data Backup/Storage 699.00 

OmniCloud - Oct. 2018 6052.5 • IT Data Backup/Storage 117.00 

Office 365 subscriptions - Oct. 2018 6052.4 • IT Managed Services 91.30 

Image office storage (per GB, per month) 6052.5 • IT Data Backup/Storage 817.73 

TOTAL 5,951.03 

Bill Pmt -Check 09/27/2018 21031 BLUER1DGE SOFTWARE, INC. 9894 1012 • Bank of America Gen'l Ckg 

Bill 09/26/2018 9894 Annual support for 10/25/18-10/24/19 6054 • Computer Software 629.82 

TOTAL 629.82 

Bill Pmt -Check 09/27/2018 21032 BUSINESS TELECOMMUNICATION SYSTEMS 114128 1012 • Bank of America Gen'l Ckg 

Bill 09/19/2018 14128 ShoreTel IP480 phone-new employee 6022 • Telephone 332.17 

TOTAL 332.17 

Page 7 of 10 



Type Date Num 

CHINO BASIN WATERMASTER 
Cash Disbursements For The Month of 

September 2018 

Name Memo 

For Informational Purposes Only 

Account Paid Amount 

Bill Pmt -Check 09/27/2018 21033 CENTURYLINK 73607985 1012 • Bank of America Gen'l Ckg 

Bill 09/26/2018 73607985 9/17/18-10/16/18 6053 • Internet Expense 1,051.28 

TOTAL 1,051.28 

Bill Pmt -Check 09/27/2018 21034 CUCAMONGA VALLEY WATER DISTRICT 1012 • Bank of America Gen'l Ckg 

Bill 09/17/2018 Office lease due October 1, 2018- annual rent adji 1422 • Prepaid Rent 6,866.54 

TOTAL 6,866.54 

Bill Pmt -Check 09/27/2018 21035 DE HAAN, HENRY Ag Pool Member Compensation 1012 • Bank of America Gen'l Ckg 

Bill 08/09/2018 8/09 Ag Pool Mfg 8/09/18 Ag Pool Meeting 8411 • Compensation 25.00 

8/09/18 Ag Pool Meeting 8470 • Ag Meeting Attend -Special 100.00 

TOTAL 125.00 

Bill Pmt -Check 09/27/2018 21036 FIRST LEGAL NETWORK LLC 40020648 1012 • Bank of America Gen'l Ckg 

Bill 08/31/2018 40020648 Court filings for August 2018 6061.5 • Court Filing Services 659.91 

TOTAL 659.91 

Bill Pmt -Check 09/27/2018 21037 FRONTIER COMMUNICATIONS 909-484-3890-050914-5 1012 • Bank of America Gen'l Ckg 

"1:1 Bill 09/18/2018 90948438900509145 Office fax 6022 • Telephone 143.32 

IgAL 143.32 

Bill Pmt -Check 09/27/2018 21038 GREAT AMERICA LEASING CORP. 23370386 1012 • Bank of America Gen'l Ckg 

Bill 09/26/2018 23370386 Invoice for September 2018 6043.1 • Ricoh Lease Fee 2,605.07 

TOTAL 2,605.07 

Bill Pmt -Check 09/27/2018 21039 LEGAL SHIELD 0111802 1012 • Bank of America Gen'l Ckg 

Bill 09/26/2018 0111802 Employee deductions - September 2018 60194 • Other Employee Insurance 79.70 

TOTAL 79.70 

Bill Pmt -Check 09/27/2018 21040 LOEB & LOEB LLP 1788092 1012 • Bank of America Gen'l Ckg 

Bill 08/31/2018 1788092 Non-Ag Pool Legal Services-August 2018 8567 • Non-Ag Legal Service 8,071.20 

TOTAL 8,071.20 

Bill Pmt -Check 09/27/2018 21041 OFFICE & ERGONOMIC SOLUTIONS, INC. 17772 1012 - Bank of America Gen'l Ckg 

Bill 09/13/2018 17772 Credenza, bookcase, chairs 1840 • Capital Assets 856.59 

TOTAL 856.59 

Bill Pmt -Check 09/27/2018 21042 READY REFRESH BY NESTLE 0023230253 1012 • Bank of America Gen'l Ckg 

Bill 09/26/2018 0023230253 Office Water Bottle - September 2018 6031.7 • Other Office Supplies 68.45 

TOTAL 68.45 

Page 8 of 10 



CHINO BASIN WATERMASTER 
Cash Disbursements For The Month of 

September 2018 

For Informational Purposes Only 

Type Date Num Name Memo Account Paid Amount 

Bill Pmt -Check 09/27/2018 21043 SEVEN STAR PAINTING CO. Office Painting 1012 • Bank of America Gen'l Ckg 

Bill 09/26/2018 Balance due for office painting 1840 • Capital Assets 2,550.00 

TOTAL 2,550.00 

Bill Pmt -Check 09/27/2018 21044 STANDARD INSURANCE CO. Policy # 00-649299-0009 1012 • Bank of America Gen'l Ckg 

Bill 09/26/2018 006492990009 Policy # 00-649299-0009 60191 • Life & Disab.Ins Benefits 775.35 

TOTAL 775.35 

Bill Pmt -Check 09/27/2018 21045 STAPLES BUSINESS ADVANTAGE 8051432222 1012 • Bank of America Gen'l Ckg 

Bill 09/15/2018 8051432222 Miscellaneous office supplies 6031.7 • Other Office Supplies 130.32 

TOTAL 130.32 

Bill Pmt -Check 09/27/2018 21046 STAULA, MARY L Retiree Medical 1012 • Bank of America Gen'l Ckg 

Bill 09/30/2018 Retiree medical 60182.4 • Retiree Medical 25.17 

TOTAL 25.17 

Bill Pmt -Check 09/27/2018 21047 UNITED HEALTHCARE 052553741745 1012 • Bank of America Gen'l Ckg 

Bill "CI 09/14/2018 052553741745 Dental Insurance Premium - October 2018 60182.2 • Dental & Vision Ins 561.05 

1C4RA L 561.05 ....,1 

Bill Pmt -Check 09/27/2018 21048 USA-FACT INC Background Investigations 1012 - Bank of America Gen'l Ckg 

Bill 09/08/2018 8091423 Background check-field staff position applicants 6016 • New Employee Search Costs 91.99 

Bill 09/15/2018 8032128 Background check-field staff position applicants 6016 • New Employee Search Costs 3.00 

TOTAL 94.99 

Bill Pmt -Check 09/27/2018 21049 VERIZON WIRELESS 9274013426 1012 • Bank of America Gen'l Ckg 

Bill 09/18/2018 9814013426 Acct #470810953-00001 6022 • Telephone 297.23 

TOTAL 297.23 

Bill Pmt -Check 09/27/2018 21050 VERIZON WIRELESS 9814550558 1012 • Bank of America Gen'l Ckg 

Bill 09/26/2018 9814550558 Acct #642073270-00001 7103.7 • Grdwtr Qual-Computer Svc 100.06 

TOTAL 100.06 

Bill Pmt -Check 09/27/2018 ACH 092718 PUBLIC EMPLOYEES RETIREMENT SYSTEM Payor #3493 1012 • Bank of America Gen'l Ckg 

General Journal 09/22/2018 09/27/2018 PUBLIC EMPLOYEES' RETIREMENT SYSTEM CalPERS Retirement for 09/09/18-09/22/18 2000 • Accounts Payable 6,886.20 

TOTAL 6,886.20 

General Journal 09/28/2018 09/28/2018 Payroll and Taxes for 09/019/18-09/22/18 Payroll and Taxes for 09/019/18-09/22/18 1012 • Bank of America Gen'l Ckg 

Direct deposits for 09/019/18-09/22/18 1012 - Bank of America Gen'l Ckg 25,995.91 

Page 9 of 10 



CHINO BASIN WATERMASTER 
Cash Disbursements For The Month of 

September 2018 

For Informational Purposes Only 

Name Memo Account Paid Amount Type Date Num 

ICMA-RC 

ICMA-RC 

Payroll Taxes for 09/019/18-09/22/18 1012 • Bank of America Gen'l Ckg 

457(b) Employee deductions for 09/019/18-09/22/11012 • Bank of America Gen'l Ckg 

401(a) Employee deductions for 09/01 9/1 8-09/22/1 1012 • Bank of America Gen'l Ckg 

8,790.56 

4,541.43 

1,311.76 

   

TOTAL 40,639.66 

Total Disbursements: 1,346,221.86 

'CI 
CD 
00 

Page 10 of 10 



CHINO BASIN WATERMASTER 

IV. INFORMATION  

2. Plumes Status Reports 
a. Semiannual Report for the Chino Airport Plume 
b. Semiannual Report for the Archibald South Plume 
c. Annual Report for the GE Flatiron Plume 
d. Annual Report for the GE Test Plume 
e. Annual Report for the CIM 
f. Annual Report for former Kaiser Steel 
g. Annual Report for Milliken Landfill 
h. Annual Report for Stringfellow Plume 



Semiannual Status Report 
Chino Airport Plume 

October 2018 

Contaminants: The County of San Bernardino Department of Airports (County) identifies four 

primary contaminants; trichloroethene (TCE), 1,2,3-trichloropropane (1,2,3-TCP), cis-1,2-

dichloroethene (cis-1,2-DCE), and 1,2-dichloroethane (1,2-DCA) associated with the Chino Airport 

groundwater plume. The California maximum contaminant levels (MCLs) for TCE, 1,2,3-TCP, 

cis-1,2-DCE, and 1,2- DCA, as well as the maximum concentrations detected in groundwater samples 

collected from wells within the plume area over the five-year period from July 2013 to June 2018 are 

shown in the table below. 

Contaminant 
MCL Maximum Concentration 

°AO 
TCE 5 830 

1,2,3-TCP 0.005 44 
cis-1,2-DCE 6 47 
1,2- DCA 0.5 1.5 

Other contaminants of concern include 1,1-dichloroethene, carbon tetrachloride, and 1,4-dioxane. 

Location: The Chino Airport is located in the southwestern portion of the Chino Basin within the 

City of Chino. As delineated by the Chino Basin Watermaster (Watermaster) in 2017 for the 2016 State 

of the Basin Report', the extent of the plume with detectable TCE concentrations greater than 0.5 yigl is 

about 3,500 feet wide and 12,500 feet long, extending southwest from the Chino Airport to just south 

of Pine Avenue (see Exhibit 1). 

Since 2015, the County characterizes two plumes originating from different source areas at the Chino 

Airport: the West Plume and the East Plume. TCE and 1,2,3-TCP concentrations are the largest in 

regard to magnitude and lateral extent within the West Plume. The most recent characterization of 

TCE and 1,2,3-TCP concentrations prepared by the County were part of the Semiannual Groundwater 

Monitoring Report Summer and F all 20172. Exhibit 1 shows the County's delineation of the West and East 

Plumes with TCE concentrations greater than or equal to 5 µ,g1, and the West and East Plumes with 

1,2,3-TCP concentrations greater than 0.5 

TCE Plume. The West TCE Plume extends roughly 9,000 feet towards the southwest from its source 

area and then extends another 2,400 feet to the southeast towards the Prado Flood Control Basin 

where the plume terminates near well cluster CAMW16. The change in direction of the plume in this 

area may be associated with the location of the Central Avenue Fault, the "no-flow" boundary 

conditions of the Chino Hills, or historical pumping from former production wells. The width of the 

I Wildermuth Environmental Inc. (2017). Optimum Basin Management Program - 2016 State of the Basin Report. Prepared for 
the Chino Basin Watermaster. June 2017. 

2  Tetra Tech (2018) Semiannual Groundwater MonitotingReport Summer and Fall 2017. Chino Airport Groundwater 
Assessment, San Bernardino County, California. Prepared for County of San Bernardino Department of Architecture 
and Engineering. January 2018. 

Page I 1 

P99 



Semiannual Status Report 
Chino Airport Plume 

October 2018 

West TCE plumes ranges from 1,000 to 2,700 feet averaging 1,700 feet. The East TCE Plume has a 

significantly smaller footprint than the West Plume and extends approximately 1,650 feet in the south-

southeast direction from its source in the area of CAMW33, 34 and 35. 

1,2,3-TCP Plume. The West 1,2,3-TCP Plume extends roughly 10,500 feet towards the southwest and 

then extends another 3,300 feet to the southeast towards the Prado Flood Control Basin, following 

the same path as the West TCE Plume. The width of the West 1,2,3-TCP Plume ranges from 1,400 

to 5,400 feet and averages about 3,300 feet. The East 1,2,3-TCP Plume has a significantly smaller 

footprint than the West Plume and extends approximately 3,000 feet to the south. 

Regional Water Quality Control Board, Santa Ana Region (Regional Board) Regulatory 
Permits and Orders: 

• Cleanup and Abatement Order (CAO) No. 90-134 — Issued to the County to address the 

groundwater contamination originating from the Chino Airport. 

• CAO No. R8-2008-0064 — Required the County to define the lateral and vertical extent of the 

plume offsite and preparation of a remedial action plan (RAP). 

• CAO No. R8-2017-0011 — Required the County to respond to Regional Board comments on 

the draft Feasibility Study and submit of a final Feasibility Study. 

Regulatory and Investigation History: In 1990, the Regional Board issued CAO No. 90-134 to 

address groundwater contamination originating from the Chino Airport. From 1991 to 1992, ten 

inactive underground storage tanks and 310 containers of hazardous waste were removed, and 81 soil 

borings were drilled and sampled on the airport property. During 2003 to 2005, nine onsite monitoring 

wells were installed and used to collect groundwater quality samples. In 2007, the County conducted 

its first offsite groundwater characterization effort, which included 22 cone penetrometer tests (CPT) 

and direct push borings from which water quality samples were collected. In 2008, the Regional Board 

issued CAO No. R8-2008-0064 requiring the County to define the lateral and vertical extent of the 

plume and to prepare a remedial action plan. From 2009 to 2012, 33 offsite monitoring wells were 

installed at 15 locations to characterize the extent of the contamination downgradient from the airport 
property. 

From 2013 to 2014 the County conducted an extensive investigation of several areas identified for 

additional characterization of the soil and groundwater contamination associated with the Chino 

Airport. The investigative work included: piezocone-penetrometer tests; vertical-aquifer-profiling 

(VAP) borings with depth-discrete groundwater sampling; soil-gas probe sampling; high-resolution 

soil sampling and analysis; real-time data analysis; and three-dimensional contaminant distribution 

modeling. When investigative work was complete, 33 groundwater monitoring wells were installed in 

17 locations on and adjacent to the Airport property from September 2014 through February 2015. 

Page I 2 

in. -1 
IL J 

P100 



Semiannual Status Report 
Chino Airport Plume 

October 2018 

The County completed a Draft Feasibility Study' for the Chino Airport in August 2016. The Feasibility 

Study identifies remedial action objectives (RA0s) for contaminated groundwater originating from 

the Chino Airport and evaluates remediation alternatives for mitigation. On January 11, 2017, the 

Regional Board issued CAO R8-2017-0011 to the County, which supersedes CAO R8-2008-0064. The 

order requires that the County: (1) submit a Final Feasibility Study within 60 days of receiving the 

Regional Board's comments on the Draft Feasibility Study; (2) submit a Final Remedial Action Plan 

(RAP) within 60 days of the Regional Board approval of the Final Feasibility Study; (3) implement the 

RAP in accordance with a Regional Board-approved schedule; and (4) prepare and submit technical 

reports and work plans as the Regional Board deems necessary. The Regional Board submitted final 

comments on the Draft Feasibility Study via email on February 8, 2017.4  The County submitted 

responses to the Regional Board's comments along with a revised Draft Feasibility Study on March 

20, 2017.5  The Regional Board reviewed the revised Draft Feasibility Study and accepted the proposed 

changes and responses but submitted three additional comments on March 30, 2017.6  

The County submitted a Final Feasibility Study' for the Chino Airport in May 2017. The preferred 

remedial action identified in the Feasibility Study is a groundwater pump-and-treat system to provide 

hydraulic containment and treatment of both the West Plume and the East Plume. The Regional Board 

approved the Feasibility Study on June 7, 2017 and requested that a Remedial Action Plan (RAP) be 

prepared. The County submitted a Preliminag Draft Remedial Action Plan to the Regional Board on 

August 7, 2017. The Regional Board submitted comments on the Preliminary Draft RAP via email on 

October 17, 2017. The County submitted responses to the Regional Board's comments along with a 

revised Draft RAP on November 28, 2017. The Regional Board reviewed the revised Draft RAP and 

accepted the proposed changes and responses on December 14, 2017. The County submitted a Draft 

Interim Remedial Action Plan (IRAP)8  for public review and comment on December 18, 2017. In March 

2018, the Regional Board extended the public comment period until April 18, 2018. 

Remedial Actions: The preferred remedial action identified in the Final Feasibility Study and Draft 

IRAP is a groundwater pump-and-treat system consisting of ten extraction wells and an on-site 

granular activated carbon treatment system. The extraction wells are intended to produce 

approximately 900 gallons per minute (1,450 acre-feet per year) of groundwater. Included among the 

10 extraction wells is the CDA's well 1-18, which is no longer planned for use by the CDA. An air 

stripper may be added to the pump-and-treat system if deemed necessary. Once treated, the preferred 

3 Tetra Tech (2016) Draft Feasibility Study Chino Airport San Bernardino County, California. Prepared for the County 
of San Bernardino, Department of Architecture and Engineering. August 2016. 
4https://geotracker.waterboards.ca.gov/view  documents?global id=SL208634049&enforcement id=6316113  
5https://geotracker.waterboards.ca.gov/view  documents?global id=SL208634049&document id=5916631  
6  haps://geotracker.waterboards.ca.goviview documents?global id=SL208634049&enforcement id=6316116  

7 Tetra Tech (2017) Final Feasibility Study Chino Aiiport San Bernardino CounO, California. Prepared for the County of San 
Bernardino, Department of Architecture and Engineering. May 2017. 

8  Tetra Tech (2017). Draft Interbn Remedial Action Plan. Chino Airport, San Bernardino County, California. Prepared for 
County San Bernardino Department of Airports. December 2017. 

Page 3 

P101 



Semiannual Status Report 
Chino Airport Plume 

October 2018 

option is to discharge the treated groundwater to the CDA's Chino-I Desalter influent pipeline. If this 

discharge option is not available at the time the groundwater pump and treat system is completed, the 

alternative options are to discharge the treated groundwater to either the local surface-water channels 

or wastewater treatment plants, or to inject the treated groundwater back into the basin with six 

injection wells at the northeast corner of the Chino Airport. Currently, the County is in discussions 

with the CDA to discharge the treated water from the extraction system to the CDA's influent 

pipeline. The pump and treat system design and remedial action work plan is anticipated to be 

complete by spring 2019. Once constructed, operations are projected to begin in 2021. 

The Groundwater Well Installation and Aquifer Pumping Test Work Plan9  was submitted to the Regional 

Board in July 2017. The work plan provides the details for the construction of two sets of pumping 

well clusters and 12 piezometers to perform aquifer pumping tests. Extracted groundwater generated 

during the aquifer pumping tests will be treated using granular activated carbon to remove 

contaminants, held temporary on-site in 20,000-gallon tanks until profiled, and then discharged 

directly to the ground surface via agricultural irrigation on the Chino Airport property. The data 

obtained from the aquifer pumping tests will be used to support the design of the full-scale 

groundwater pump and treat system proposed in the final Feasibility Study. The work plan also 

includes the plan for the construction of ten additional monitoring wells at select locations along the 

plume boundaries. 

Monitoring and Reporting: The County conducts quarterly, annual, or biennial water-quality 

monitoring, and quarterly water-level monitoring, at the 75 monitoring wells constructed to date. The 

sampling frequency is determined by well classification, i.e. background wells, horizontal or vertical 

extent wells, remedial monitoring wells and guard wells. The purpose of the groundwater monitoring 

program is to collect data to track detections of VOCs in groundwater, monitor temporal trends of 

contaminants, and evaluate changes in each groundwater plume. All the data collected by the County 

is posted on the Regional Board's GeoTracker website'. Conclusions from the monitoring program 

can be found in the semi-annual reports posted on GeoTracker. The most recent monitoring report 

Semiannual Groundwater Monitoring Report Summer and Fall 201711  was submitted to the Regional Board in 
January 2018. 

Watermaster collects groundwater-quality samples from private wells in the plume area, and at its 

HCMP-4 monitoring well, located in the southern portion of the plume. The Chino Basin Desalter 

Authority (CDA) collects groundwater-quality samples from its production wells located in the plume 

area. Watermaster uses data from the County, CDA, and its own sampling to perform an independent 

9  Tetra Tech (2017). Groundwater Well Installation and Aqufer Pumping Test Work Plan. Prepared for the County of San 
Bernardino. July 2017. 
10 http://geotracker.-waterboards.ca.goy/proftle_report.asp?global_id=SL208634049  

11  Tetra Tech (2018). Semiannual Groundwater Monitoring Report Summer and Fall 2018. Prepared for County of San 
Bernardino. January 2018. 

Page I 4 

P102 



Semiannual Status Report 
Chino Airport Plume 

October 2018 

characterization of the areal extent and concentration of the TCE plume. The most recent 

characterization of the plume completed by Watermaster was in 2017 for the 2016 State of the Basin 

Report' and is shown in Exhibit 1. The plume color ramp represents the most recent characterization 

of TCE and was delineated based on the five-year maximum concentrations from July 2011 to June 

2016. 

Recent Activity: In February 2018, the County began the installation of extraction wells and 

piezometers pursuant to the Groundwater Well Installation and Aquifer Pump* Test Work Plan. Between 

March and June 2018 pumping well clusters PW-1(A/B) and PW-2(A/B/C) and four piezometer 

wells clusters, PZ1(A/B), PZ2(A/B), PZ3(A/B) and PZ4(A/B) were installed. PW-1(A/B) and 

piezometer wells clusters PZ1(A/B) and PZ2(A/B) were completed within the center of the East 

Plume. PW-2(A/B/C) and piezometer wells clusters PZ3(A/B) and PZ4(A/B) were completed in the 

center of the West Plume approximately 400 feet north of CDA well 1-2. Additionally, four monitoring 

well clusters (ten casings) were installed in March and April 2018. Exhibit 1 shows the locations of the 

new extraction wells, new piezometers, and new monitoring wells. Aquifer pumping tests at the 

extraction wells began in August 2018. 

In April 2018 the following CEQA documents for the proposed remedial strategy were published: 

Notice of Availabili0 / Notice of Intent to Adopt a Mitigated Negative Declaration Chino Ailport Groundwater 

Contamination Remedial Action Plan and the Initial Study Environmental Checklist F01772.13" The public review 

period for these documents ended on May 10, 2018. The County's response to comments is pending. 

The County submitted a Fame,- Agricultural Well Destruction Work Plan' to the Regional Board in July 

2018. The document detailed the procedures for destroying five abandoned/inactive agricultural wells 

located in the western portion of the airport property. As of September 21, 2018, three of the five 

wells had been destroyed, and destruction activities for the fourth well had begun. The fifth well is 

being considered for use in irrigating a sod far. A determination of whether to use the well or proceed 

with destruction is on hold until the County completes the calibration of the transient flow model in 

early 2019 and performs modeling of pumping scenarios to evaluate the impact of its use on the plume 

footprint. Upon completion of this evaluation the County will discuss the proposed plans for 

destruction of this well with the Regional Board. 

12 Wildermuth Environmental Inc. (2017). Optimum Basin Management Program - 201 6 State of the Basin Report. Prepared for 
the Chino Basin Watermaster. June 2017. 
13 https://geotracker.waterboards.ca.gov/esi/uploads/geo_report/7323769629/SL208634049.PDF  
14 https://geotracker.waterboards.ca.gov/esi/uploads/geo_report/5682043671/SL208634049.PDF  
15 Tetra Tech (2018). Former Agricultural Well Destruction Work Plan. Prepared for the County of San Bernardino. July 2018. 

Page I 5 

P103 



Semiannual Status Report 
Chino Airport Plume 

October 2018 

In August 2018, the County submitted a Human Health and Screening Ecological Risk Assessment' 

(HERRA) to the Regional Board. The HERRA was conducted to evaluate the potential human health 

and ecological risks from potential exposures to chemicals detected in soil, soil gas, and groundwater 

associated with the Chino Airport. 

16 Tetra Tech (2018). Final Human Health and S creeningEological Risk Assessment. Prepared for the County of San 
Bernardino. August 2018. 

Page I 6 

P104 



0.25 0 0.5 
Miles 

Monitoring 

Piezometer 

Production 

Chino Basin Desalter Authority 
Production Well 

2017 Model-Generated Groundwater 
Flow Direction (Model Layer 1) 

• 

Maximum ICE Concentration (pgi) 
July 2011 to June 2016 
(Delineated by Watermaster in the 2016 
State of the Basin Report) 

s 5 
>5 to s 10 
> 10 tos.20 
>20 to s 50 
> 50 to s 100 
> 100 to s 200 
> 200 to s 500 
> 500 

Extent of Plume as Delineated by the County 
in 2017 Winter and Spring Semiannual 
Monitoring Report 

TCE 5141 1,2,3-TCP a 0.5 ugl 

4 County Monitoring Wells 
Constructed from 2003-2015 

County Wells Constructed in 2018 

: Chino Airport Property Boundary 

Chino Airport Plume 

Exhibit 

Prepared by: 

El
....A  Author: SO 

Date: 10/2/2018 
Name: ChinoAir port 20181002 

CBWM Sem i-Annual Status Report 

riEsrti 
1'12,317CRPILirife, 

.21 

IPW,1714113' 

CAM1At3-3,  • - 
• ,CAMW 34

CAMW 
. 

PLIA/E3 
PZ2A/B' 

EastTCE Plume 

ill20 

••••••••Nolefv3...4::-- 
• 

i,dg1111/1?66 

CAMW64 

CAMW65 

" 
$Ctil Es,ni,o,ior..alpi4150),,,6.0VEL:A; 'E---2001ii$1.0.r!QVA08phis,,'ONE,S1/,'AirbuS 

USD.A„IIISIG.S;L,,4xero'.G94111I,11'0141,,'anclOe;GliS111.ser.Corm rirIu til ity/ _ 



THIS PAGE 

HAS 

INTENTIONALLY 

BEEN LEFT 

BLANK 

F R PAGINATION 



Semiannual Status Report 
South Archibald Plume 

October 2018 

Contaminant: The primary contaminant is trichloroethene (TCE). The maximum contaminant level 

(MCL) for TCE is 5 micrograms per liter (4g1). The maximum TCE concentration detected in a 

groundwater sample collected from wells within the plume during the last five years (2013 to 2018) is 

90 sgl. Other contaminants of concern include: acetone, cis-1,2-dichloroethene, chloroform, and 

bromodichloromethane. 

Location: The South Archibald TCE plume is in the southern Chino Basin within the City of Ontario. 

As delineated by the Chino Basin Watermaster (Watermaster) in 2017 for the 2016 State of the Basin 
Report', the extent of the plume with detectable TCE concentrations is about 11,000 feet wide and 

22,400 feet long, extending from State Route 60 on the north to Bellegrave Ave. to the south, between 

Haven and Turner Avenues on the east, and Grove Avenue on the west. The spatial extent of the 

TCE contamination was delineated based on the five-year maximum concentration measured over the 

period of July 2011 to June 2016. In December 2017, the Cities of Ontario and Upland delineated the 

extent of the plume with TCE concentrations greater than or equal to 0.5 jigl based on sampling 

events that occurred between September and November 2017. Both plume delineations are shown in 
Exhibit 1. 

Regional Water Quality Control Board, Santa Ana Region (Regional Board) Regulatory 
Orders: 

• 2005 Draft Cleanup and Abatement Orders (CAOs)— Six CAOs were issued, one each to the 
following parties: the Aerojet-General Corporation, The Boeing Company, Northrop 
Grumman Corporation, Lockheed Martin Corporation, General Electric Corporation and the 
United States Department of Defense. 

• 2012 Draft CAO — This CAO was issued jointly to City of Ontario, City of Upland, and Inland 
Empire Utilities Agency (IEUA) 

• Stipulated Settlement and CAO No. R8-2016-00162.  - Final CAO issued to all parties previously 
issued draft CAOs in 2005 and 2012, excluding Northrop Grumman. 

Regulatory and Monitoring History: In the mid-1980s, the Metropolitan Water District of 

Southern California determined that TCE was present in private wells in the southern Chino Basin as 

part of its work associated with the Chino Basin Storage Program. The Regional Board confirmed this 
with subsequent rounds of sampling. 

The Regional Board issued Draft CAOs in 2005 for six different parties who were tenants on the 

Ontario Airport property. On a voluntary basis, four of the parties—Aerojet-General Corporation, 

I Wildermuth Environmental, Inc. (2017). Optimum Basin Management Program — 2016 State of the Basin Report. 
Prepared for the Chino Basin Watermaster. June 2017. 

2 California Regional Water Quality Control Board Santa Ana Region (2016). Stipulated Settlement and Cleanup and 
Abatement Order No. R8-2016-0016. City of Ontario, City of Upland and Inland Empire Utilities Agency, Aeroject 
Rocketdyne Inc., The Boeing Company, General Electric Company, Lockheed Martin Corporation and the United 
States of America, Former Ontario-Upland Sewage Treatment Plant (Regional Recycling Plant No. 1) City of Ontario. 

Page I 1 NOY 

P107 



Semiannual Status Report 
South Archibald Plume 

October 2018 

The Boeing Company, General Electric Company, and Lockheed Martin Corporation, collectively the 

ABGL parties, worked together, along with the U.S. Department of Defense, to investigate the source 

of the contamination. Part of the investigations included collecting water-quality samples from private 

wells and taps at residences, and the construction and sampling of four triple-nested monitoring wells. 

Alternative water systems were provided at private residences in the area where groundwater was 

contaminated with TCE. 

In 2008, Regional Board staff conducted research pertaining to the likely source of the TCE 

contamination and identified discharges of wastewater that may have contained TCE to the RP-1 

treatment plant and associated disposal areas to be a potential source. The Regional Board identified 

several industries, including some previously identified tenants of the Ontario Airport property, that 

likely used TCE solvents before and during the early-1970s, and discharged wastes to the Cities of 

Ontario and Upland sewage systems tributary to the RP-1 treatment plant and disposal areas. In 2012, 

an additional Draft CAO was issued by the Regional Board jointly to the City of Ontario, City of 

Upland, and the IEUA as the previous and current operators of the RIP-1 treatment plant and disposal 

area (collectively the RIP-1 parties). 

Under the Regional Board's oversight from 2007 to 2014, the ABGL parties and/or the RP-1 parties 

conducted sampling at private residential wells and taps approximately every two years in the region 

where groundwater is potentially contaminated with TCE. By 2014, all private wells and/or taps in 

the area of the plume had been sampled at least once since 2007. The report documenting this data 

was published in November 2014.3  Both the ABGL and RP-1 parties provided water tank systems 

where water is delivered from the City of Ontario's potable supply via truck deliveries, to residences 

in the area where well water contains TCE at or above 80 percent of the MCL for TCE (e.g. equal to 

or greater than 4 kg1). Residents who declined tank systems were provided bottled water service. 

In July 2015, the RP-1 parties completed a draft feasibility study report for the South Archibald plume 

(Feasibility Study)4. The Feasibility Study established clean-up objectives for both domestic water 

supply and plume remediation and evaluated alternatives to accomplish these objectives. In August 

2015, a draft remedial action plan (RAP) was concurrently prepared by the RP-1 parties' to present 

the preferred plume remediation and domestic water supply alternatives. A public review period 

followed along with two community meetings in September 2015 to educate the public about the 

plume, the Feasibility Study and the RAP, and to solicit comments on these reports. In November 

3 Erler & Kalinowski, Inc. (2014). Supplemental Data Report Trichloroethene Plume Central Chino Basin. Prepared for 
Aeroject Rocketdyne, Boeing, General Electric, and Lockheed Martin. November 19, 2014. 

4 Dudek (2015). Draft Feasibility Study Report South Archibald Plume, Ontario, California. Prepared for City of 
Ontario, City of Upland, and Inland Empire Utilities Agency. July 2015. 

5 Dudek (2015). Draft Remedial Action Plan South Archibald Plume, Ontario, California. Prepared for City of Ontario, 
City of Upland, and Inland Empire Utilities Agency. August 2015. 

Page I 2 Noir 

P108 



Semiannual Status Report 
South Archibald Plume 

October 2018 

2015, a revised Draft Feasibility Study% RAP', and responses to comments were completed to address 

input from the public, ABGL, and other parties. 

In September 2016, the Regional Board issued the Final Stipulated Settlement and CAO R8-2016-

0016 (Stipulated CAO) collectively to the RP-1 parties and the ABGL patties (excluding Northrop 

Grumman). The Stipulated CAO was adopted by all parties in November 2016, thus approving the 

preferred Plume Remediation and Domestic Water Supply alternatives identified in the RAP. The parties 

also reached a settlement agreement that aligns with the Final CAO and authorizes funding to initiate 

implementation of the plume remediation alternative. 

Remedial Action Plan: 

Plume Remediation. The plume remediation alternative identified in the Feasibility Study, RAP and Final 

CAO involves the use of existing and proposed Chino Basin Desalter Authority (CDA) wells and 

treatment facilities. The RP-1 parties and the CDA reached a Joint Facility Development Agreement' 

for implementation of a project designed to remediate the South Archibald plume. The proposed 

project includes the construction and operation of three new CDA wells (II-10, II-11, and 11-12) a 

dedicated pipeline to convey groundwater produced from these wells to the Desalter II treatment 

facility that removes TCE and other VOCs via air stripping. Existing CDA well I-11 would also be 

plumbed into the air-stripping treatment facility as part of the project. The CDA completed 

construction of Wells II-10 and II-11 in 2015 and the wells were equipped for operation in mid-2018. 

Both the dedicated raw water pipeline construction and the property acquisition for Well 11-12 are 

underway. The overall project is anticipated to be completed and operational by 2020. 

Domestic Water Supply. The domestic water supply alternative identified in the Feasibility Study and 

RAP is a hybrid between the installation of tank systems for some residences where water is delivered 

from the City of Ontario potable supply, and the installation of a pipeline to connect some residences 

to the City of Ontario potable water system. Pursuant to the Stipulated CAO, the Cities of Ontario 

and Upland have assumed the responsibility for implementing the domestic water supply alternative 

for those private residences affected by the TCE groundwater contamination (TCE greater than 4 pg1) 

who are currently receiving bottled water. In February 2017, the Cities of Ontario and Upland 

submitted a Domestic Water Supply Work Plan' to the Regional Board that outlined the approach to 

provide water tank systems or a connection to the City of Ontario's municipal water supply system 

6 Dudek (2015). Draft Feasibility Study Report South Archibald Plume, Ontario, California. Prepared for City of 
Ontario, City of Upland, and Inland Empire Utilities Agency. November 2015. 

7 Dudek (2015). Draft Remedial Action Plan South Archibald Plume, Ontario, California. Prepared for City of Ontario, 
City of Upland, and Inland Empire Utilities Agency. November 2015. 

8 Agreement dated June 22, 2015 
9 Dudek (2017). Domestic Water Supp/y Work Plan South Archibald Plume, Ontcnio, California. Prepared for the City of 
Ontario, City of Upland. February 2017. 

Page 3 

Ila" 

11IL A 
MI IMF 

P109 



Semiannual Status Report 
South Archibald Plume 

October 2018 

for affected residences currently receiving bottled water. The Regional Board approved' the work 

plan on March 3, 2017. At the time of the work plan approval, 32 residences were already using tanks 

systems that were previously installed and 21 residences were receiving bottled water. The work plan 

addressed providing new offers for alternative water supply remedies for the 21 residences that were 

receiving bottled water. The alternative water supply options included: installation of a tank system; 

connection to an existing City of Ontario water main; connection to a future City of Ontario water 

main; or remain on bottled water. In accordance with the schedule in the Stipulated CAO and the 

work plan, tank systems will be installed within six months of resident consent, connections to 

Ontario's existing municipal water system will be constructed within three months of resident consent, 

and construction and connection to a new water main will occur within 18 months of resident consent. 

Additionally, bottled water will be supplied to any newly affected residents immediately upon 

determining that TCE is present at concentrations greater than 41..tgl. 

Monitoring and Reporting: Pursuant to the Stipulated CAO, the Cities of Ontario and Upland are 

responsible for coordinating and conducting ongoing monitoring of the plume and submittal of an 

annual plume monitoring report to Regional Board by December 31 of each year. Pursuant to the 

November 2016 Stipulated CAO, a Private Water Supply Well S amplingWorkPlan" was submitted to the 
Regional Board in February 6, 2017 and approved on February 14, 2017.12  The purpose of the 
sampling is to track the plume extent, and potentially affected residences, to ensure that that an 

alternative water supply is provided to residences where TCE concentrations are greater than 4 

Pursuant to the February 2017 work plan, the first round of sampling occurred in February and March 
2017 and the results were reported in the Annual Groundwater Monitoring Row?' submitted to the 
Regional Board on May 15, 2017. 

In December 2017, the Cities of Ontario and Upland submitted results from the second round of 
sampling in the Annual Groundwater MonitoriqReport14  for monitoring conducted between September 

and November 2017. Forty-two samples were collected from 41 residential or agricultural locations 

located within and or downgradient of the historical footprint of the plume. Samples were collected 

10 Regional Board. Letter from Kurt Berchtold to the City of Ontario. Domestic Water Supply 1Vorkplan — South Archibald 
Tri chloroethylene Plume, Ontario, California. March 3, 2017. 
14Dudek (2017). Annual Groundwater Monitoring Report South Archibald TCE Plume Ontario, California. Prepared 
for the City of Ontario and City of Upland. May 2017. 
"EEC Environmental (2017). Workplan — Private Water Supply Well Sampling. Ontario California. Prepared for the 
City of Ontario. February 6, 2017. 
12 Regional Board. Letter from Kurt Berchtold to the City of Ontario. Private Water Supply S amplingWork Plan — Selected 
Private Groundwater Wells and Taps, Ontario, Califoiwia. February 14, 2017. 
13 Dudek (2017). Annual Groundwater Monitoring Report South Archibald TCE Plume Ontario, California. Prepared 
for the City of Ontario and City of Upland. May 2017. 
14 Dudek (2017). Annual Groundwater illonitorigReport. Prepared for the City of Ontario and City of Upland. December 
2017. 

Page I 4 
J 

Mgr 

P110 



Semiannual Status Report 
South Archibald Plume 

October 2018 

from an outside tap, an inside faucet, or from the supply well. The report also included 2017 water 

quality data obtained from CDA's routine quarterly sampling at wells 1-9, 1-10, I-11, II-10 and II-11. 

Additionally, Watermaster routinely collects groundwater samples at private wells in the plume area. 

Watermaster uses data obtained from their own monitoring efforts together with other sources of 

publicly available data to independently delineate the South Archibald TCE plume as part of the Chino 

Basin State of the Basin Reports that are prepared every two years. 

Recent Activity: The most recent monitoring event was conducted by the RP-1 Parties from 

September to November 2017. The next annual monitoring event is scheduled for Fall 2018. 

Domestic Water Supply. As of December 2017, 37 residences are supplied water by tank systems. Seven 

of these tanks are located at the western edge of the plume, where TCE concentrations have declined 

over time and are less than 80 percent of the MCL. Multiple residences remain on bottled water supply 

and the need for another offer of an alternative water supply for these residences will be evaluated 

following the next sampling event scheduled for Fall 2018. 

Plume Remediation. CDA and IEUA continue to negotiation property access for construction of well 

11-12 with the private land owner of the selected construction site. The property access agreement has 

taken longer than expected due to extenuating circumstances and has caused delays in the 

advancement of various project activities in the Stipulated CAO that are dependent on acquiring the 

well 11-12 site. These tasks include: design and construction of well 11-12; design and construction of 

the raw water pipeline to connect well 11-12 to the Desalter II treatment facility; and design and 

construction of the decarbonator modification. In June 2018, a request' to modify the project 

schedule was submitted to the Regional Board for these project tasks. The Regional Board approved 

the request in July 2018.16'17  

The construction of well 11-12 is expected to begin in 2019 and completed by mid-2020. The 

completion of the dedicated pipeline to convey groundwater from the three new wells and existing 

well I-11 is on hold until the land acquisition process for well 11-12 and its pipeline is complete. The 

overall project is anticipated to be operational by 2020. 

15 IEUA (2018). Letter from IEUA to the Regional Board - Project Deadline Extension Request— Stipulated Settlement and 
Cleanup and Abatement Order No. R8-2016-0016. June 21, 2018. 
16 Regional Board (2018). Letter from Hope Smythe to IEUA — Approval of Project Deadline Extension Request— Stipulated 
Settlement and Cleanup and Abatement Order (Stipulated CAO) No. R8-20016-0016. July 12, 2018 
17 Regional Board (2018). Letter from Hope Smythe to IEUA — Update to Project Deadline Extension — Stipulated Settlement 
and Cleanup and Abatement Order (Stipulated CAO) No. R8-20016-0016. July 17, 2018 

Page I 5 

T:a 

111111,  

P111 



117MOVW 

Maximum TCE Concentration (pgl) 
July 2011 to June 2016 
(Delineated by Watermaster in the 2016 
State of the Basin Report) 

> 0 to s 5 
>5to 5.10 
> 10 to s 20 
> 20 to s 50 
> 50 to s 100 

OritatiolInterriation'al Atr,p9ett 
/ • 1 

,64 H-t 4 .1-ft 
, 

./ • / / 

• E  r
, 
 *VC 

• _ 

161-tl*Ait 

81.116 
Arc/ 

•v. . owirmio(6cfrmridur+malrawaffasffstra END sowirmamensios 
1  

Extent of the City of Ontario/Upland 
TCE Plume with Concentrations 
Greater than or Equal to .5 pgl 
(Delineated in the December 2017 
Annual Groundwater Monitoring 
Report) 

Chino Basin Desalter Authority 
Production Wells: 

Existing (Constructed Between 
1999 to 2012) 

MI New Wells to Comply with 
Stipulated Settlement and ,CAO 

2017 Model-Generated Groundwater 
Flow Direction (Model Layer 1) 

Streams & Flood Control 
Channels 

Flood Control & Conservation 
Basins 

e , oo 

117°400W 
Prepared by: 

South Archibald TCE Plume 0 0.5 1 2 
Miles 

Author: SO 
Date: 10/2/2018 
Name: SouthArchibald_20181002 

wEi 
V6:11.1.4 II t 

CBWM Semi-Annual Status Report Exhibit 



Annual Status Report 

GE Flatiron Plume 
October 2018 

Contaminants: The primary contaminant is trichloroethene (TCE). The maximum contaminant level 
(MCL) for TCE is 5 micrograms per liter (pg1). The maximum TCE concentration detected in 
groundwater samples collected from wells within the plume from July 2013 to June 2018 was 20,000 

(measured at well MW-22A in April 2018). Other contaminants of concern (COCs) include 
tetrachloroethylene (F CE), total chromium, hexavalent chromium, 1,1,1-trichloroethane and 
1,1,2-trichloroethane. 

Location: The General Electric (GE) Flatiron TCE plume is in the northern Chino Basin within the 
City of Ontario. It extends south-southwest from the historical footprint of the GE Flatiron Facility, 
which was located at 234 East Main Street. As delineated by the Chino Basin Watermaster 
(Watermaster) in the 2016 State of the Basin Report,' the extent of the plume with TCE concentrations 
greater than 5 pg1 measures approximately 3,150 feet wide and extends 9,000 feet south-southwest 
(hydraulically downgradient) from the Flatiron Facility. Exhibit 1 shows the location and extent of the 
TCE plume as delineated by Watermaster and by GE in 20162. Note that both delineations do not 
include data from newly installed well clusters MW-19A/B/C, MW-20A/B/C, MW-21, MW-22A/B, 
MW-23A/B, and MW-24A/B. Incorporation of this data for an updated delineation of the plume 
extent will be prepared by the Watermaster for the upcoming 2018 State of the Basin Report and will 
demonstrate the TCE plume extends downgradient of the 2016 delineations towards well cluster MW-
20A/B/C based on the data collected at the newly installed wells. 

Site History: GE manufactured clothes irons at the Flatiron Facility from the early 1900s to 1982. 
During World War II, the facility was also used to manufacture equipment to support the war effort 
for the U.S. War Department. GE closed the facility and sold the property in 1982; since then, 
ownership has changed several times. The property is currently owned by Oakfield Realty Partners, 
LLC and is part of an industrial park. 

Regional Water Quality Control Board, Santa Ana Region (Regional Board) Regulatory 
Permits and Orders: 

• Investigative Order No. 87-146 — Requiring characterization of on-site conditions and 
groundwater beneath and down-gradient of the GE Flatiron site using gas surveys, soil boring 
installation and sampling, and groundwater monitoring well installation and sampling. 

• Waste Discharge Requirements (WDRs) and Monitoring and Reporting Programs (M&RPs) 
Order No. 95-62 and R8-2011-0019 (current) — General WRDs and M&RPs for the discharge 
of treated water from the pump and treat system. 

Regulatory and Investigation History: In 1987, groundwater-quality samples collected from an 
inactive City of Ontario municipal production well downgradient of the site had TCE and chromium 
concentrations above drinking water standards, prompting the Regional Board to request that GE 

1  Wildermuth Environmental, Inc. (2017). Optimum Basin Management Program — 2016 State of the Basin Rood. Prepared for 
the Chino Basin Watermaster. June 2017. 

2 Amec Foster Wheeler (2016). 2016 Conceptual Site Model Former General Electric Company Housewares Site 234 East Main 
Street, Ontario, California. Prepared for General Electric Company. October 4, 2016. 

Page I 1 

P113 



Annual Status Report 

GE Flatiron Plume 
October 2018 

prepare a Phase I investigation to determine if the Flatiron Facility was the source of the contaminants 
detected. The results of the Phase I investigation prompted the Regional Board to issue Investigation 
Order No. 87-146, requiring GE and West End Investments (the property owner at the time) to 
characterize on-site conditions and the groundwater flow gradient beneath the Flatiron Facility. The 
Phase II through V',  4' 5' 6 investigations included soil gas surveys, soil boring installation and sampling, 
and groundwater monitoring well installation and sampling to define the extent of COCs in 
groundwater both on and offsite. These investigations conducted from 1987 to 1992, indicated that a 
contaminant plume was present beneath and downgradient of the Flatiron Facility and showed that 
concentrations of TCE and total chromium in groundwater were above the California primary MCLs 
of 5 and 50 kg1, respectively. 

The results from the multi-phase investigation prompted the proposal of an interim remedial measure 
(IRM) in 1993. The IRM was based on the conceptual site model in the Interim Measure-Prelimincny 

Design Report.' Local and regional numerical groundwater models were constructed to provide a basis 
for the design of the IRM and extraction well options for containment near the downgradient extent 
of the plume. Extraction well (EW-01) was installed in December of 1993, and one monitoring well 
and three piezometers were installed nearby to provide observation points during aquifer testing at 
EW-01. The IRM began in 1996 and included pumping groundwater from EW-01, treating for TCE 
and other contaminants, and discharging the treated groundwater to the Ely Basins for recharge. 

A Feasibility Study8  was completed in 1995 prior to the start of the IRM to evaluate groundwater and 
soil remediation alternatives. In October of 1997, the Regional Board approved a remediation 
alternative that included the ongoing use of extraction well EW-01 and the installation of an additional 
extraction well (EW-02) near the center of the contaminant plume to pump and treat contaminated 
groundwater. Extraction well EW-02 was constructed in 1999 and went online in 2002. 

The Regional Board issued WDR Order No. 95-62 in 1995 to regulate the discharge of treated water 
from the pump and treat system to Ely Basin. This order was replaced with WDR Order R8-2011-
00199  in 2011 to discharge the treated groundwater to the Chino Basin via injection wells. The 2011 

3 Bechtel Environmental, Inc. (1989). Phase II Soil and Groundwater Investigation, Former GE Flatiron .A4 anufacturing, Ontario, 
Califoiwia. January 1989. 
4 Bechtel Environmental, Inc. (1990). Phase III Investigation Report, Former GE Flatiron Manufacturing, Ontario, California. 
August 1990. 
5 Geomatrix Consultants, Inc., and Beak Consultants Ltd. (1992). Phase IV Investigation Report 234 East Main Street and 
Vicini Ontario, Califolwia. January 1992. 
6 Geomatrix Consultants, Inc., and Beak Consultants Ltd. (1993). Phase V Investigation Report 234 East Main Street and 
Vic-lid*, Ontario, California. January 1993. 
7 Geomatrix Consultants, Inc. and Beak Consultants Ltd. (1993). Interim Remedial Measure — Preliminag Design Report, 234 
East Main Street and Vicini0, Ontario, Califbrnia. October 5, 1993. 
8 Geomatrix Consultants, Inc. (1995). Feasibility Study Report, 234 East Main Street and Vicinio, Ontario, California. 
November 1995. 
9 Santa Ana Regional Water Quality Control Board. (2011). Issuance of Waste Dischaige Requirements for GeneralElectric 
Compag, GE Francis Water Treatment Plant, San Bernardino County, Order No. R8-2011-0019. April 22, 2011. 

Page I 2 

P114 



Annual Status Report 

GE Flatiron Plume 
October 2018 

WDR outlines the current discharge prohibitions, effluent limitations, and required monitoring and 
reporting program. 

In 2015, GE submitted a Work Plan' to the Regional Board to outline a program for evaluating the 
effectiveness of existing remedial measures and to provide recommendations for additional 
investigation or remediation. Implementation of the Work Plan began in 2016 with the installation of 
four borings to collect discrete-depth soil and groundwater samples that were tested for TCE, PCE, 
chromium, and hexavalent chromium. 

The Regional Board required the development of a Conceptual Site Model' in 2016 to incorporate 
the information from the recent investigations with all historical information to develop a framework 
to be used to identify data gaps and guide future decisions on investigation, monitoring, and remedial 
actions. One critical component of the Conceptual Site Model, as highlighted by the Regional Board, 
is the installation of a sentinel well downgradient of the plume. 

On June 22, 2016, a Work Plan' was submitted to the Regional Board, outlining the installation of a 
new-multi-depth well cluster (MW-19A/B/C), to further assess the dissolved-phase chromium and 
VOC concentrations in the downgradient direction. The first sampling event at well cluster 
MW-19A/B/C indicated that the TCE concentration in the shallow casing (MW-19A) was greater 
than the MCL. This finding prompted the Regional Board to request that an additional monitoring 
well cluster be constructed downgradient of MW-19 and upgradient of the City of Chino's municipal 
production well Chino-11 to allow for further evaluation of the plume extent. On November 14,2016, 
GE submitted the Work Plan' for the construction of well cluster MW-20A/B/C about 420 feet 
upgradient from Chino-11. Construction was completed in May 2017. The first sampling event at well 
cluster MW-20A/B/C in July 2017 indicted that TCE in the intermediate casing (MW-20B) was 
greater than the MCL. 

From May 2016 to March 2017, four additional monitoring well clusters (MW-21, MW-22A/B, MW-
23A/B and MW-24A/B) were constructed in the upgradient area of the plume as part of the 
supplemental remedial investigation activities. 

Remedial Action Plan: In 1996 GE began operation of a groundwater extraction and treatment 
system to contain and treat the contaminated groundwater. In 1996, GE began operating extraction 
well EW-1 at the leading edge of the contaminant plume to prevent further migration of the plume. 
In 2002, GE began operating extraction well EW-2 located in the center of the plume to prevent 
migration of the contaminants past the mid-point of the plume. Groundwater pumped from EW-1 

10 Amec Foster Wheeler (2015). Work Plan for Supplemental Remedial Investigation. 234 East Main Street and Vicinity, Ontario 
California. Prepared for General Elechic Company. March 30, 2015. 
11  Amec Foster Wheeler (2016). 2016 Conceptual Site Model Former General Electric Compaq), Housewares Site 234 East Main 
Street, Ontario, California. Prepared for Genera/ Electric Compag. October 4, 2016. 
12 Amec Forster Wheeler (2016). Work Plan for Installation of Cross-Gradient MonitoingWell Clusters. General Electric Compaqy 
Former F latiron Facilibi. Prepared for General Electric Company. August 15, 2016. 
13 Amec Forster Wheeler (2016). Work Plan for Installation ofAdditional Sentinel Monitoring Well Cluster. General Electric 
Compaq),  Former Flatiron Facilibl. Prepared for General Elechic Company. November 14, 2016. 

Page P 3 

P115 



Annual Status Report 

GE Flatiron Plume 
October 2018 

and EW-2 is conveyed by separate pipelines to the GE Flatiron Facility treatment system located at 
501 W. Francis Street. The groundwater is treated first with an ion exchange resin and then with liquid-
phase granular activated carbon to reduce chromium and VOC concentrations before being 
discharged. As detailed in WDR Order No. R8-20011-0019, discharged water from the treatment 
system is required to maintain average monthly concentrations of TCE, PCE, 1,1,1-trichloroethane, 
and chromium below their respective MCLs of 5, 5, 200 and 50 pgl. From 1996 to 2011, the treated 
groundwater was discharged via a pipeline to the Ely Basins flood control and groundwater recharge 
facility. In 2005, long term recharge plans by the Watermaster and Inland Empire Utilities Agency 
placed a priority on the use of the Ely Basins for recharge of storm water, recycled water and imported 
water. It was expected that the Ely Basins would be fully allocated to these sources of recharge waters 
in the future. In 2005, GE began evaluating alternative discharge options for the treated groundwater. 
A site was selected at 2025 South Bon View Avenue to install injection wells to accept the treated 
groundwater. Three injection wells (IW-01, IW-02, and IW-03) and conveyance pipelines were 
completed in July 2011 and began receiving treated waters from the treatment system. 

Exhibit 1 shows the locations of the extraction and injection wells. As of August 2018, approximately 
17,539 acre-feet of water has been treated at the treatment system.14  

Monitoring and Reporting: There are two interlinked monitoring and reporting programs for the 
GE Flatiron site: one for groundwater and one for the remediation system. The objectives of the 
respective programs are: 1) to monitor groundwater elevations and concentrations/extents of the 
dissolved-phase plume over time, and 2) track and evaluate the performance of the remediation 
system. The groundwater monitoring program includes measuring groundwater levels and collecting 
groundwater-quality samples for chemical analysis from site wells at a quarterly frequency. Currently, 
the depth to groundwater is measured in 31 wells and three piezometers every quarter. Groundwater-
quality samples are collected from between 21 and 34 monitoring wells and piezometers, dependent 
on the specific quarter's monitoring plan and analyzed primarily for dissolved metals and VOCs. 
Reports summarizing the results of the monitoring and remediation efforts are published semiannually 
in January and July each year. 

The remediation system monitoring program consists of operations and maintenance activities 
performed in conjunction with the entire system, and at a minimum, monthly sampling and analyses 
of the treatment plant influent and treated effluent pursuant to WDR Order No. R8-2011-0019. In 
addition to the semiannual summaries included in the groundwater monitoring reports, treatment 
system monitoring results are reported monthly to the Regional Board. Semiannual groundwater 
monitoring and remediation reports, monthly treatment system summary reports, and other relevant 
documents/data can be found on the Regional Board's GeoTracker website.' 

Recent Activity: The six new monitoring well clusters (13 wells) installed during 2016 and 2017 either 
onsite in the northern extent of the plume or downgradient of the plume (see Exhibit 1) were 

14 General Electric (2018). GE Flatiron Faci Treatment System Summaiy- August 2018. E-mail prepared for Santa Ana 
Regional Water Quality Control Board. August 30, 2018. 

15 https://geotracker.waterboards.ca.gov/profile_report?global_id=SL0607132486  

Page 4 a 

P 1 1 6 



Annual Status Report 

GE Flatiron Plume 
October 2018 

monitored quarterly for groundwater quality from January 2017 to April 2018. The monitoring results 
show that TCE was present at concentrations above the MCL in at least one well in all six well cluster 
locations The table below summarizes the highest TCE concentrations from January 2017 to April 
2018 for these wells: 

New Monitoring Wells with TCE concentrations Above the MCL of 5 lig/L 

Well Name Well Location Sample Date 
1/31/2018 

TCE (pg/L) 
4,200 MW-21 Northern Extent of Plume 

MW-22A Northern Extent of Plume 4/27/2018 20,000 
MW-22B Northern Extent of Plume 4/27/2018 15 
MW-23A Northern Extent of Plume 1/31/2018 12,000 
MW-23B Northern Extent of Plume 4/27/2018 75 
MW-24A Northern Extent of Plume 8/2/2017 15,000 
MW-19A Downgradient of Southern Extent of Plume 3/22/2017 8.7 
MW-20B Downgradient of Southern Extent of Plume 1/30/2018 36 

GE has not prepared an updated plume delination since their 2016 conceptual site model' to include 
analytical results from the new monitoring wells. Updated delinations of the TCE plume are expected 
to extend approximately 2,800 feet downgradient from the 2016 extent towards well cluster 
MW-20A/B/C. 

On June 21, 2018 GE submitted a work plan to the Regional Board for an expansion of the soil vapor 
extraction system currently being implemented at the site. 

The most recent groundwater monitoring report' was submitted to the Regional Board on July 24, 
2018. This report summarizes the groundwater monitoring and remediation activities performed 
between January 1 and June 30, 2018. The following describes the key findings presented in the 
document: 

• Groundwater elevations appear to be increasing in the vicinity of the site. 

• Except for wells MW-06 and MW-09, VOC and dissolved metals concentrations in samples 
collected from the site monitoring wells during the reporting period were consistent with 
historical data. 

• The highest TCE, PCE, total chromium and hexavalent chromium concentrations detected 

during the monitoring period were: 20,000 p_g/L (MW-22A), 970 p.g/L (MW-21), 1,490 

(MW-23A), and 1,600 kg/L (MW-23A), respectively. 

• The extraction wells have been generally effective at meeting the remedial action objectives. 

16 Amec Foster -Wheeler (2016). 2016 Conceptual Site Model Former Genera/Electric Covany Housewares Site 234 East Main 
Street, Ontario, Ca§fornia. Prepared for General Electric Company. October 4, 2016 

17 Wood Environment & Infrastructure Solutions, Inc. (2018). First Semiannual 2018 Groundwater Monitoring and 
Remediation Report. Prepared for General Electric Company. July 24, 2018. 

Page 5 

P117 



Annual Status Report 

GE Flatiron Plume 
October 2018 

• The injection well field has been effective in returning treated groundwater to the upper 
aquifer of the Chino Subbasin. 

• The results of compliance monitoring indicate the groundwater treatment system was in 
compliance with discharge limitations described in the WDRs. 

GE will continue monitoring at the Flatiron Facility pursuant to the Regional Board Clean-up Status 
of Open —Assessment & Interim Remedial Action. 

Page I 6 

P118 



,- 11W-22-:A/B -'MW72-1 --.' - 't 
'.;-1 , '. 

IVIN-nA/& 
.,';'.,r-  

'1V1VV-24A/Q 
.. 

411 — -el?). r ,••' 1:ri•-•-•,..re's  " • . 
I, 4""--  

_.:-- 1 --±i ;ca..: • ' • I.  r . , ,, - r 3E.- .3.  ...Ai 4 , 
04'S il.... 

.77.7a7"e!"-- • • 
- '.. ...I,. , . /* . . Ir. 

, • ' .,  ' . • • i - -- .- s,---; .  ...e,prs  , : • 
... i . •  ...".:. . . . 

; a • 
. 0 • :i•:; ' 'SS/Oil /0 d'.  • . . '",. 4 ., ' - • . I 

. 4' . '-4t ' - 1 VU 4 II II • I 1 

' I
S. 

II,' 1 - 

   

gurefirsli:,',P10361Q1b,ei0:0_agyl.,,M:OR1Argtlarearptliti_i'veNIESTAiMSi.v  
=1D%1LiliSDA, ,U.:1§VS7A.M.701-RIPiri,IG'Ki4FaiTh%6 'crOs1.`r 'Op nri.0 riVitY -  , 

Prepared by: 

      

LiWEI 
Wa_putmulli tiMiRom.tridALINE. 

     

     

 

Author: LG 
Date: 10/3/2018 
Name: 20181002_GEFlatPlumeStatus_Ex1 

0 0.125 0.25 0.5 
Miles 

 

Plume Status Report 

      

      

      

      

Maximum TCE Concentration (pgl) July 2011 
to June 2016 (Delineated by Watermaster in the 
2016 State of the Basin Report) 

5 

> 5 to 5. 10 
>10to 5_20 
> 20 to 50 
>50 to .5_ 100 
>100 to 200 
> 200 to 500 
> 500 

. Contours of TCE Concentration (pgl) 
▪ delineated by GE in 2016 

• Active/Inactive Potable Municipal 
Water Supply Wells 

GE Monitoring Wells (some locations have 
mutliple wells at various depths)* 

Constructed Between 2016 -2017 

Constructed Prior to 2016 

GE Piezometers 

▪ GE Extraction Wells 

GE Flatiron TCE Plume 

Exhibit 1 

L..._.! GE Flatiron Property Boundary 

2017 Model-Generated Groundwater 
-de"—  Flow Direction (Model Layer 1) 

.- "; \_:/••-- Streams & Flood Control Channels 

" Wells are labeled by well name it mentioned in the report 



THIS PA 

HAS 

INTEN ISNA L 

BEEN LEFT 

BLANK 

F RAI ATI 



Annual Status Report 

GE Test Cell Plume 
October 2018 

Contaminants: The primary contaminant is trichloroethene (TCE). The maximum contaminant 
level (MCL) for TCE is 5 micrograms per liter (µg1). The maximum TCE concentration detected 
in a groundwater sample collected from wells within the plume during the from the last five years 
Guly 2013 to June 2018) is 1,500 µg1 (measured at well OW-15pi in January 2018), which is the 
highest concentration of TCE ever measured at a well within the plume. Other contaminants of 
concern include: tetrachloroethene (PCE), 1,1-dichloroethene, 1,2-dichloroethane, and cis-1,2-
dichloroethene. 

Location: The General Electric (GE) Test Cell plume is in the northern Chino Basin within the 
City of Ontario. The plume is elongated in shape and extends downgradient in a southwest direction 
from the former GE Jet Engine Test Cell Facility (Test Cell Facility), located at 2264 Anion Street. 
The site is located approximately a mile northeast of the Ely recharge basins. The land uses overlying 
the plume are predominately industrial and commercial. As delineated by the Chino Basin 
Watermaster (Watermaster) in the 2016 State of the Basin Report,' the extent of the plume with TCE 

concentrations greater than or equal to 0.5 ugl measures approximately 2,300 feet wide and 9,800 
feet long. Exhibit 1 compares the location and extent of the plume as delineated by Watermaster, 
and by GE per their most recent characterization published in the second quarter of 20182. 

Site History: From 1956 to 2011, the Test Cell Facility was predominately used to test and 
maintain commercial and military aircraft engines. Solvents used at the facility included TCE, PCE, 
1,1,1- trichloroethane (1,1,1-TCA), methyl ethyl ketone, and isopropyl alcohol, which were stored 
in 55- gallon drums and an aboveground storage tank. In the early 1970s, TCE was replaced with 
the use of 1,1,1-TCA, which in 1981 was replaced with isopropyl alcohol—the only solvent used 
onsite until 1996. Prior to 1974, wastewater from manufacturing processes flowed into the natural 
wash along the north side of the facility until two dry wells were constructed on the northwest side 
of the former Test Cell Facility. From 1974 to 2011, wastewater from manufacturing was disposed 
of by discharging to the onsite dry wells. The Test Cell Facility ceased operation in 2011, and the 
site is currently vacant. 

Consent Order: State of California Department of Health Services (CDHS) Docket No. 88/89-
009C0. Consent Order Health and Safety Code Section 25355.5(a)(1)(13) and 25355.5 (a)(1)(C). 
the Matter of: General Electric Engine Maintenance Center. September 1998. 
Regulatory and Monitoring History: An investigation performed by C.H.J, Inc. soil engineers 
in 1984 detected TCE, PCE, dibromochloromethane, and 1,1,1-TCA in soil samples taken from 
the dry wells. Results from this investigation were deemed invalid due to inappropriate analytical 

I Wildermuth Environmental, Inc. (2017). Chino Basin Optimum Basin Management Program, 2016 State of the Basin Report. 
June 2017. 
2 Geosyntec Consultants (2018). Second Quarter 2018 Groundwater Monitoring Report. Prepared for GE Engine Services Test Cell 
FaciliO. July 31, 2018. 

Page I 1 

P121 



Annual Status Report 

GE Test Cell Plume 
October 2018 

methods.' In 1985, another consulting firm retained by GE detected 1,1,1-trichloroethane, TCE, 
and PCE in subsurface soils onsite.4  An investigation performed in 1987 revealed the presence of 
volatile organic compounds (VOCs) in the soil near the disposal sites.' In 1988, the Consent Order 
was signed between GE and the CDHS to initiate the investigation of soil, surface water, and 
groundwater contamination, and the appropriate remedial actions. The Santa Ana Regional Water 
Quality Control Board (Regional Board) oversees the groundwater investigation and remediation 
efforts. 

Pursuant to the Consent Order, GE began groundwater investigations in 1991 with the installation 
of onsite monitoring wells adjacent to the two dry wells used to discharge untreated wastewater. 
The monitoring performed at these wells indicated the presence of VOCs in the groundwater 
beneath the Test Cell Facility and that the contamination had possibly migrated offsite. The 
Regional Board requested an offsite investigation to determine the extent of the contamination. 
An extensive offsite investigation was completed in multiple phases from 1995 to 1998. The initial 
phase was completed in March 1995 and included the installation of three offsite monitoring wells. 
Moreover, in late 1995, five borings where drilled to determine the horizontal and vertical limits 
of VOCs in groundwater, and three of the five borings were completed as monitoring wells. 
Monitoring at these offsite monitoring wells indicated that the VOC plume extended about 4,000 
feet offsite. Between 1996 and 1998, seven additional monitoring wells and seven piezometers were 
constructed offsite. 

Following the initial groundwater investigation, two offsite multi-depth well clusters were installed 
between 2001 and 2002 to provide information on the vertical distribution of VOCs. Monitoring 
of these multi-depth wells indicated that TCE concentrations were highest in the intermediate and 
deep interval zones. In 2003, GE submitted a groundwater feasibility study to the Regional Board 
(Feasibility Study),6  followed by a draft remedial action plan (RAP)' in 2006. The Feasibility Study 
and RAP identified pump and treat and monitored natural attenuation as remediation alternatives. 

In 2009, additional multi-depth well clusters were installed at two locations offsite and one location 
onsite.8  And, pursuant to a 2014 work plan approved by the Regional Board, GE destroyed six 

3 Investigation described in State of California Department of Health Services. (1998). Docket No. 88/89-009C0. 
Consent Order Health and Safety Code Section 25355.5(a)(1)(B) mad 25355.5 (a)(1)(C). In the Matter of General 
Electric Engine Maintenance Center. September 1998. 
4 4 Ibid. 
5 Dames & Moore. (1987). Subsulface Investigation, Ontario Calfornia, for General Electri c Aviation Services Operations. February 
4, 1987. 
6 Geosyntec. 2003. Groundwater Feasibili* Study — GE Engines Test Cell Facili*, Ontario, Calffbiwia. December 3, 2003. 
7 Geosyntec. 2006. Draft Groundwater Remedial Action Plan, GE Engine Services Test CellFaci§0, 2264 Avion Place, Ontario, 
C4fornia. November 17, 2006. 
8 Geosyntec Consultants. (2009). MonitolingWell Installation Work Plan. GE Engines Services Test Cell Faci Prepared for 
GE Engine Services. July 2, 2009. 

Page I 2 mar 

P122 



Annual Status Report 

GE Test Cell Plume 
October 2018 

monitoring wells that were dry and replaced them with an additional onsite multi-depth well 
cluster. 

Remedial Action Plan: The 2003 Feasibility Study9  and 2006 draft RAP' identified two 
groundwater remediation alternatives: (1) extraction and treatment of groundwater for areas that 
have VOC concentrations approximately ten times the MCL and (2) monitored natural attenuation 
of groundwater for areas that have VOC concentrations less than ten times the MCL. Plans to 
implement a groundwater pump-and-treat system were put on hold after the draft RAP was 
submitted because the only suitable location for discharging the treated effluent was the nearby 
Ely recharge basins, and GE could not obtain capacity at the recharge basin from the San 
Bernardino Flood Control District. Monitored natural attenuation is the only remedial action that 
has been implemented.' 

From 2003 to about 2012, TCE concentrations in samples collected from monitoring wells across 
the extent of the plume generally decreased; this trend was attributed to natural attenuation. In 
2002, TCE concentrations above 50 ilglwere measured as far as about 4,000 feet downgradient of 
the facility. By 2008, groundwater with TCE concentrations above 50 p.g1 only extended about 
2,600 feet downgradient. GE met with the Regional Board in 2008 to discuss the status of the 
plume and to reevaluate the RAP to consider monitored natural attenuation (MNA) as the primary 
remedial action. Based on this discussion, GE agreed to install additional monitoring well clusters 
between the former GE facility and well cluster OW-16, located in the center of the plume. This 
well was selected because it had the highest historical offsite TCE concentrations in the 
intermediate and deep intervals. Pursuant to this agreement, two offsite well clusters (OW-17 and 
OW-18) and one onsite well cluster (MW-8) were installed in August and September 2009 as part 
of ongoing activities to evaluate MNA. The 2006 Draft RAP was withdrawn in in February 2010 
and evaluation of MNA continued. 

In November 2010, GE met with the Regional Board again to reevaluate MNA and as a result the 
Regional Board required that GE prepare a work plan to destroy and/or replace monitoring wells 
that had gone dry since their construction. GE submitted a work plan' for the destruction of five 
onsite wells and one offsite well and the construction of a well cluster onsite to replace the 

9 Geosyntec. (2003). Groundwater Feasibili0 Stitch,  — GE Engines Test Cell Facilio, Ontario, Calffbrnia. December 3, 2003. 
Geosyntec. (2006). Draft Groundwater Remedial Action Plan, GE Engine Services Test Cell FaciliO, 2264 Anion Place, Ontario, 

Ca§fornia. November 17, 2006. 
11  Phone Correspondence with Mr. Kamron Saremi at the Regional Board on December 14, 2017. 
12 Geosyntec Consultants. (2014). Monitoring Well Installation and Destruction Report Prepared for Regional Water Quali0 Control 
Board, Santa Ana Region. June 10, 2014. 

Page I 3 

P123 



Annual Status Report 

GE Test Cell Plume 
October 2018 

monitoring wells that had gone dry. The work plan was approved by the Regional Board in 2011 
and implemented in 2014. 

Monitoring and Reporting: The objectives of the monitoring program are to evaluate the extent 
and magnitude of the VOC plume emanating from the Test Cell Facility and to support the 
ongoing evaluation of MNA as a remedy. Groundwater monitoring is performed quarterly and 
consists of measuring groundwater levels and collecting groundwater samples at all accessible onsite 
and offsite monitoring wells and piezometers. This includes 13 single casing monitoring wells, 17 
multi-nested monitoring wells in six locations, and seven piezometers. Exhibit 1 shows the 
locations of all monitoring sites. Quarterly groundwater-quality samples are analyzed for VOCs, 
including TCE, PCE, chloroform, benzene, and others. Reports summarizing the results of the 
monitoring are published each quarter. All data that have been collected by GE since 2005 are 
posted on the Regional Board's GeoTracker website.13  Conclusions from the monitoring program 
can be found in the quarterly reports posted on GeoTracker. 

Recent Activity: During the second quarter of 2018, groundwater quality samples were collected 
at 31 monitoring wells, and groundwater-level measurements were obtained from 35 monitoring 
wells. The monitoring event was conducted in April 2018 and the report documenting the sampling 

14 

event and results was submitted to the Regional Board in July 2018 . The following summarizes 
some of the key results and conclusions contained in the second quarter report: 

• Variations in the IEUA's timing and volumes of recharge at the Ely Basins influence the 
local horizontal hydraulic gradient and groundwater flow direction, including the area that 
comprises the central portion of the plume that is directly north of the Ely Basins. However, 
in any given year, the general horizontal hydraulic gradients remain relatively constant 
despite long-term changes in groundwater levels and seasonal changes in recycled water 
recharge at the Ely Basins of up to five feet. 

• Over the last four years, significant increases in TCE concentrations have been observed 
in well OW-6 and well cluster OW-15, located near the center of the plume, north of the 
Ely Basins where large fluctuations of hydraulic gradient have also occurred. 

• There are increasing trends in TCE concentrations at monitoring wells OW-8, OW-9p and 
OW-17-S. These wells are primarily located in the central and northern portions of the 
plume and downgradient of the former Test Cell Facility. 

• The highest TCE concentration measured is at the intermediate interval of well cluster 
OW-15 located in the center of the plume. The TCE concentration at this well showed a 
increasing trend from the fourth quarter of 2013 to the second quarter of 2018, increasing 

13 http://geotracker.waterboards.ca.goy/proftle_report.asp?global_id=SL208634049  
14 Geosyntec Consultants. (2017). Third ,Quarter 2017 Groundwater MonitoringRepod. Prepared for GE Global Operations, 
Environment, Health and Safety. October 2017. 

Page I 4 

P124 



Annual Status Report 

GE Test Cell Plume 
October 2018 

from 14014 to 1,40011g1. The maximum peak concentration of 1,500 igl was observed in 
the first quarter of 2018. 

• Over the last year, increasing TCE concentrations have been observed at OW-14 and OW-
16i, also located in the center of the plume. 

• Over the past six years, TCE concentrations at the two monitoring wells just downgradient 
of the former Test Cell facility (OW-1 and OW-2) have gradually declined and are 
significantly lower than historical concentrations observed in these monitoring wells. 

• Approximately 71 percent of the wells that are being monitored have TCE concentrations 
above the MCL. 

GE will continue monitoring pursuant to the Regional Board Clean-up Status of Open — Vetification 
Monitoring. The third quarter 2018 monitoring event was performed in July 2018 and the monitoring 
report will be submitted to the Regional Board by GE in October 2018. -Upon review of the third 
quarter 2018 monitoring report, the Regional Board will schedule a time to meet with GE and 
evaluate if remediation actions other than MNA are required to address the increasing TCE 
concentrations found in wells at the center of the plume.' 

15 Phone Correspondence with Mr. Kamron Saremi at the Regional Board on August 27, 2018. 

 

Page 5 

 

WiL 

P125 



40- Single Casing 

Multi-Depth Cluster 

Maximum TCE Concentration (pgl) July 2011 
to June 2016 (Delineated by Watermaster in the 
2016 State of the Basin Report) 

5 5 

> 5 to 5 10 
>10 to 5_20 
> 20 to 5. 50 
>50 to 100 
>100 to 200 
> 200 to 5- 500 

Contours of TCE Concentration (pgl) 
delineated by Geosyntec Consultants 
in 2018 Quarter 2 Groundwater 
Monitoring Report 

Active/Inactive Potable Municipal 
Water Supply Wells 

General Electric Monitoring Wells* 

2017 Modeled Groundwater 
Flow Direction (Model Layer 1) 

GE Test Cell Property Boundary 

AP (J..- Streams & Flood Control Channels 

*Wells are labeled by well name if mentioned in the Report 

GE Test Cell TCE Plume 

Exhibit 1 

• , 
kau•; -*,' ,11 , • 
zia;  

c:tzsAir.e•- cittsq=1.* ; w dliaa • 
• 

1 0 0.5 0.25 
Miles 

Plume Status Report 

_a 
--12( ' 

I. 
- - 

, Ea iittii:5ta G'ecqrfp'p58,Ce,NE.,..4, r,b s, 
'a:6;a qd 

Author: SO 
Date: 10/3/2018 
Name: 20181002_GETestPlume_Status_Ex1 

Prepared by: 

• 

• 



Annual Status Report 

California Institution for Men Plume 
October 2018 

Contaminants: The primary contaminant is tetrachloroethene (PCE). The maximum contaminant 

level (MCL) for PCE is 5 micrograms per liter (g1). The highest concentration of PCE historically 

measured at a well within the plume is 1,990 kgl (MW-7 in 1998). Other contaminants of concern 
include the following volatile organic compounds (VOCs): ttichloroethene (TCE), 1,2-dichloroethene, 
bromodichloromethane, 1,1,1-trichloroethane, carbon tetrachloride, chloroform, and toluene. 

Location: The California Institution for Men (CIM) is a state correctional facility located in the City 
of Chino. The property occupies approximately 1,500 acres. CIM is located approximately 2.5 miles 
east of the City of Chino Hills and approximately seven miles north of Prado Dam. As delineated by 
the Chino Basin Watermaster Watermaster) in the 2016 State of the Basin Report: the extent of the 

plume with detectable PCE concentrations greater than 0.5 l_tgl is about 4,000 feet long and 3,000 feet 
wide, and it is located predominantly beneath the CIM property (Exhibit 1). 

Site History: Since 1939, the State of California Department of General Services (State) has operated 
the Chino Institution for Men (CIM), a correctional facility in the City of Chino. The property is 
bounded by Eucalyptus Avenue to the north, Euclid Avenue to the east, Kimball Avenue to the south, 
and Central Avenue to the west. The primary uses of the CIM property include agricultural operations, 
inmate housing, and correctional facilities. The Heman G. Stark Youth Correctional Facility occupies 
the eastern portion of the CIM property. CIM provides potable water to both the nearby Youth 
Correctional Facility and Chino Institution for Women as well as the CIM facilities. CIM operates 
multiple supply wells, a distribution system, and a water treatment plant. The land surrounding the 
CIM property was historically used for agriculture and dairy activities, but it has rapidly developed in 
recent years to residential and commercial uses. 

Regulatory Orders: 

• No regulatory Orders for site remediation and monitoring. The State conducted voluntary 
cleanup and monitoring under direction from Santa Ana Regional Water Quality Control 
Board (Regional Board). On December 17, 2009, the Regional Board determined "No Further 
Action" was required for remediation or monitoring. 

Regulatory and Monitoring History: In 1990, PCE was detected at a concentration of 26 .t.g1 at 
CIM drinking water supply Well 1. This prompted the California Department of Health Services 
(CDHS), now the California State Board Division of Drinking Water (DDW), to direct CIM to stop 
using the well as a source of drinking water. The detection of elevated PCE concentrations in two 
other CIM drinking water supply wells (1A and 11A) triggered the Regional Board to request an 
investigation of the source and extent of the onsite PCE contamination. 

Wildermuth Environmental, Inc. (2017). Chino Basin Optimum Basin Management Program, 2016 State of the Basin Row. 
Prepared for Chino Basin Watermaster. June 2017. 

Page I 1 

P127 



Annual Status Report 

California Institution for Men Plume 
October 2018 

The Phase I Initial Site Assessment' was performed at the CIM site in 1992 and included a review of 
CIM's history, operations, and chemical use. The investigation identified five potential sites where 
VOCs were used and could have impacted soil and groundwater. These areas included: the old laundry 
building, the furniture factory, the vocational shops, the state garage, and the powerhouse. 

The Phase II Site Assessment' was performed from 1992 to 1994 and included a soil vapor survey, 
soil sampling analysis, groundwater quality analysis, and vapor extraction testing. Seven groundwater 
monitoring wells were installed and sampled as part of this investigation. The results from the soil 
vapor investigation and the groundwater quality analysis showed low concentrations of contaminants 
throughout the site. The old laundry facility and nearby areas were identified as the most likely 
principal source of VOCs at CIM. 

An interim remedial measure, which included the extraction and treatment of groundwater from Well 
1, was implemented in 1997. In 2001, construction began on two CIM water supply wells and 
associated piping to prevent VOC-impacted groundwater at the southern end of the plume from 
migrating away from the site. 

Between August 1994 and May 2001, a network of approximately 43 monitoring wells at vaiying 
depths in the shallow, intermediate, and deep aquifer zones below the site were constructed. The wells 
were sampled intermittently through 2007 to analyze the extent and concentrations of VOCs in the 
groundwater beneath the CIM property. The VOC impacts to groundwater were limited to the source 
area and immediately downgradient and had not and were not expected to migrate off the property. 
A final monitoring event4  was conducted by the State during January 2007, which included 
groundwater quality sampling at 39 water supply and monitoring wells at the CIM property. Based on 
this monitoring event and data from previous monitoring efforts, it was concluded that PCE 
concentrations in groundwater beneath the site had substantially diminished. All samples collected 
from the potable water supply wells during this sampling event did not test above the MCL for PCE 

or any other VOCs. However, PCE concentrations above the MCL of 5 µg1 were present in three 

monitoring wells in the shallow aquifer zone, ranging from about 8 to 27 µgl. 

In February 2007, the State submitted a request to the Regional Board for a No Further Action (NFA) 
finding for groundwater remediation and monitoring at CIM. On December 17, 2009, the Regional 
Board issued a determination of NFA for the CIM site.' 

2 Geomatrix. (1992). Report of Phase I Investigation, VOCs in Soil and Groundwater, Department of Corrections California Institution 
for Men, Chino. April 20, 1992. 
3 Geomatrix. (1994). Phase IL4csessment of VOCs in Soil and Groundwatel; Ca§fomia Institution for Men Chino, California. 
Prepared for Department of General Services. October 4, 1994. 

4 Geomatrix. (2007). Janucuy 2007 Groundwater Monitoii ugPCE Remediation Project California Institution for Men Chino, 
Cabjbrnia. Prepared for Department of General Services Real Estate Services Division Project Management Branch. May 
17, 2007 
5 California Regional Water Quality Control Board, Santa Ana Region. Determination of No Further Action (NFA), 
Tetrachloroethylene Remediation Project, California Institution for Men, Chino. December 17, 2009. 

Page I 2 

MIL 
\1111,  

P128 



Annual Status Report 

California Institution for Men Plume 
October 2018 

Remedial Action: In July 1997, the State implemented remediation activities termed The PCE 
Remediation Projed, with an interim remedial measure where groundwater pumped from Well 1 was 
treated for VOCs using air stripping. Operation of the air stripper at Well 1 continued until 2004, 
when the permeability of the air stripper packing was compromised by the accumulation of mineral 
precipitates. The pump-and-treat process at Well 1 removed 57.9 pounds of PCE and TCE 
collectively. Groundwater production from Well 1 resumed without treatment in 2004 with approval 
from the CDHS and Regional Board. A supplemental remedial measure began in 2001 which included 
the construction of two new CIM water supply wells (Well 14 and Well 15), located in an area to 
intercept the toe of the VOC plume, promoting hydraulic control of the VOCs in groundwater 
beneath the CIM. Wells 14 and 15 operated without treatment, and from January 2003 to December 
2008, these two wells removed an additional 13.8 pounds of PCE and TCE collectively. 

Remediation requirements at CIM ended in December 2009 with the Regional Board's determination 
of NFA. CIM water supply Wells 1, 14, and 15 continue to be active production wells. 

Monitoring and Reporting Program: The State conducted voluntary monitoring at CIM pursuant 
to the Regional Board from 1992 to 2007 at 31 monitoring wells and 14 water supply wells. Voluntary 
monitoring ended in December 17, 2009 with the Regional Board's approval of the 2009 
determination of NFA. As part of the NFA the State was required to decommission monitoring wells 
located onsite in accordance with California Well Standards (-DwR Bulletin No. 74-81). It was agreed 
amongst the consultants, counsel, the State, and the Watermaster to preserve some of the CIM 
monitoring wells for the Watermaster's groundwater-level monitoring program pursuant to the 
Optimum Basin Management Program (0BM13). Watermaster and the State agreed to preserve the 
following 16 wells: 

B2B MW-215 MW-285 MW-345 
B4B MW-24I MW-28I P-235 
MW-20I MW-245 MW-31I P-23I 
MW-21I MW-22DR MW-335 P-23D 

Groundwater-quality monitoring of the CIM potable supply wells continues as part of its water supply 
operations under the DDW regulations. The State samples the potable supply wells monthly for PCE 
and TCE and reports to the DDW. Watermaster routinely collects all groundwater-quality data from 
the DDW's Water Quality Analyses Database' for the CIM potable supply wells as part of the OBMP 
groundwater-quality monitoring program and uses this data to characterize the areal extent and 
concentration of the PCE plume every two years. 

Recent Activity: There is no further regulatory activity associated with the CIM Cleanup Program 
Site since case closure pursuant to the December 17, 2009 determination of NFA. 

6 Geomatrix Consultants, Inc. (2005). PCE Remediation Project Rood. C4fornia Institution for Men. Prepared for C4foiwia 
Department of General Servi ces. July 2005 
7 https://www.waterboards.ca.goy/drinking_water/certlic/drinkingwater/EDTlibrary.shtml  

Page I 3 

P1 29 



Annual Status Report 

California Institution for Men Plume 
October 2018 

The most recent characterization of the plume was completed by Watermaster in the 2016 State of the 
Basin Report (Exhibit 1). Since case closure in 2009, the PCE plume has shown no significant change, 
based on available data. The following table summarizes the five-year maximum PCE concentration 
(October 2013 to June 2018) for wells within the plume based on monthly DDW sampling: 

Maximum Five-Year PCE Concentration in CIM Wells 
(October 2013 — June 2018) 

Well Maximum PCE (.tgl) 

1 15 

1A 3.4 

HA 1 

14 1.25 

15 8.5 

16 2.2 

Page j  4 Nor 

P130 



Maximum PCE Concentration (pgl) 
July 2011 to June 2016 
(Delineated by Watermaster in the 2016 
State of the Basin Report) 

5 

> 5 to 
> 10 to 20 

CIM Monitoring Wells Preserved for the 
Watermastor Groundwater-Level 
Monitoring Program (some locations 
have mutliple wells at various depths) 

C1M Potable Water Supply Wells" 

▪ Active as of Fiscal Year 2018 

• Inactive as of Fiscal Year 2018 

• Other Potable Municipal 
Water Supply Wells 

2017 Model-Generated Groundwater 
Flow Direction (Model Layer 1) 

CIM Property Boundary 

Streams & Flood Control Channels 

A Wells are labeled by Well name if mentioned in the report 

CIM PCE Plume 

Exhibit 1 

.111(.11M1.11.111•111.111" NM ME1111.11.111.1M I Inwillt MIMI= I I, 011111••• I NM ..A.M• 11.0.....• 1.• ran, I I now m vow 1.....;;iyme r 

• — 42- 

4 1- 
r • .1 

_ 
I p 4t,  

_ 
Spume: sri, DigitaIGIbbe, Geot , Ea4hSpr:93scigi,ap 

Itq, "A, UpGS,t AeroGR1D\ lGN1,d,theGP .Uter5.0-pfnrhill. 

Author: SO  
Date: 10/2/2015 0. 0 

11 
 Name: 20181002_CIM_PlurneStatus_Ex 1 

Plume Status Report 

0.25 0.5 
Miles 

Prepared by: 

IV 1)111,11 iiEN111.7,11LVAL,I., 

alIMO11.111,, 

1111141 



THIS PAGE 

HAS 

INTENTIONALLY 

BEEN LEFT 

BLANK 

FOR PAGINATION 



Status Report 
Former Kaiser Steel Mill Plume and CCG Ontario Monitoring and Remediation 

October 2018 

Contaminants of Concern: From 1983 to 1993 the primary contaminants of concern (COC) for the 

former Kaiser Steel Mill site were total dissolved solids (TDS) and total organic carbon (TOC). In 

2008, additional investigations commenced to identify other COCs. Currently, COCs associated with 

the site include: hexavalent chromium, carbon tetrachloride, and chloroform. TDS and TOC are no 

longer considered contaminants of concern. 

Location: The former Kaiser Steel Mill site is a 1,200-acre parcel in an unincorporated area of San 

Bernardino County between the Cities of Fontana and Ontario. The site is bounded by Whittram 

Avenue to the north, Interstate 10 to the south, and Etiwanda and Cherry Avenues to the west and 

east, respectively. The last delineation of the Kaiser TDS/TOC plume extent was completed in 2008 

by the Chino Basin Watermaster (Watermaster),1  and at that time, the plume was approximately 7,000 

feet wide and extended 18,500 feet southwest from the site. Exhibit 1 shows the location of the site 

and the extent of the TDS plume in 2008. No plume delineations for the other contaminants of 

concern have been prepared. 

Site History: The Kaiser Steel Corporation operated the Kaiser Steel Mill  from 1943 to 1983, and 
during peak production, the facility was the largest steel producer in the western United States. For 

the first 30 years, solid and liquid wastes produced from the manufacturing processes were disposed 

of in waste pits and unlined surface impoundments throughout the site, which allowed for evaporation 

and percolation. In the early 1970's, the surface impoundments were lined to eliminate percolation to 

groundwater. In 1987, the Kaiser Steel Corporation filed for bankruptcy and re-organized into Kaiser 

Resources Inc., which later became Kaiser Ventures Inc. 

After the Kaiser Steel Corporation ceased steel operations in 1983, portions of the property were 

divided and leased or sold to the following corporations: 

• Chemwest Industrial Inc., a chemical manufacturing company, leased land in the southwest 
portion of the property (East Slag Pile Area in Exhibit 1), but no longer operates on-site. 

• California Steel Industries (CSI) — Purchased 458 acres to continue operations as a steel rolling 
mill. 

• The Auto Club Speedway (formerly California Speedway) was constructed by the Penske 
Corporation on 500 acres in the northern corner of the site in 1995. 

• CCG Ontario, LLC (CCG),2  purchased 592 acres along the western and southern portions of 
the property in 2000 and inherited responsibility for remediation and monitoring of site 
contamination from Kaiser Ventures Inc. 

Regulatory Orders: 

• Regional Water Quality Control Board Santa Ana Region (Regional Board) Cleanup and 

1  Wildermuth Environmental, Inc. (2008) Chino Basin Management Zone 3 Monitoring Program Final Repoli. Prepared for 
Chino Basin Watermaster and Inland Empire Utilities Agency. December 2008. 
2 CCG Ontario is a subsidiary of Prolog-is a real-estate and supply chain logistics company. 

Page I 1 

P133 



Status Report 
Former Kaiser Steel Mill Plume and CCG Ontario Monitoring and Remediation 

October 2018 

Abatement Order (CAO) No. 87-121 — Required Kaiser Steel Corporation to initiate a Phase 
IV groundwater investigation and implement a remediation action alternative for groundwater 
contamination. 

• Regional Board CAO No. 91-40 — Required a feasibility study for a salt-offset remediation 
alternative for groundwater contamination. 

• California Department of Health Services (now Department of Toxic Substance Control 
-DTSC]) Consent Order with Kaiser Resources Inc. (August 1988) — Required Kaiser 
Resources Inc. to investigate any release of contamination to air, soil, surface water, and 
groundwater and ensure appropriate remedial measures were taken. 

• DTSC Imminent and Substantial Endangerment Determination Consent Order with CCG 
(August 2000) — Transferred responsibility of investigation and remedial activities associated 
with the 592 acres purchased by CCG and the Coal Tar Pits Parcel to CCG. 

Regulatory and Investigation History: In July 1983, a phased investigation of potential 

groundwater contamination, resulting from the disposal of high-salinity wastewater to unlined ponds 

during the early years of operation, was performed at the former Kaiser Steel Mill site. The Phase I 

and II studies' were completed in December 1983 and identified 28 waste sites and four likely 

point-sources that contributed to TDS and TOC contamination of groundwater beneath the facility. 

Groundwater samples were collected at existing on-site and off-site wells to determine the preliminary 

extent of groundwater contamination and to assess groundwater quality downgradient from the site. 

The Phase III investigation', completed in March 1986, resulted in the construction of monitoring 

wells at six additional locations (five single-point and a quadruple-nested. Based on the data three 

separate TDS plumes were identified: one on-site extending to a depth of 770 feet below ground 

surface (ft-bgs), and two that migrated off-site. Additionally, one TOC plume was identified on-site 

extending to a depth of approximately 100 (ft-bgs). The Phase III investigation determined that the 

TDS plumes were moving downgradient at a rate of 100 to 300 feet per year with the potential to 

impact downgradient municipal production wells. 

In 1987, the Regional Board issued CAO No. 87-1215  to the Kaiser Steel Corporation in response to 

the findings of the phased investigations, which required a Phase IV groundwater investigation to 

further characterize the plume extents and evaluate remediation strategies, such as groundwater 

extraction and treatment. 

On August 22, 1988 a Consent Order6  was signed between Kaiser Resources Inc. and the California 

Department of Health Services, Toxic Substances Division (later known as the DTSC) to assess the 

3  James M. Montgomery and Associates (1983). Final Report, Kaiser Steel C000ration Groundwater Evaluations. December 
1983. 
4  James M. Montgomery and Associates (1986). Kaiser Steel Coiporation Phase III Groundwater Investigation. Prepared for 
Kaiser Steel Corporation. March 1986. 
5 California Regional Water Quality Control Board (1987). Cleanup and Abatement Order No. 87-121 for Kaiser Steel 
Corporation Fontana, San Bernardino County. August 26, 1987. 
6 Department of Toxic Substances Control Docket No. HAS 87/88-032C0. Consent Order (Health and Safety code 
sections 205,25355.1(a)(1)) August 22, 1988. 

Page I 2 

P134 



Status Report 
Former Kaiser Steel Mill Plume and CCG Ontario Monitoring and Remediation 

October 2018 

extent of soil and groundwater contamination at the site and prescribe any necessary remedial actions. 

Two preliminary assessment and site inspection reports were published (August 1988 and _January 

1989) to identify areas of contamination that required further investigation. A Remedial Investigation 

and Feasibility Study of the identified areas was completed in 1990. The investigation concluded the 

following: 

• three areas of the former Kaiser Steel Mill site required remediation and further 
investigation—the tar pits, the by-products plant area, and the east slag pile, and 

• two areas required removal of contaminated materials—the cooling tower sludge pit and the 
furnace dust and mill scale piles. Remediation of the by-products plant area and cooling tower 
sludge pit began in 1995 prior to the construction of the Auto Club Speedway. 

In 1990, Kaiser Resources Inc. initiated plans for a 'salt-offset' as an alternative to groundwater 

extraction and treatment of the TDS and TOC plumes. In March 1991, the Regional Board rescinded 

CAO No. 87-121 and issued CAO No. 91-40, which allowed Kaiser Resources Inc. to complete a 

feasibility study for a salt-offset program. The Draft Phase IV Groundwater Remediation and 

Feasibility Study' was published in 1991 which analyzed a salt-offset alternative and nine other 

groundwater remediation alternatives. In 1993, CAO No. 91-40 was rescinded when Kaiser Resources 

Inc. and the Regional Board entered into a setdement agreement (known as the Salt Offset 

Agreement). Under the Agreement, Kaiser Resources Inc. would contribute financial resources and 

dedicate its Chino Basin water rights to support the construction and operation of the Chino Basin 

Desalters in exchange for release from any future liability for TDS and TOC contamination. Kaiser 

Resources Inc. made a one-time contribution of $1.5 million and 25,000 acre-feet of its water rights 

established under the Chino Basin Judgement. 

Between 1986 and 1994, an interim groundwater-quality monitoring program was implemented to 

further characterize the extent of the TDS and TOC groundwater contamination. The monitoring 

program consisted of sampling a network of 30 on-site and off-site monitoring and production wells, 

including newly constructed monitoring wells (KOSF-1 and MP-2). The maximum TDS and TOC 

concentrations detected in groundwater samples during this time were 1,600 milligrams per liter (mgl) 

and 70 mgl, respectively. 

In 2000, CCG purchased 592 acres of the former Kaiser Steel Mill site and entered into a Consent 

Order' with the DTSC that transferred responsibility for remediation of site related contamination 

from Kaiser Ventures Inc. (formerly Kaiser Resources) to CCG. The 2000 Consent Order also 

JIVIIVI (1989) RCRA Facility Assessment Report. Prepared for Kaiser Steel Resources Inc. January 1989. 
8  Mark J. Wildermuth (1991) Phase IV Groundwater Remediation Feasibility Draft Report. Prepared for Kaiser Steel 
Resources Inc. November 1991. 
9 Department of Toxic Substances Control Docket No. I&SE -CO 00/01-001 Imminent and Substantial Endangerment 
Determination and Consent Order (Health and Safety Code Sections 25355.5(a)(1)(B) and (C), 25358.3 (a), 58009 and 
58010.) August 10, 2000. 

Page I 3 

al A 
_ 

111411, 

P135 



Status Report 
Former Kaiser Steel Mill Plume and CCG Ontario Monitoring and Remediation 

October 2018 

required CCG to perform groundwater investigations and, if necessary, develop remediation 

alternatives for additional contaminates of concern, other than TDS and TOG. 

Remedial Action: As previously noted, remediation activities associated with the TDS and TOG 

plumes ended with the adoption of the 1993 Salt Offset Agreement. The 2000 Consent Order between 

the DTSC and CCG divided the site into four 'Operable Units' (OU's) (see Exhibit 1 for OU 

boundaries) and required continued remediation of each OU. The following describes the Remedial 

Action Plans (RAP) implemented for each OU: 

• OU-1 - Tar Pits. DTSC approved the final amended RAP in 2000 which prescribed the 
construction of a cap over the tar pits parcel. 

• OU-2 — Auto Club Speedway/By-Products Area. DTSC approved the final RAP on May 
2, 1995, which prescribed material removal and the construction of a 12.84-acre cap over the 
contaminated soil. Prior to the construction of the cap 9,212 tons of sludge waste were 
excavated and treated via chemical fixation and 21,200 tons were removed completely from 
the site10 . 

• OU-3 — East Slag Pile Landfill Area. DTSC approved the final RAP on October 31, 2007, 
which documented the construction of a four-foot thick monolithic soil cover, landfill gas 
collection and control system/monitoring probes, surface water drainage system, groundwater 
monitoring, and long-term operation and maintenance. 

• OU-4 — Chemwest Upper Ponds/Consolidated Waste Cell/Aboveground Storage 
Tanks/Chrome Ponds and Adjacent Areas (CCAC). DTSC approved the final RAP on 
February 13, 2009, which prescribed the construction of a cap over the CCACH, groundwater 
monitoring, and long-term operation and maintenance. 

The above remedial activities specified for OU-1 through OU-4 have been implemented. Long-term 

monitoring and inspection reports for each OU are published on an annual or semi-annual basis to 

ensure the completed remedies are operating properly. 

In 2008, an additional operable unit (OU-5) (not a geographical area) was established to conceptually 

describe site-wide groundwater monitoring in accordance with a Groundwater Remedial Investigation Work 

Plan' (2008 Work Plan) published the same year. The 2008 Work Plan aimed to address data gaps in 

assessing groundwater contamination other than TDS and TOG, and to develop a long-term 

groundwater-quality monitoring program. The resulting Site-Wide Groundwater Monitoring Program 

was approved by DTSC on November 3, 2008 and commenced with the installation of 32 

groundwater monitoring wells at 24 locations over a five-month period in 2009. Eight quarterly 

groundwater sampling events were performed from 2009 to 2011. Data collected from the sampling 

10 Iris Environmental. (2014) Third Five-Year Review Rood Auto Club Speedway Operable Unit No. 2, By-Products Area Former 
Kaiser Steel Mill Farilify San Bernardino Couno, Ca4fornia. Prepared for CCG-Ontario IT  C. June 2014 
11  Shaw Environmental (2009). Final Remedial Action Plan OU -4. January 2009. 
12 Shaw Environmental Inc. (2008). Groundwater Remedial Investigation Voth Plan; Former Kaiser Steel Mill Prepared for CCG 
Ontario T ,T  C. October 2008 

Page I 4 

P136 



Status Report 
Former Kaiser Steel Mill Plume and CCG Ontario Monitoring and Remediation 

October 2018 

effort were used to perform a health risk assessment of off-site groundwater by comparing measured 

constituent concentrations with EPA regional screening levels (RSL's). Hexavalent chromium, carbon 

tetrachloride, and chloroform were detected at concentrations above the risk-based screening 

concentrations and were therefore determined to be site-wide constituents of concern that warranted 
continued monitoring. 

On September 1, 2016, CCG completed the Final Groundwater Remedial Investigation Report! easibili0 
Study  and Remedial Action Plan" (Final RI/FS/RAP) which included the results of the Site-Wide 

Groundwater Monitoring Program. The selected RAP for OU-5 was continued groundwater 

monitoring and was approved by the DTSC on September 13, 2016. The site-wide groundwater 

monitoring will include annual sampling of 20 monitoring wells (11 well sites), and annual reporting 
to the DTSC. 

Monitoring and Reporting: Current groundwater monitoring efforts are performed pursuant to the 

Operations and Maintenance plans for OU-2, OU-3, and OU-4. Initial groundwater monitoring for 

OU-5 ceased in 2011 following completion of the eight consecutive sampling events prescribed in the 

2008 Work Plan. Continued groundwater monitoring and reporting on an annual basis for OU-5 was 
proposed in the Sitewide Water Quali* Sampling and Analysis Plan included as Appendix M of the Final 
RI/FS/RAP but does not appear to have been implemented to date. 

Exhibit 1 shows the location of the 24 well sites currently and historically monitored for OU's 1 

through 5. The table below summarizes the number of wells, sampling frequency, and duration of 
sampling for each monitored OU. 

Operable Unit 

OU-2 
# of Wells 

5 
Sampling Frequency (Duration) 

Quarterly (1995-2015); Semi-Annual (2015-present) 

OU-3 9 Quarterly (2011-2015); Semi-Annual (2015-present) 

OU-4 11 Quarterly (2011-present) 

OU-5 (work plan) 34 Quarterly (2009-2011) 

OU-5 (final RAP) 20 Annually (pending) 

Groundwater monitoring reports for OU-2, OU-3, and OU-4 are published on a quarterly or semi-

annual basis. Site-Wide Five-Year Reports are prepared and submitted to the DTSC to determine if 

the implemented remedial actions remain protective of human health and the environment. 

13 Iris Environmental Inc. (2016). Final Groundwater Remedial Investigation Report/ Feasibility Study and Remedial Action Plan. 
Prepared for CCG Ontario, 1-  T  C. September 2016 

Page I 5 

P137 



Status Report 
Former Kaiser Steel Mill Plume and CCG Ontario Monitoring and Remediation 

October 2018 

Currently, Watermaster samples eleven monitoring wells annually at four down-gradient locations 

(Exhibit 1) for the Key Well Groundwater Quality Monitoring Program (KWGWQMP) and provides 

monitoring results to CCG upon request. 

Recent Activity: The most recent groundwater monitoring reports published for OU-2, OU-3, and 

OU-4 are summarized below: 

• OU-2 — The Second Semi-Annual 2017 Groundwater Monitoring Report for OU -214  was completed 
February 15, 2018 and describes results from sampling that occurred on August 16 and 21, 
2017. Nitrate (up to 44 mg]) and sulfate (up to 550 mgl) were detected at concentrations above 
their respective Maximum Contaminant Levels (MCLs) of 10 mgl and 250 mgl. Hexavalent 
chromium (up to 6.0 micrograms per liter [g1]), lead (up to 4.9 µg1), and arsenic (up to 1.5 
µg1) were detected at concentrations above their respective Public Health Goals (PHG) of 
0.02 µgl, 0.2 µgl, and 0.004 µgl. 

• OU-3 — The revised Second Semi-Annual 2017 Groundwater Monitoring Report for OU-315  was 
completed June 18, 2018 and describes results from sampling that occurred from August 16 
through 23, 2017. Hexavalent chromium was detected at concentrations up to 8.0 µg1 but did 
not exceed the MCL. 

• OU-4 — The revised Fourth Quarter 2017 GroundwaterMonitoringReportfor OU-41°  was completed 
June 15, 2018 and describes results from sampling that occurred from November 15 through 
21, 2017. Nitrate (up to 17 mgl), sulfate (up to 310 mgl), carbon tetrachloride (up to 1.4 µg1), 
total chromium (up to 73 µg1), and hexavalent chromium (up to 76 µg1) were detected at 
concentrations above their respective MCL's of 10 mgl, 250 mgl, 0.5 µgl, 50 µgl, and10 

A Site-Wide Five-Year eviewReportl8 was submitted to the DTSC on April 1, 2016. The report concluded 

that the remedial actions for all OUs are functioning as intended. The next Site-Wide Five-Year Report 

is scheduled to be published in 2021. 

Watermaster perfoimed their most recent annual sampling event at the eleven Kaiser and MZ3 

monitoring wells for the KWGWQMP during September 2018 (analytical results are pending). Over 

the last five years (2012-2017) data from these wells have shown MCL exceedances for the following 

constituents: nitrate as nitrogen, sulfate, arsenic, and hexavalent chromium', with maximum 

14 RIPS Iris Environmental (2018). Second Semi-Annual 2017 Ground2vater NionitoringRoort Operable Unit No. 2 By-Products Area 
(Auto Club Speedway). Prepared for CCG Ontario LLC. February 2018. 
15 RIPS Iris Environmental (2018). Groundwater Monitoring Rood Third ,Quarter 2017 Chen/west Upper Ponds/ Consolidated Waste 
Cell, Aboveground Storage Tanks, Chrome Ponds and Adjacent Areas (CCAC) and Second Semi-Annual 2017 East Slag-Pile T zindjIll 
Area (ESPLA). Prepared for CCG Ontario, 1.1  C. June 2018. 
16  RIPS Iris Environmental (2018). Groundwater Monitori ngReport Fourth ,Quarter 2017 Chemwest Upper Ponds/ Consolidated 
Waste Cell, Aboveground Storage Tanks, Chrome Ponds and Adjacent Areas (CCAC) and CCAC Annual Report. Prepared for CCG 
Ontario, T .1  C. June 2018. 
17  As of September 11, 2017 the MCL for hexavalent chromium that was established in 2014 is no longer in effect; the 
Superior Court of Sacramento County issued a judgement invalidating the MCL and ordering State Water Resources 
Control Board (State Board) to overturn the MCL. As of September 11, 2017 there is no MCL for hexavalent 
chromium but the State Board does plan on establishing a new MCL in the near future. 
18 RIPS Iris Environmental (2016). Final Site-Wide Five-Year Review Report. Prepared for CCG Ontario LLC. April 2016. 

Page I 6 

P138 



Status Report 
Former Kaiser Steel Mill Plume and CCG Ontario Monitoring and Remediation 

October 2018 

concentrations of 12 mgl (well MZ3-1/1), 270 mgl (well MP2-B), 18 µg1 (well MZ3-2/2), and 17 µg1 

(well MP2-A) respectively. Other constituents in exceedance of MCLs in at least one of the wells over 

the last five years include: chromium, 1,2,3-trichloropropane, trihalomethanes, perchlorate, 1,1-

dichloroethene, 1,2-dichloroethane, and trichloroethene (TCE). 

Page I 7 
miry 

P139 



Original Property Extent of 
Kaiser Steel Mill 

Property Extent Purchased by 
CCG Ontario From Kaiser 

Ventures Inc. in 2000 (592 acres) 

Operable Unit (OU) Boundaries 

OU-1 OU-3 

OU-2 
EllEL 

0,, U 

CCG Site Monitoring Wells (some locations have 
multiple wells at various depths) 

• OU-2 • OU-4 

o OU-3 OU-5 

OU-3 and OU-4 

Monitoring Wells Sampled Annually 
by Waterm aster for the KWGWMP 
(some locations have wells at various 
depths) 

Extent of the Kaiser TDS plume 
Li in 2008 as Delineated by Watermaster 

2017 Model-Generated 
Groundwater Flow Direction 
(Model Layer 1) 

, 
SoOrice, Ita1lGIQ eo hstar GSOtra 

AbraMIID EGN,i  and t e Ws;S liser 

Prepared by: 

Author: RT 
Date: 10/1/2018 
Name: 20180926_KaiserPlumeStatus 

0 0.25 0.5 1 

Former Kaiser Steel/ CCG Ontario 
Contaminant Site 

...— 

Plume Status Report Exhibit '1 l'..11.111M11111 LsAirzom.icha.,LINI. 



Annual Status Report 

Milliken Landfill Plume 
October 2018 

Contaminant: The primary contaminant is trichloroethene (TCE). The maximum contaminant level 

(MCL) for TCE is 5 micrograms per liter (kgl). The maximum TCE concentration detected in 
groundwater samples collected from wells within the plume area during the last five years (July 2013 

to June 2018) is 1611g1 (measured at well M-08B in October 2013). The highest concentration of TCE 
ever measured on site is 178 igl (measured at well M-2B in April 1997). Other contaminants of 
concern include the following volatile organic compounds (VOCs): tetrachloroethene (PCE), 
dichlorodifluoromethane, trichlorofluoromethane, 1,1-dichloroethane, and cis-1,2-dichloroethene. 

Location: The Milliken Sanitary Landfill (MSL) is located in the City of Ontario along the northwest 
intersection of Milliken Avenue and Mission Boulevard. The MSL occupies an area of approximately 
196 acres about one mile west of Interstate 15 and 1.2 miles southeast of Ontario International 
Airport. The MSL is owned and managed by the County of San Bernardino Solid Waste Management 
Division (County). The MSL TCE plume extends downgradient in a southwestern direction from the 
MSL site. As delineated by the Chino Basin Watermaster Watermaster) in the 2016 State of the Basin 
Re_pon 1  the extent of the plume with detectable TCE concentrations greater than 0.5 jigl is about 2,500 
feet at its widest point and 1,500 feet long. Exhibit 1 compares the location and extent of the TCE 
plume delineated by Watemiaster (WEI, 2017) and by the County in its most recent (2015) delineation 
of the plume for total VOCs.' 

Site History: The MSL was operated as a Class III Municipal Solid Waste Management Unit accepting 
non-hazardous waste from 1958 to March 1999. Since its closure, the County maintains the MSL 
drainage and erosion control systems to ensure, to the greatest extent possible, that ponding, 
infiltration, inundation, erosion, slope failure, and washout are prevented during peak storm flows. 
The drainage control facilities consist of a network of earthen berms, benches, asphalt down drains 
and V-channels, concrete channels, reinforced concrete pipes, and sedimentation basins. 

As of 2017, the County leases a portion of the MSL property to PVN Milliken, LLC for a photovoltaic 
solar facility. The three-megawatt power generating solar facility consist of about 14.5 acres of solar 
panels located on the top and intermediate decks of the closed landfill. The footprint of the facility is 
shown on Exhibit 1. 

Regional Water Quality Control Board, Santa Ana Region (Regional Board) Regulatory 
Orders: 

• Waste Discharge Requirements (WDR) and Monitoring and Reporting Program (M&RP) 
Order No. 81-3 and subsequent WDRs and M&RPs Order Nos. 93-57, 94-17, 96-40, 98-89, 
and R8-2015-0040 (current). Requirements for the design, construction, and maintenance of 
run-on runoff drainage control systems at the landfill and the supportive monitoring and 

1  Wildermuth Environmental Inc. (2017). Chino Basin Optimum Basin Management Program, 2016 State of the Basin Report. 
Prepared for Chino Basin Watemaster. June 2017. 
2 Geo-Logic Associates. (2015). Coun0 of San Bernardino Workplan: Investigation of Off-Site Impacts to Groundwater at the 
Milli ken S anitag Landfill Prepared for County of San Bernardino Solid Waste Management Division. July 2015. 

Page I 1 

11111 

111P,  

P141 



Annual Status Report 

Milliken Landfill Plume 
October 2018 

reporting requirements. Orders Nos. 93-57, 94-17, 96-4, and 98-99 are combined WRDs and 
M&RPs for all landfills in the Santa Ana Region. 

• Cleanup and Abetment (CAO) Order No. 91-92. Required the MSL to correct drainage and 
erosion control deficiencies that existed on the landfill property. 

• Cease and Desist Order No. 96-41. Required the MSL to submit a workplan with a schedule 
for the design and construction of a permanent and effective drainage and erosion control 
system and implemention of said workplan. 

• WDRs R8-2002-0033, R8-2002-0085, R8-2013-0020 (current). General WDRs for the re-
injection/percolation of extracted and treated groundwater within the Santa Ana Region. 

Regulatory and Monitoring History: On February 26, 1981, the Regional Board adopted WDR 
No. 81-3 for the discharge of municipal solid wastes to land at the MSL. The WDR addressed the 
placement, monitoring, and reporting of waste at the landfill; however, it did not require groundwater 
monitoring. In 1987, groundwater monitoring began with the installation of five monitoring wells as 
part of the Solid Waste Assessment Test (SWAT) investigation3  at the MSL. Results from the initial 
monitoring indicated that there were multiple contaminants at concentrations significantly above 
background levels in the groundwater underlying and adjacent to the facility. The contaminants 
included multiple VOCs: dichlorodifluoromethan.e, 1,1-dichloroethene, PCE, and TCE. In 1989, the 
Regional Board requested that the County investigate the nature and extent of the VOC 
contamination. As a result, the County completed the Phase I Evaluation Monitoring Program 
(EMI-3)4'5  in 1994, which included the installation of ten additional monitoring wells; eight wells were 
installed downgradient from the facility, and two wells were installed upgradient. Elevated 
concentrations of TCE and PCE were detected in the new monitoring wells. 

On June 24, 1991, the Regional Board issued CAO No. 91-92 to the County and other landfill 
operators in the region. The order required the correction of the drainage and erosion control 
deficiencies on the landfill property that could potentially cause the discharge of pollutants to 
groundwater. In 1994, the CAO was rescinded when the landfills achieved compliance, and 
concurrently, Order No. 94-17 was adopted to amend the WRDs for all landfills in the Santa Ana 
Region and combine them under one WRD and M&RP. In 1996, the Regional Board issued Cease 
and Desist Order No. 96-416  for the MSL for failure to maintain the drainage and erosion control 
systems. In October 1999, the Regional Board approved the Final Closure and Post Closure Maintenance 

Plan' for the MSL. The MSL began its multiphase closure process while still accepting waste. Phase 
one, termed the "East Mound Closure," was completed in March 1997, and was a pilot project to aid 

3 IT Corporation. (1989). Final Report Solid Waste Assessment Test Milliken Sanitag Landfill, Project No. 240275. Prepared for 
County of San Bernardino Environmental Public Works Agency Solid Waste Management Department. June 1898. 
4 Converse Consultants Inland Empire. (1994). Groundwater Contamination Evaluation, Milliken Sanitag Landfill. 
5 Dames & Moore. (1995). Rood, Phase I of Workpla n Investigation of Groundwater Contamination Plume, Milliken S ani tag Landfill, 
Ontario Caqornia. Prepared for of San Bernardino Solid Waste Management Division. September 1995. 
6 Regional Board. (1996). Tentative Cease and Desist Order No. 9641 , for Violations of IFDRr (Order No. 81 -3, as Amended hy 
Order No. 93-57, Order No. 94-17, and Order No. 96-40) at the Milliken Sanitaty Landfill, San Bernardino County. April 5, 1996. 
7 Project Navigator, Ltd. (1999). Final Postclosure Maintenance Plan, Milliken Sanitag Landfill. Prepared for the County of 
San Bernardino, Solid Waste System Division. September 1999. 

Page J  2 

P142 



Annual Status Report 

Milliken Landfill Plume 
October 2018 

in the design of a soil cover for the rest of the landfill to prevent further contamination. Phase two, 
termed the "North and East Slope Closure," was completed in 1997 and included the construction of 
a six-foot thick monolithic cover over 45 acres of the landfill. The final phase of the landfill closure 
was completed in March of 2005 when the remaining 72 acres of the landfill were covered with a four-
foot monolithic cover. 

In response to the findings from the Phase I Evaluation Monitoring Program, 14 additional 
monitoring wells were constructed from 1994 to 1997 to further investigate the extent of 
contamination from the MSL. Under the direction of the Regional Board, the County completed a 
Phase II Evaluation Monitoring Program' and an Engineering Feasibility Study9  in 1998. Groundwater 
flow modelingl°  was also performed to support the selection of an appropriate remediation strategy. 
The Regional Board approved a remediation alternative that included (1) a pump and treat system for 
onsite contaminated groundwater and (2) monitored natural attenuation for offsite contaminated 
groundwater. Construction of the pump and treat system was completed on March 4, 1999 and 
consisted of 13 groundwater extraction wells located at the downgradient edge of the MSL site. Offsite 
monitoring for natural attenuation began at four offsite wells in 1998. 

Beginning in 2000, groundwater-levels declined monotonically in the vicinity of the MSL, and by 2007, 
the groundwater-level dropped below the total depths of all 13 of the onsite extraction wells and five 
of the offsite monitoring wells. In response, the Regional Board requested that the County complete 
an updated feasibility study to update the evaluation of the effectiveness of the remediation strategy 
and the extent of the contaminant plume. In March 2013, the County finalized the Updated Engin eeriq 
Feasibility Study'  for the MSL (2013 Feasibility Study). The 2013 Feasibility Study evaluated several 
potential alternative treatments to mitigate the plume. The County concluded that monitored natural 
attenuation was the appropriate remediation alternative. This revised remediation alternative was 
approved by the Regional Board on May 15, 2013. 

In 2015, the County submitted a work plan' to investigate the offsite impacts to groundwater near 
the landfill, which addressed the following requests from the Regional Board: collect gas samples to 
evaluate human health risks for commercial developments south of the landfill, update the 1998 
groundwater flow model to incorporate current data and the fact that the groundwater pump-and-
treat system is not in use, evaluate the need for additional corrective actions, and install additional 
downgradient monitoring wells. The County proposed (1) to model the plume using the computer 

8 Geo-Logic Associates. (1998). Phase II Evaluation Monitoring Report, Milliken Sanitary Landfill. Prepared for the County of 
San Bernardino, Solid Waste System Division. May 1998. 
9 Geo-Logic Associates. (1998). EngineeririgFeasibi NO Study, Milliken Sanitag Landfill. Prepared for the County of San 
Bernardino, Solid Waste System Division. May 1998. 
10 Geo-Logic Associates. (1999). Groundwater Flow Model, Milliken Sanitary Landfill. Prepared for the County of San 
Bernardino, Solid Waste System Division. February 1999. 
11  Geo-Logic Associates. (2013). U_pdated Engineerig Feasibilio Study for Corrective Action. Milliken Sanitag Landfill County of 
San Bernardino, California. Prepared for the County of San Bernardino, Solid Waste System Division. March 2013. 
12 Geo-Logic Associates. (2015). CounOi of San Bernardino Workplan: Investigation of Off-Site Impacts to Groundwater at the 
Milliken Sanitary Landfill. 

Page I 3 

P143 



Annual Status Report 

Milliken Landfill Plume 
October 2018 

software BIOCHLOR' and (2) to increase the frequency of soil-gas monitoring from quarterly to 
four times per quarter to evaluate the feasibility of expanding the landfill gas collection system and 
converting the dry groundwater extraction wells to soil-vapor-extraction wells. 

The County and PVN Milliken, LLC. submitted a revised Final Postclosure Maintenance Plan' in 
November 2016 and a land use plan' in December 2016 to modify the MSL's end use plan to include 
the solar plant on the landfill surface. The Regional Board approved the plans in January 2017.16  The 
revised post-closure maintenance plan provides a basis for plan inspection, maintenance, and 
monitoring of the MSL during the post closure maintenance period. The revised land use plan 
describes PVN Milliken's modification to the landfill, and its responsibility to maintain and monitor 
the land in a way that does not impact water quality. 

Remedial Action Plan: As previously noted, the original remedial action plan that consisted of pump 
and treat and monitored natural attenuation had to be revised due to declining water levels. All 13 
onsite extraction wells and five of the eight offsite monitoring wells dried up as groundwater elevations 
declined below well depths. This also caused the pump and treat system to halt operations beginning 
in 2007. The 2013 Feasibility Study identified monitored natural attenuation as the preferred remedial 
alternative and included certain 'trigger points' that would require additional mitigation measures to 
be initiated. Action is triggered: 

1) when the total VOC concentration' in samples from downgradient monitoring well M-8B 
exceeds the 1998 model-predicted VOC concentrations for two consecutive quarters, or 

2) when a "statistically significant" increasing VOC concentration trend is identified over a 
one-year period after the landfill gas improvements have been implemented. 

The trigger points were approved by the Regional Board in 2013.18  If additional remedial action is 
deemed necessary based on these trigger points, the most appropriate and cost-effective remediation 
measure will be evaluated at the time. 

The 2013 Feasibility Study specified that if VOC concentrations increase to one-half of the 1998 
model-predicted VOC concentrations in wells at the center of the plume, an additional off-site 

13 Fate-and-transport natural attenuation modeling developed by the United States Environmental Protection Agency 
14 Project Navigator, Ltd. (2016). Final Postclosure Maintenance Plan Milliken S anitazy Landfill 36-AA-0054 Ontario, California. 
Prepared for the County of San Bernardino Department of Public Works — Solid Waste Management Division. on 
behalf of PVN Milliken, LLC. September 10, 1999. Revised June 2004. Revised 2014. Revised November 2016. 
15 Project Navigator, Ltd. (2016). Land Use Plan for the Mila ken S anitag Landfill 36-AA-0054 Ontario, California, County of 
San Bernardino. Prepared on behalf of PVN Milliken, LLC for the County of San Bernardino Department of Public 
Works — Solid Waste Management Division. December 2016. 
16 Santa Ana Regional Water Quality Control Board (2017). Approval of the Revised Final Post Closure Maintenance Plan and 
Land Use Plan for Milli ken Landfill, Ontario, San Bernardino Colin*. January 19, 2017. 
17 Total VOC load equals the sum of all detected VOC concentrations in a given sample [ 
18 Santa Ana Regional Water Quality Control Board. (2013). Identification of Triggers for Additional CozTective Action System for 
the Milliken Landfill, San Bernardino County. Letter dated May 15, 2013. 

Page I 4 NMI 

P144 



Annual Status Report 

Milliken Landfill Plume 
October 2018 

monitoring well would be necessary near well M-19 to monitor the attenuation of the plume in the 
lower aquifer as it moves away from the site. 

Monitoring and Reporting: The County conducts groundwater, surface water, and soil monitoring 
at the MSL pursuant to a Corrective Action Program to address impacts to groundwater. The 
monitoring program consists of 26 groundwater monitoring wells, two piezometers, five soil-pore gas 
monitoring probes, three surface water monitoring stations, and one landfill gas condensate station. 
All monitoring wells that are not dry are sampled quarterly for groundwater quality and measured for 
groundwater levels. Surface-water quality sampling at three stations is conducted semi-annually in the 
first and third quarters. Soil-gas screening is performed quarterly, and landfill gas condensate sampling 
is conducted annually in the fourth quarter. 

The groundwater data collected during the quarterly sampling events is statistically analyzed to identify 
increasing or decreasing trends of VOCs and other constituents of concern. 

The quarterly groundwater monitoring data are also used to assess natural attenuation of the off-site 
extent of the plume. Monitoring well M-8B was used to calibrate the model and to determine the 
trigger point concentrations that would necessitate further corrective actions. Exhibit 1 shows the 
location of well M-8B. The model-predicted VOC concentrations over time are shown in the 
following table: 

Tri . . er Points for Additional Corrective Action Measures (ugL) 

Total VOC 
Year Year 

Load at M-8B* 

Total VOC 
Total VOC 

Load at M- Year 
Load at M-8B* 

8B* 

2013 120 2027 123 2041 50 

2014 123 2028 117 2042 45 

2015 125 2029 112 2043 40 

2016 128 2030 106 2044 35 

2017 130 2031 101 2045 30 

2018 130 2032 96 2046 25 

2019 129 2033 90 2047 20 

2020 128 2034 85 2048 18 

2021 127 2035 80 2049 16 

2022 126 2036 75 2050 14 

2023 125 2037 70 2051 13 

2024 124 2038 65 2052 12 

2025 124 2039 60 2053 11 

2026 123 2040 55 2054 10 

*Total VOC load equals the sum of all detected VOC concentrations in a given sample [ugh]. 

Page I 5 

P145 



Annual Status Report 

Milliken Landfill Plume 
October 2018 

Recent Activity: 

The County's most recent monitoring event occurred in April 2018. The results of the monitoring 
event were reported in the second quarter of 2018 monitoring report submitted to the Regional Board 
in July 2018.19  During the 2018 second quarter sampling event groundwater-levels were measured at 
nine wells, and groundwater-quality samples were collected at eight wells. Fifteen monitoring wells, 
one piezometer, and all three surface water monitoring stations were dry. There was no methane 
detected in the soil-pore gas samples. The following summarizes the main results from the monitoring 
event: 

• The TCE concentrations in all active monitoring wells have remained below the MCL as of 
April 2018 with the exception of M-8B, which exceeded the MCL with a concentration of 9.9 
igi on April 10, 2018. 

• The total VOC concentration at well M-8B was 22 pgl, which is below the trigger threshold 
of 130 tgl. Thus, no additional correction action has been triggered. 

• There were no significant changes in groundwater chemistry beneath the MSL, compared to 
the previous monitoring event, but there were three higher than historical maximum 
concentrations: nitrate as nitrogen at M-7B (24 milligrams per liter [mg1]), nitrate as nitrogen 
at M-15B (5 mgl respectively), and chloroform at well M-12B (0.51 lig1). 

• No additional corrective actions have been triggered and monitoring for natural attenuation 
will continue under the existing approved protocols. 

On March 9, 2018, the County submitted the Evaluation of Off-Site Impacts to the Groundwater at the MSL' 
to the Regional Board pursuant to the 2015 workplan. The report included an update of the 1998 
groundwater-flow model to incorporate the non-operating groundwater pump-and-treat system and 
current monitoring data, and a summary of the soil-pore gas sampling at the dry extraction wells for 
the pump-and-treat system. Based on the results of the modeling and monitoring, the County 
proposes: 1) the installation of a new downgradient monitoring well (see Exhibit 1), and 2) a focused 
soil-gas investigation to determine whether soil gas mitigation is necessary. The Regional Board 
accepted the proposed actions on March 29, 2018.21  

19 Geo-Logic. (2018). County of San Bernardino Water Quali0 MonitolingRepod, Second oQuaiter 2018 MonitolingPeriod, Milliken 
S anitag Landfill Submitted by County of San Bernardino Solid Waste Management Division, July 2018. 
20 Geo-Logic. (2018). Evaluation of Off-Site Impacts to Groundwater at the Milliken Sanitag Landfill County of San Bernardino, 
California. Prepared for County of San Bernardino Solid Waste Management Division. March 2018. 

21 Regional Board (2018). Evaluation of Off-Site Impacts to Groundwater at the Migken Sanitary Landfill, San Bernardino County 
Global ID:L1000745 844. March 29, 2018. Letter from Keith Person on behalf of Cindy Li. 

Page I 6 

P146 



11111 L 
Z 

I I •••• r 

Milliken Sanitary Landfill 
Property Boundary 

Maximum ICE Concentration (ugh) 
July 2011 to June 2016 
(Delineated by Watermaster in the 
2016 State of the Basin Report) 

5- 
> 5 to 5 10 
>10 to 5 20 
> 20 to 5 50 

 Contours of Total 
: VOCs Concentrations (pg1) as 

delineated by the County in 2015 

County of San Bernardino Monitoring Wells 

Sampled in 2018* 

Dry in 2018* 

Proposed New Well Location 

Surface Water Monitoring Station (Dry) 

Extent of Solar Facility - Installed in 2017 

2017 Model-Generated Groundwater 
Ar---  Flow Direction (Model Layer 1) 

Wells are labeled by well name if mentioned in the report 

Milliken Sanitary Landfill TCE Plume 

Exhibit 1 

MP A. 
..4 

MEI 

• / 

— : 
ti:SourceVF.prk, DigitalGlolpe Gee Earths art  Geographies ; CNgSfAirttus 

USGS. AergiGI,31D, IGN. and the GISoUse.r‘Cpt-KnithitY 

Author: SO 
Date: 10/4/2018 
Name: 20181002_MillikenPlume_Status_Ex1 

0 0.125 0.25 0.5 
iiimim=imimmummo Miles 

Prepared by: 

\ViUiiopuqI  Plume Status Report 



THI AGE 

HAS 

INT NTI SNALLY 

EEN LEFT 

LANK 

FOR PAGINATION 



Annual Status Report 
Stringfellow Contaminant Plume 

October 2018 

Contaminants: The primary contaminants at the Stringfellow site are perchlorate, trichloroethene 

(TCE), and chloroform. The maximum contaminant level (MCL) for perchlorate and TCE are 6 

micrograms per liter (µg1), and 5 µgl, respectively. Chloroform does not have a MCL but is assessed 

to a cleanup level' of 6 µg1 for the Stringfellow site. The maximum concentrations detected in 

groundwater samples collected from site wells over the five-year period from July 2013 to June 2018 

for perchlorate, TCE, and chloroform and are shown in the table below. The data are reported in two 

general groups: 1) an aggregate of wells in Zones 1-3 (i.e. zones within Pyrite Canyon) and 2) wells 

within Zone 4 (i.e. downgradient of Pyrite Canyon). 

MCL or Cleanup Level 
Contaminant 

(pg1) 

Zones 1-3 

Maximum Concentration 
 2013-2018 

(µg1) 

Perchlorate 6 14,000 
TCE 5 330,000 

chloroform 6 11,000 
Zone 4 

Perchlorate 6 1,600 
TCE 5 22 

chloroform 6 21 

Other contaminates at the site include, other volatile organic compounds (VOCs), semi-volatile 

organic compounds (SO Cs), pesticides, para-chlorobenzenesulfonic acid, n-nitrosodirnethylamine, 

and selected heavy metals. Additionally, the groundwater under the former evaporation ponds has a 

pH of <4. 

Location: The former Stringfellow Landfill site is located within the eastern portion of the Chino 

Basin in Pyrite Canyon about one mile north of the community of Glen Avon in the Jurupa Valley. 

Pyrite Canyon overlies Holocene and Pleistocene unconsolidated alluvium and alluvial fan deposits, 

and bound by the granodiorite and metasedimentary units of the Jurupa Mountains.' The site is 

geographically divided into four groundwater zones in consideration of various operational and 
remediation activities. These zones include: 

• Zone 1. On-site/Upper Mid-Canyon Area. Includes the original 17-acre disposal facility in the 

northern most part of Pyrite Canyon upgradient of a clay barrier (Zone 1A) and an area 

extending 600 feet south of the clay barrier (Zone 1B). The clay barrier was constructed in 

1980 downgradient of the evaporation ponds to mitigate migration of subsurface liquids. 

I Cleanup levels were established for TCE (5 pg1  and equal to the MCL) and chloroform (6 pg1) in the Interim Records 
of Decision 4 by the United State Environmental Protection Agency 
2 Dibblee, T.W., and Minch, J.A. (2004). Geologic map of the Riverside West/ south 1 / 2 of Fontana quadrangles, San Bernardino and 
Riverside CounO, California: Dibblee Geological Foundation, Dibblee Foundation Map DF-128, scale 1:24,000 

Page I 1 

P149 



Annual Status Report 
Stringfellow Contaminant Plume 

October 2018 

• Zone 2. Mid-Canyon Area. Includes the middle portion of the Pyrite Canyon. Contains a line 

of extraction wells and the Pretreatment Plant 

• Zone 3. Lower Canyon Area. Extends southward from just south of the mid-canyon extraction 

wells to just north of Highway 60. Includes the Lower Canyon Treatment Facility 

• Zone 4. A Residential community and light industrial area in the City of Jurupa Valley, 

extending from Highway 60 to immediately north of the Santa Ana River (approximately 

22,000 to 24,500 feet southwest of the former disposal facility in Zone 1A). Includes the 

Community Well Head Treatment System 

The general extent of plumes originating from the Stringfellow site with detectable concentrations of 

perchlorate, TCE, and chloroform greater than their MCLs or cleanup levels are shown in Exhibit 1. 

These delineations are based on the 2016 Annual Groundwater Monitoring and Remedy Effictiveness 

Evaluation Report'. The TCE and chloroform plumes are significantly less extensive than the 

perchlorate plume and have the following approximate extents: 

• The perchlorate plume 2 6 pg1 extends from Zone 1 approximately 24,000 feet to the 

south/southwest to Zone 4. The perchlorate plume varies in width between approximately 

250 and 3,200 feet. Two smaller perchlorate plumes are also shown on Exhibit 1. The first is 

approximately 1,400 feet long and 200 feet wide and is located near the midpoint and slightly 

east of the main plume. The second is located slightly west of the distal end of the main plume 

and is approximately 3,900 feet long and 1,000 feet wide. 

• The TCE plume .2 5 j_tgl is approximately 3,100 feet long and 300 feet wide and extends from 

Zone 1 to the midpoint of Zone 3 near the Lower Canyon Treatment Facility. A smaller 

(approximately 1,000 feet by 250 feet) disconnected TCE plume is approximately 3,400 feet 

further downgradient in Zone 4. 

• The chloroform plume 2_ 6 j_igl is approximately 2,000 feet long and 300 feet wide and is 

primarily restricted to Zones 1 and 2. 

Site History: Stringfellow Quarry Company Inc. operated the site as a 'Class I hazardous waste 

disposal facility from 1956 to 1972 pursuant to the issuance of a land use variance by the Riverside 

County Planning Commission in 1952. During this time, approximately 34 million gallons of industrial 
liquid waste derived primarily from electroplating, metal finishing, pesticide production, and 

aerospace propulsion industries—were deposited in unlined evaporation ponds, occupying 17 acres 

Kleinfelder. (2017). 201 6 Annual Groundwater Monitoling and Remedy Effectiveness Evaluation Repoli Sttingcellow Sup eifund Site. 
Prepared for California Environmental Protection Ageng. November 2017. 

Page I 2 

P150 



Annual Status Report 
Stringfellow Contaminant Plume 

October 2018 

of the site' (located within Zone la on Exhibit 1). In addition to evaporation ponds, liquid wastes were 

sprayed into the air to expedite evaporative processes. 

In 1975, following cessation of operations at the Stringfellow site, the California Regional Water 

Quality Control Board, Santa Ana Region initiated response actions and site investigation studies. 

Since that time, over 45 phases of investigation, feasibility testing, and remedial actions have been 

performed by various entities at the site. A record of these activities and associated reports can be 

found on the Department of Toxic Substances Control (DTSC) Envirostor website 

(https:/ /www.envirostor.dtsc.ca..gov/public/). 

Key Regulatory Decisions and Orders: In October 1981, the Stringfellow site was placed on the 

United States Environmental Protection Agency (USEPA) Interim Priorities List of Hazardous Waste 

Sites. An Initial Record of Decision (ROD 1) was published by USEPA on July 22, 1983. On 

September 8, 1983, the Stringfellow site was placed on the USEPA's final National Priorities List 

(NPL) as a Superfund site. Three additional RODs were published in 1984, 1987, and 1990. The 

following is a summary of the four RODs and major remedial actions or objectives set forth therein. 

ROD 1 (USEPA 1983).5  The remedial activities assigned to the DTSC for oversight included: fencing 

of the site, erosion control, hauling and disposal of hazardous material, continued offsite groundwater 

mitigation, and completion of a Remedial Investigation/Feasibility Study (RIFS). In conjunction with 

the DTSC-led activities, the EPA assumed oversight of the following Superfund management 

activities: i) preliminary groundwater sampling, ii) installation of new monitoring wells, and iii) the 

creation of a Fast Track RIFS. 

ROD 2 (USEPA 1984).6  The remedial action implemented as part of ROD 2 included the construction 

of a groundwater pre-treatment plant. Construction of the Pre-Treatment Plant in the mid-canyon 

area (located within Zone 2 on Exhibit 1) began in January 1985 and was completed in November 

1985. The remedial action also required the evaluation of treatment technologies that are associated 

with the removal of heavy metals and organics in groundwater. 

ROD 3 (USEPA 1987).7  Two additional remedial actions were implemented as part of ROD 3. The 

first remedial action consisted of the construction of an up-gradient surface-water diversion north of 

the original contamination site (within Zone 1A on Exhibit 1). The second consisted of the 

construction of groundwater extraction wells to serve as a barrier to groundwater-flow and an 

4 U.S. Army Corps of Engineers. (2016). FO'h Five-Year Review Report for Shingeellow Supetflind Site Riverside CounO, 
Ca lfornia. September 2016 
5  United States Environmental Protection Agency. (1983). EPA Supeifund, Record of Decision: Stringeellow Acid Pits Site. 
USEPA ID: CAT08001 2826, QUO 1 , Mira Loma, California. July 22. 
6  United States Environmental Protection Agency (USEPA). (1984). Record of Decision, Stiinifellow Acid Pits, Summag of 
Remedial Alternative Selection. July 1984 

United States Environmental Protection Agency (USEPA). (1987). Record of Decision: Strinsfellow Acid Pits, Summag of 
Remedial Altenzative Selection (Earty IVlementation Action). June 1987 

Page I 3 

P151 



Annual Status Report 
Stringfellow Contaminant Plume 

October 2018 

accompanying treatment facility in the southern portion of the canyon, the Lower Canyon Treatment 

Facility (located within Zone 3 on Exhibit 1). 

ROD 4 (USEPA 1990).8  The fourth ROD delineated the site into four geographic zones: Zone 1 is the 

upper-canyon area, including the original 17-acre disposal area; Zone 2 is the mid-canyon area; Zone 3 

is the lower-canyon area; and Zone 4 is the community of Glen Avon (general area below the 60 

freeway). The remedial action consisted of the installation of a groundwater extraction and treatment 

system, the Community Wellhead Treatment Facility in Zone 4, and the dewatering of Zone 1 using 

extraction wells. 

A final ROD outlining final remedial action objectives for Zones 1, 2„3 and 4 is expected to be 

published in 2021. 

Remedial Action: The primary remedial action implemented for the RODs is groundwater extraction 

and treatment system, consisting of a network of over 70 extraction wells throughout Zones 1-4 and 

four treatment plants. The treatment plants include the Pre-Treatment Plant, the Lower Canyon 

Treatment Facility, and the Lower Canyon Treatment Facility, and the Pyrite Canyon Treatment 

Facility. Exhibit 1 shows the location of the four treatment plants for the groundwater extraction and 

treatment system 

Pre-Treatment Plant/ Pyrite Canyon Treatment. The Pre-Treatment Plant treats contaminated 

groundwater recovered from extraction wells located in Zone 1 and Zone 2. Groundwater is treated for 

low pH, pesticides, metals, and VOCs. The plant treats and average of about 45,000 gallons per day 

(gpd) or 50 acre-feet per year (afy). Treated water is stored and then released to the Inland Empire 

Brine Line and the Orange County Sanitation Districts wastewater collection, treatment, and disposal 

facilities. Some of the treated effluent is used for utility water at the plant. In 2017 the Pre-Treatment 

Plant was replaced by the newly constructed Pyrite Canyon Treatment Facility located just north of 

the Pre-Treatment Plant in Zone /B. The new Pyrite Canyon Treatment was designed to replace the 

aging infrastructure of the existing Pre-Treatment Plant and to provide better reliable long-term 

treatment capabilities. 

Lower Canyon Treatment Facility.  This plant treats contaminated groundwater from extraction wells 

in Zone 3 and Zone 4 for VOCs. Effluent from the Lower Canyon Treatment Facility is piped to, and 

stored at the Pre-Treatment Plant, than released to the Inland Empire Brine Line. The plant treats 

and average of about 90,700 gpd (102 afy). 

Community Wellhead Treatment System. This plant treats for VOCs and perchlorate in extracted 

groundwater from two wells in Zone 4. Effluent from the treatment system is discharged to Pyrite 

8 United States Environmental Protection Agency (USEPA). (1990). Record of Decision: Stn.  ng`ellow Hazardous Waste Site. 
September 30. 

Page I 4 

P152 



Annual Status Report 
Stringfellow Contaminant Plume 

October 2018 

Creek for used for irrigation by local residents. The plant treats and average of about 15,000 gpd 

(17 afy). 

Monitoring and Reporting Program: Currently, 579 wells are actively monitored in Zones 1 

through 4 at the Stringfellow site. The number and type of wells monitored in each zone, along with 

the depth of sampling, is summarized below in Table 1. The groundwater monitoring program is 

implemented in accordance with the 2001 GroundwaterMonitoringProgramWorkPlae and the 2015 Final 

„Qua% Assurance Project Plan: Routine Groundwater Monitoring and Zone 4 DGI Investigation' . In general, 

new wells are sampled quarterly for two years and then incorporated into the annual sampling 

schedule. 

Table 1. Summary of Stringfellow Monitoring Sites by Zone, Well Type, and Screened Interval 

Excerpted from: 2016 Annual Groundwater Monitoring and Remedy Effectiveness Evaluation Re_port2  

Well Type Screened In 

Sub-Total MW EW PZ ES WS A D B 

Zone 1A 130 84 39 0 7 - 32 72 26 

Zone 1B 57 36 10 11 0 - 18 21 18 

Zone 2 35 27 8 0 0 - 15 15 5 

Zone 3 130 118 12 0 0 - 52 62 16 

Zone 4 191 147 4 36 0 4 155 30 6 

USEPA 
Areas 1/2 36 36 0 0 0 0 2 20 14 

Total 579 448 73 47 7 4 274 220 85 

Notes: 
EW = extraction well, MW = monitoring well, PZ = piezometer, ES = extraction sump, WS = water 
supply well, A = alluvium, D = weathered (decomposed) bedrock, B = unweathered bedrock 

DTSC initiated surface water sampling in 2005 to evaluate perchlorate concentrations in storm water 

runoff in Pyrite Creek and tributary channels. Currently, surface water sampling and reporting is 

executed pursuant to the Final Suiface Water Sampling and Analysis Plan" and is performed during 

9 Geo-Logic Associates (2001). Groundwater MonitffingProgram Work Plan. April 2001. 
10  Laboratory Data Consultants (2015). Final ,Quali0 Assurance Project Plan: Routine Groundwater Monitoring and Zone 4 DGI 
Investigation. November 2015. 
'1  Geo-Logic Associates (2016). Final Surface Water Sampling and Analysis Plan Shingle/low S upe7fund Site. Prepared for 
C47ornia Department of Toxic Substances Control. July 2016 

Page I 5 

at 
IL —J 
NOW 

P153 



Annual Status Report 
Stringfellow Contaminant Plume 

October 2018 

qualifying storm events which are classified using the following criteria; i) at least 72 hours of dry 

weather have elapsed since a previous storm event, and ii) a storm event produces sufficient runoff 
during daylight hours to perform sampling. 

DTSC reports on the monitoring and temediation efforts in Annual Groundwater Monitoring 

Reports, Quarterly/Non-Routine Monitoring Reports, Monthly Operation and Maintenance Reports, 

Biennial and Annual Groundwater Remedy Effectiveness Evaluation Reports, and other technical 
memoranda and non-routine reports. 

A final Site-Wide Groundwater and Su?face Water Monitor* Plan' was published on July 19, 2016. The 
plan was created pursuant to section 3.3 of the Statement of Work, Agreement to Peif01772Re,ponse Action" 

between the DTSC and the EPA under CERCLA (Docket No. 09-2014-0003). It outlines a 

comprehensive protocol for ongoing data collection and analysis of groundwater and surface water 

samples, including scheduled updates to the plan in five-year intervals. 

The Chino Basin Watermaster(Watermaster) collects all relevant groundwater and surface water data 

from the DTSC's Stringfellow Interface for Data and Documents (SIDD database) on an annual basis 

as part of its Chino Basin Data Collection effort. These data are periodically used by Watermaster to 
support its basin management initiatives. 

Recent Activity: The following is a summary of recent key activities that have occurred since July 1, 
2017: 

• On September 8, 2017 DTSC submitted a proposal to USEPA and approved September 15, 

2018 to modify extraction wells OW-50A1 and OW-55A located in Zone 1A to complete 

dewatering of alluvium pursuant to ROD 4. The proposal also included plans to install 17 new 

nested monitoring wells in the following zones: 1B (OW-111A, OW-111D, OW-111B, OW-

112D, OW-112B, OW-113D, OW-113B, OW-114D, and OW-114B), 3 (OW-65D2), and 4 (FC-

1015A, FC-1015D, FC-1054A, FC-1054D, FC-1110A, and FC-1213A). At the time of this 

report, all modifications and installations have been completed. 

• The Final 2016 Annual Groundwater Monitor* and Remedji Effectiveness Evaluation Report' was 
submitted to DTSC on November 30, 2017 and concludes that the remedial actions have been 

successful in meeting the RAOs and the spatial extent of migration of all contaminants of 

concern in groundwater is not increasing. 

• In March 2018, Geo-Logic Associates submitted the Data Gap Investigation Monitored Natural 

Attenuation (MNA) Januag 2017 Sampling Report". Groundwater samples were collected from 

12  Kleinfelder. (2016). Final Sitewide Groundwater and S wface Water MonitonngPlan and Sampling and Analysis Plan Stringfellow 
Superfind Site. Prepared for C4fornia Environmental Protection Ageng. July 2016 
13  US EPA (2014.) Statement of Work Agreement to Pe?fbrin ROonse Action Shingfellow Acid Pits Supeifund Site, Jumpa 
California. March 10, 2014. 
14 Geo-Logic Associates (2018). Data Gap Investigation _Monitored Natural Attenuation (MNA) Januag 2017  SamplingRipoit.  
March 2018. 

Page 6 MOW 

P154 



Annual Status Report 
Stringfellow Contaminant Plume 

October 2018 

16 new and existing Zone 4 wells to evaluate the effectiveness of NINA as a remedial approach. 

No evaluation of the data was presented in the document. 

• The 2017-2018 Annual Suiface Water Sampling and Analysis Report' was completed June 2018. 

The maximum perchlorate concentration at a surface water site from January-March 2018 was 

9.8 

• On June 15, 2018 Ramboll submitted a technical memorandum' proposing a dye tracer study 

of the Zone 1 barrier system. The study is designed to address the recommendation in the 

Fifth Five Year Review Report' for further evaluation of the apparent hydraulic connection under 

the clay barrier dam and to assess the magnitude of groundwater flow through interconnected 

bedrock fracture zones beneath said barrier. 

• The USEPA is currently engaged in two groundwater and soil investigations, referred to as the 

Area 1 and Area 2 investigations (see Exhibit 1). The objective of these investigations is to 

identify additional sources of perchlorate contamination in Pyrite Canyon. Field work for both 

projects has commenced and the investigation is ongoing. 

• The Lower Canyon Treatment Facility and Pretreatment Plant are currently non-operational 

but can be re-activated if needed. The Pyrite Canyon Treatment Facility and Community 

Wellhead Treatment System are fully operational and have treated a combined total flow of 

23,537,499 gallons of water from site extraction wells. 

15 Geo-Logic Associates (2018). 2017-2018 Annual Suace Water Sampling and Analysis Report Stringfellow Supeifund Site. 
Prepared for United States Environmental Protection Ageng. June 2018 
16 Ramboll (2018). Recommended Zone 1 Barlier System Tracer Study Stringfellow Supeifund Site. June 2015. 
17 US Army Corps of Engineers (2016). FO Five-Year Review &pod for Stringfellow Supeifund Site. September 2016. 

Page I 7 

,44 

OIL _3 
NSW 

P155 



Plume Delineations from the 2016 Annual 
Groundwater Monitoring and Remedy Effectiveness 
Evaluation Report (Kleinfelder, 2017) 

E 
El 

Extent of perchlorate plume ( 6 pgl) 

Extent of ICE plume ( 5 pgl) 

Extent of chloroform plume ( 6 pg11) 

Groundwater Extraction and Treatment Facilities 

• Pyrite Canyon Treatment Facility 

• Pre-Treatment Plant 

• Lower Canyon Treatment Facility 

• Community Wellhead Treatment System 

2017 Model-Generated Groundwater 
Flow Direction (Model Layer 1) 

Streams & Flood Control 
Channels 

ri Chino Basin Hydrologic Boundary 

Prepared by: 

Stringfellow Contaminant Plume 

E I 
is 0 0.25 0.5 1 Author: RT 

Date: 10/3/2018 
Name: 20181002_SFPlume_Status_Ex1_2 

Plume Status Report Vl.11.11Lfe. II t LIVslf 20 \ Exhibit 1 


	10/18/18 Advisory Committee Agenda
	9/20/18 Draft Advisory Committee Minutes
	Financial Report B1 - Cash Disbursement (August 2018) 
	Financial Report B2 - Visa Check Detail (August 2018) 
	Financial Report B3 - Combining Schedule (August 2018) 
	Financial Report B4 - Treasurer's Report (August 2018) 
	Financial Report B5 - Budget vs. Actual (August 2018) 
	Chino Basin Storage Framework (Business Item II.A.)
	IEUA Interagency Water Manager's Report
	Cash Disbursements - September 2018
	Plumes Status Reports



